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RO, our Hero
Relationship Officers form the backbone
of the microfinance industry- rain or
shine, they are on their feet, helping
organizations like ours thrive. As an
organization that believes in going
beyond the ‘bottom line’, every decision
is made keeping in mind our Relationship
Officers’ welfare- they are also called
the heroes of our company. Thank you,
ROs, for being our frontline superheroesbe it floods, draught or even a global
pandemic like Covid-19, you are an
unstoppable force. Thank you for all that
you do. Onwards and upwards!
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Education at
every doorstep

Nukkad
Pathshala

Nukkad Pathshala is an integral part of New
Opportunity’s community outreach program, where
we set up free after-school learning centers across
villages with the aim of helping students develop strong
foundational skills in core subjects. An important aim of
this program is to reduce the school dropout rate in rural
communities by making apparently complex subjects fun.
We launched an online mentorship program in June, 2019
to promote just that. With our virtual mentorship classes,
our students got to interact with their mentors who lived
in different cities, and in some cases, even different parts
of the world.
The difference we see in our students is perceptible.
Our students now speak with far greater confidence and
have quickly imbibed new soft skills. Nukkad Pathshala
operates through 38 centers across various villages in
Tamil Nadu, with 1,300+ students.
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From the
Chairman’s Desk

Every commercial organization
is set-up with a profit motto.
But we at NOCPL thought a
little differently. We decided
that profit shall not be the
only motto for the existence
of an organization and that
we should positively affect the
lives of all our stakeholders so
that the relationship becomes
more meaningful.
The primary focus is on our
customers. Being a Business
Correspondent and operating
in the microfinance area, our
primary role is to identify
skilful and passionate
womenfolk in the unbanked
and underbanked areas who
struggle to make both the ends
meet in their lives. The idea
is to help them with formal
credit to pursue a sustainable
income-generating activity
so that the overall standard
of living of the family is
improved. The approach has
helped us to build a strong
and loyal customer base of
almost a million who openly
acknowledge that dealing with
NOCPL made a difference in
their lives.
The second focus is on
our employees. While the
employees are offered a
competitive compensation
package, New Opportunity
continually aims at giving them
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the best environment to learn and
grow. Small initiatives like a gift to
the employees on the occasions
of their marriage, childbirth, service
milestones and a paid holiday every
year in the month of April to take a
break from the work pressures and
move out on a pleasure trip with
family and colleagues facilitate a
strong bonding in the team. As a
result, every team member today
strongly believes in our concept of “I
am NOCPL”.
The third focus is on our Principals,
whose resources we channelize to
help the underserved borrowers. We
make sure that our Principals are
always satisfied with the business
handled by us. This has induced us
to continuously work on automation,
process improvements and building
checks and balances through
technology. We are happy that we
have been able to ensure “Zero
Loss” to our Principals throughout.
Governance and compliance
have always guided our decisions.
Many a time, we had to let go of
the opportunities for short term
gains in preference to the long term
sustainability of the operations.
Though a small Private Limited
Company, we have endeavoured
to follow the governance and
compliance standards prescribed for
listed entities.
Society at large, which has helped
us to grow, has remained yet

another focus. The Corporate Social
Responsibility (CSR) initiatives of
the company are centered around
upskilling the borrowers and their
family members, providing them
with enhanced and additional
means of livelihood. Tie-ups with skill
development agencies like RUDSETI’s
and various other institutions have
helped us in sponsoring candidates
for skill enhancement courses
followed by their proper placement.
Our Nukkad Pathshalas have helped
the school dropout students trace
their steps back to classrooms. Our
involvement in Pillur, a remote tribal
village in Coimbatore, has paved the
way for the overall development of
the village.
Putting all other stakeholders interest
above the shareholders interest
has still left us with enough bottom
line. From a modest beginning of

operations in two states for two
partners in 2014, we are now
operating in 12 states through 12
partners and are serving close to a
million customers with an employee
base of over 3,000. We are happy
to be recognized as one of the
largest pure-play BCs in the country.
We strongly believe that our “Beyond
the Bottomline” approach has helped
us to grow while making a difference
to all the stakeholders.

K. R. Kamath
5
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A peek into
our adopted
village

Pillur

Pillur is a tribal village surrounded by greens on all sides, and is
nestled deep in the interiors of Tamil Nadu, a three-hour drive
from the nearest city, Coimbatore. It is home to 200 residents.
New Opportunity pledged to support Pillur village in the year
2014. The village is also home to wild elephants, who often
end up damaging and destroying the residents’ laboriously
cultivated produce. The nearest water body is a thirty-minute
walk from the heart of the village. In 2019, we completed the
installation of a borewell in Pillur. This borewell provides safe,
pure and clean drinking water to the residents of the village. It is
also set up right in the center of the village, ensuring a running
supply of water to the residents at all times. We are proud to
see Pillur village thrive: setting up the borewell has not only
made it easier for the residents to conduct their daily activities,
but the constant and accessible supply of water is also helping
their produce thrive.
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MD & CEO’s
Message

The year 2019-20 has been a
breakthrough year as New Opportunity
turned 5! Although each year brought
with it its own challenges, learnings
and growth, this year has been
truly exceptional. Everyone in our
organization now stands wiser as a
result of this dynamic, ever-evolving
journey. I’m excited to see what the
next five years have in store for us- I
am confident that as we grow, we will
evolve as a marketplace for all financial
products under one roof and fulfill our
vision of delivering timely credit where it
is most required.
As we mark a milestone year for us,
I want to thank the team for their
relentless effort. Today, we have a
borrower base of 9.38 Lakh customers
through a network of 462 branches
and a cumulative AUM of ` 1,935 Crore.
as of March, 2020. This would have
been impossible without the collective
strength and perseverance of our team.
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New Opportunity’s constant focus
on putting the customer first and
building complete transparency in
dealings and offerings, has been an
integral part of our value system. Our
external stakeholders/lenders’ trust
has allowed us to preserve a CAGR
of 42%.
We firmly believe in the concept- of
the people, by the people and for
the people. New Opportunity is a
collective reflection of its people. Our
culture is a mixture of the values
that each employee contributes.
Our growth story is a collection
of individual success stories. We
continuously aim to be the ‘best
place to learn’ for all our employees,
and strive to encourage them to
push the envelope and innovate
new, efficient processes.
In a world where every aspect
of work is functioning online, our
processes are also evolving. We are
striving to reach out to each and
every unbanked and underserved
woman through our offerings.
Going digital is enabling us to help
customers, in a more transparent
and efficient manner.

2020 has changed the world, right
before our eyes. Organizations have
to be quick to recoup, innovate and
do business the new way. Thanks
to several digitization processes
we introduced in the recent years,
acclimatizing to the new normal
has been attainable, although not
very easy. I would like to extend
my deepest gratitude to all our
employees who continue to show
the same resilience and dedication
to work, despite the challenging
times. As an organization, we always
aim to be there for our employees
and customers and have also
served at the forefront by joining the
nationwide initiatives taken up by

the BFSI sector. We will surely emerge
stronger and better from the crisis
with the help of our values, robust
processes and delivery systems.
Along with our privileges, we make
sure to fulfil all the responsibilities
entrusted upon us. The dream of
financial stability that lives in the
hearts and minds of our customers
is important to us as much as it is to
them. Hence, we promise to deliver
high-quality results year on year
with our hard work and dedication.

Ganesh Rao
9
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Creating her

Own Path
Chaya Bapu lives in Jalgaon, Maharashtra with her
husband and two children. You can find her lovingly
tending to her animals, with one eye always trained
towards her kids. Chaya and her husband set up
a goat rearing business through a loan via New
Opportunity. With the credit they received, they
purchased two goats and commenced business. They
now have a herd of fifteen goats which enables them
to smoothly finance their children’s education and
meet all their household expenses.
Because of her timely repayment, Chaya has been
able to get a second loan to further expand her
business. She is proud of the secure future that she
has been able to build for her family.
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Board of

Directors
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K. R. Kamath
Chairman and
Non-executive Director
A career banker with 38 years vast experience
in 4 public sector banks including Chairman &
Managing Director of Punjab National Bank &
Allahabad Bank, K.R. Kamath has headed industry
bodies like Indian Banks’ Association (IBA), Institute
of Banking Personnel Selection (IBPS) and Indian
Institute for Banking & Finance (IIBF), facilitating
development of sound and progressive banking
policies and has broad based exposure to other
areas of financial sector through Board positions.
As the CMD of PNB, he has consistently figured in
the Top 100 India Inc. Most Powerful CEOs surveyed
by Economic Times since 2010.

Mohan Vasant Tanksale
Independent Director
Mohan V Tanksale has served as the Chairman
& Managing Director of Central Bank of India
from 2011 to 2013. Subsequently, he became
Chief Executive of Indian Banks’ Association. He
has been nominated as Director of Cent Bank
Financial Services Ltd, Indo Zambia Bank Ltd. and
Cent Bank Home Finance Ltd. He also served
as a Director of Life Insurance Corporation of
India and Executive Director of Punjab National
Bank. He was conferred with several awards
like “Golden Peacock HR Excellence Award 2012’
and ‘Person of the Year’ for his contribution to
Financial Inclusion by ‘SKOCH Foundation’.

13
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Ambadas Mukundrao
Pedgaonkar
Independent Director
Ambadas Pedgaonkar is a retired Principal
Advisor of the Reserve Bank of India and also
served as the Chief Advisor in Indian Banks’
Association. He has extensive experience in the
banking and financial services sector, having
worked with the Reserve Bank of India for
over three decades. His specialty is in Project
Management, Setting-up Data Centre, Payment
and Settlement Systems, Real-Time Gross
Settlement (RTGS) Systems, Cheque Truncation
System, Information and Communications
Technology, Information Security, Payment
Systems Infrastructure.

Ganesh Rao
MD & CEO
Ganesh Rao has over two decades
of experience in the banking and
financial sector. He has worked with
Cholamandalam, GE Capital and DCB
Bank in the past. In 2009, he co-founded
Suryoday Microfinance, a leading MFI
institution in India. Post his successful exit
from his first entrepreneurial venture,
he has ventured into a credit-driven BC
(Business Correspondent) company with
a primary focus on financial inclusion.
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Meenakshi Rao
Executive Director
Meenakshi Rao is a management graduate from
Pune and is a certified yoga coach. Her keen interest
in human development for an inclusive society has
motivated her to co-found this venture.
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Weaving

Dreams
Our ‘Make in India’ campaign supports buying local and preserving
the rich culture and history of our nation. Sabita is one such
craftswoman who specializes in creating traditional Assamese
weaves.
Sabita lives in Damra Patpara with her daughter. Her livelihood
depended on odd tailoring or weaving jobs that were sporadic,
and the wages often minimal. Since the art of weaving was
practiced in her family spanning several generations, she wanted
to preserve her heritage against all odds. Sabita availed a loan
through New Opportunity and set up her own weaving unit. She
can now manufacture Assamese Gamocha and Mekhela Sador
in larger quantities and has reached buyers in several parts of the
country. Encouraged by the support and success she has received,
she now knows that sky’s the limit!
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Management

Team
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Ganesh Rao
MD & CEO
Ganesh has over two decades of
experience in the BSFI sector. He
has worked with Cholamandalam,
GE Capital and DCB Bank in the
past. In 2009 he co-founded
Suryoday Microfinance, a
leading MFI institution in India.
Post his successful exit from his
first entrepreneurial venture, he
ventured into a credit-driven
BC (Business Correspondent)
company with a primary focus on
financial inclusion.

Sivakumar J. R
Chief Operating Officer : South
Sivakumar has over 15 years of
experience in the Financial Sector.
Before joining New Opportunity, he was
the business head at BC operations in
the Indian Association for Savings and
Credit (IASC), a fully owned subsidiary
of NOCPL.

R. Loganathan
Chief Financial Officer
Loganathan is a Post-graduate in IT
(MSc in IT) and has over 15 years of
experience in the Financial Sector.
Before joining New Opportunity,
he has served as the CFO at the
Indian Association for Savings
and Credit (IASC), a fully owned
subsidiary of New Opportunity.
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Chandra Mohan
Head: Quality & Operations
Chandra Mohan is a Science Graduate with 15
Years of experience in NBFCs. He has worked
with Bajaj Auto Finance Ltd. and Fullerton India
Ltd. in various departments.

Narayanamoorthy P
Head: Social Initiatives
Narayana Moorthy is a graduate with over 20
years of experience in the financial and social
responsibility sector. He has worked with
various financial institutions like Bajaj Auto
Finance and India Bulls Financial Services in
various capacities.

Nikhil Pai
Head: Product & Business Relations
Nikhil is a Commerce graduate having over 18
years of experience in the financial services
industry. He has worked with various financial
institutions like ICICI Bank, HDFC Bank, Fullerton
India, Shriram City Union, in various
business functions.
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Ravi K. Tuli
Chief : Audit & Compliance
Ravi is a Management graduate
with a Specialization in Marketing,
having 22 years of experience
in the Automobile, Insurance
and Financial Sector. He has also
worked with Cholamandalam, DCB
Bank, Bharti Axa & Suryoday SFB.

Pradeepta Dash
Chief Operating Officer : East
Pradeepta is a banking and finance
professional with 20 years of
exceptional technical, managerial and
administrative abilities in the asset
department. He has worked with TATA
Finance Ltd., ICICI Bank,
HDFC Bank and Suryoday Small Finance
Bank Ltd. at leadership positions.
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Bhuvnesh Tiwari
Chief Operating Officer : North
Bhuvnesh has completed an executive
program in sales and marketing from
IIM Calcutta and also holds P.G.D.B.M
from IRM Jaipur. He has worked with
Fino Micro-Finance, HDFC Bank; BFIL
during his 11 years in the Microfinance
and Banking Industry.

Pradip K. Kundu
Head : Risk & Policy
Pradip is an Honors Graduate in Economics,
CAIIB and has experience of around 36 years
with Industrial Development Bank of India
(IDBI) and IDBI Bank Ltd. in various capacities.
During his last 10 years’ service with IDBI Bank,
he was involved in servicing and handling
customer grievances, Bond Issuances and also
instrumental in implementing BC/BF Model for
augmenting Bank’s Priority Sector business.

Mona Thakkar
Company Secretary
Mona is a qualified Company Secretary from
the Institute of Company Secretaries of India
with experience of over five years. She has
worked with Isprava Technologies Ltd. in
the past.
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Payodhi Mishra
Chief Technology Officer
Payodhi has pursued an MBA (IT & Systems)
from the Institute of Chartered Financial
Analysts of India (ICFAI) and B.E (Electronics
and Instrumentation) from the University
of Burdwan. He has worked with Larsen &
Toubro Limited (EBG) and FINO Paytech Ltd
and has over 15 years of experience in the
successful initiation, planning, execution and
delivery of projects in a diverse range of
technologies.

Meenakshi Rao
Head: HR
Meenakshi is a management graduate from
Pune and is a certified yoga coach. Her keen
interest in human development for an inclusive
society has motivated her to co-found this
venture.
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Macro
change with

Micro loans
On an otherwise quiet afternoon, there is a dull buzz
of working machines near her house. Lakshmi can be
seen in action, manning the soda plant set-up and
juggling between her two kids.
She lives in Cumbum, Tamil Nadu, a town rich with
fields of Paddy, Coconut, Groundnut. However, the
uncertainty of production and market price did
not make it very easy for Lakshmi to manage her
household. The desire to chart her own course made
Lakshmi set off on her entrepreneurial journey.
Lakshmi once supplied RO purified water cans across
the locality with her husband. But the comfort of old
taste did not help in the success of her business. Like a
true entrepreneur, Lakshmi did not give up. She geared
up for a new business and sought support from New
Opportunity. With the loan amount she received, she
set up a soda manufacturing unit. Today, Lakshmi
manufactures bottles after bottles of soda and her
husband handles the distribution. Her business makes
steady sales, and her bright smile exhibits her hope
for a bright future.

24
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1419.79

1044.23

801.29

FY 19-20

FY 18-19

FY 17-18

FY 16-17

FY 15-16

239.62
FY 14-15

AUM

595.92

1,934.86
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FY 19-20

FY 18-19

FY 17-18

-2.52
FY 16-17

2.1
FY 15-16

0.21
FY 14-15

PAT

20.44

29.17

36.05

Particulars (in ` Crore)
In line with the addition of banking partners in diverse
locations, AUM grew steadily from ` 240 Crore in FY
2014-15 to ` 1,935 Crore in FY 2019-20 (CAGR: 42%).

Particulars (in ` Crore)
Corresponding to the growth of AUM coupled with high
operational self-sufficiency (OSS), profitability grew from
` 21 Lakh in 2014-15 to ` 36 Crore in FY 2019-20.
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1,221.08

921.25

677.18

FY 19-20

FY 18-19

FY 17-18

FY 16-17

FY 15-16

229.58
FY 14-15

Disbursement

1,565.69

1,942.48
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7,50,679

5,99,366

5,27,769

FY 19-20

FY 18-19

FY 17-18

FY 16-17

FY 15-16

1,69,642
FY 14-15

Borrowers

3,83,525

9,37,747

Particulars (in ` Crore)
With an annualised growth rate of 53% since FY 201415, micro loans of ` 1,942 Crore was disbursed to about
6 Lakh members in FY 2019-20, average ticket size
being ` 32,000.

With a satisfied borrower base of about 9.38 Lakh, the
company looks forward to serve in newer territories
with existing as well as new partners.
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6

6
FY 18-19

FY 19-20

FY 16-17

FY 15-16

FY 14-15

2

4

5

FY 17-18

12

BANKING PARTNERS

3,465

FY 19-20 saw us doubling our banking partners. We are
proud to have 12 partners on board!

FY 19-20

FY 18-19

FY 17-18

FY 16-17

392
FY 15-16

FY 14-15

163

723

1,605

2,093

EMPLOYEES

As a result of our steady growth, we have also been
able to generate direct employment for 3,500 people,
mostly for field operations, with innovative use of digital
technology for faster turn-around-time and enhanced
customer satisfaction

28
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FY 19-20

FY 18-19

FY 17-18

FY 16-17

FY 15-16

FY 14-15

10

57

109

214

279

BRANCHES

Each branch has the capacity to service 8,000 customers.
In the last 5 years, we have grown from 10 to 462
branches and have built a capacity to service more than
35 Lakh customers

STATES

We have steadily increased our footprint in 12 States,
and now have national presence with our branches
located in all four corners of the country.
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The Tale of an

Entrepreneur
The splutter of oil and the smell of freshly fried potatoes surround
Selvarajani’s snack shop. Selvarajani lives in the bustling city of
Coimbatore, Tamil Nadu, with her husband and three kids. Selvarajani is a
woman of several talents!
She used to run an embroidery and jewellery shop to support her family,
but it was not enough to make ends meet. Selvarajani decided to start
afresh. She availed a loan through New Opportunity and set up her own
snack shop. Her welcoming smile and crispy treats soon made her shop a
favorite in the locality. Her passion and relentless drive have made her the
breadwinner in her family. She is proud to help her three children secure a
good education!

30
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Management

Discussion
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states. 9,40,000 women received timely credit through
our bank partnerships. Overall, our PAT grew by 24%
which helped us give well-deserved incentives to our
employees and engage in impactful social activities. I’d
say that the financial year 2019-20 helped us meet our
basic needs as a growing organization and gave way
to emerging partnerships.

What were the salient features of the Microfinance
Industry in FY 2019-20?
According to MFIN, the microfinance industry’s gross
loan portfolio stood at ` 2,31,788 Crore at the end of
March 2020, up by 29.26% y-o-y. The total number of
microfinance accounts was 10.54 Crore, an increase of
21.65% on last years’ figures.
Microcredit should be able to transform the borrower’s
journey from that of a job seeker to a job creator.
As the sector evolves through better regulation and
investment flows, there is a need to leverage funds in
order to create a sustainable and profitable ecosystem
for borrowers. The craftsman should have access to
supplies to develop handicrafts along with access to
offline and digital platforms to sell products.
Awareness on microcredit, access to income generation,
and facilities to benefit from government schemes
define the true reach of financial services. As microcredit
disbursement evolves, we are striving to reach the
underserved segment not only through direct access to
credit but also through access to innovative products
that would improve the unbanked population’s
standard of living.
How do you judge NOCPL’s performance as a BC
during last FY?
As an organization, our prime indicator of
performance has always been- have we been fair to
all our stakeholders- our customers, our employees,
our directors, our Principals’ and the society at large?
The answer, I believe, provides an accurate solution
to ascertain our performance. In 2019-20, we were
able to employ 1,400 individuals by growing in 5

32

From one-state presence in 2014, your company is in
12 states now, almost pan-India; How do you manage
control over diverse regions, that also with multiple
Relationships?
Whenever I feel lost, I take a pause and think about
the Indian Railways. India has one of the most complex
rail systems. We have 13,523 passenger trains that
are spread across 1,23,236 km and carry 23 million
travellers in a day and it runs like clockwork. We are
not even an ounce of the railway with respect to any
parameter. That keeps us going. We benchmark some
of the larger entities in the sector and do our best to
match their standard. Further, we create local teams
with location-specific insights and empower them to
take on responsibilities and make decisions.
What is your view about the future of the BC model
and where do you see NOCPL, say in 2025?
In this dynamic environment, while nobody can
predict whether the group lending model will survive or
not, one thing is for sure- credit has and will exist for
as long as the human race. We are a small and nimble
organization and like a chameleon, have the agility to
change our stripes as the markets and customer needs
evolve.
Do you agree that Operating Self Sufficiency is the
key for survival of BCs; if so, why?
The basic objective of any commercial entity is to
be self sufficient. Otherwise, death is imminent. But
self-sufficiency is the outcome of efficiency of an entity.
Efficiency in every operation and process is what we
push for, as an organization. We are trying hard to
make the process seamless to maximize our efficiencythis will ensure that we generate additional surplus
capital to meet our social objectives that go beyond
profit.
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development) and its implementation is our company’s
hallmark. Even an employee in the base level on the
field (but playing the most crucial role) is encouraged to
communicate directly with the top management in case
of a grievance.
It is also the continuous endeavour of the company
to offer its employees a good balance of work and
life to keep their morale high. We are one of the few
companies allowing paid holidays/breaks for a week
every year for all categories of employees to enhance
their delight and sense of belongingness.

To what extent is your company technology-driven?
Is technology affecting the traditional age-old customer
connection of MFIs?
We have digitized almost every aspect of the
business, including sourcing, collections, supervisory or
audit functions. Mobile and browser-based applications
are being used to the maximum possible extent to
improve processes, productivity, turn-around-time and
improved customer engagement.
Having said that, we must not forget the USP of this
sector- micro-loans, doorstep delivery and frequent
repayments. The business thrives on a very high level
of customer connection before, during, and after credit
approval, with all clients meeting face-to-face weekly,
fortnightly or monthly meeting for about 20-30 minutes
in a group setting. These high-touch methods yield
repayment rates that lenders in other sectors only
dream of. The key to success is that the methodology
not only predicts the ability of a customer to repay,
it actually increases motivation to repay through
peer pressure, personal contact and the promise of
continued access to credit.

Considering the vulnerable section of the society
catered by the industry, what is your commitment
towards the community in which your company
operates?
As an organization, we believe that credit only fulfills
one half of the need. Sustainable skill training and
development fills the other half. Ever since our inception,
we provide free skill training programs to our customers
through tie-ups with various government and private
institutions. We ensure that these skills are in line with
local demand and will help the customer earn a stable
living.
Apart from our training programs, we also run a free
education program called ‘Nukkad Pathshala’. We have
set up 38 centers across villages in Tamil Nadu where
we provide free after-school education to children in
grades KG-10th standard. This program aims to provide
quality education at every doorstep by developing
foundational Math, Science and English skills in our
students.
Our organization’s social objective is to empower our
customers by providing them with timely credit and
developing a skill set that will help them chart their own
course!

As microfinance involves a large base of borrowers
availing very small loans, your Company must be
engaging a large workforce, particularly at field level.
How do you keep them motivated?
MFIs and BCs have to invest extensively in human
resources to serve their borrowers at the doorsteps.
Being an industry dominated by foot on fields, HR
management contributes substantially towards the
success of MFIs/ BCs.
Apart from offering remuneration packages comparable
to the best in the industry, transparency in policy
& process (both for recruitment and employee

33
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A Balancing

Act

In a world that keeps you on your toes, with no time for a pause in between, we at
NewOpportunity are taking an active stand in ensuring work-life balance for all our
employees. Every year, our employees get a week off to unwind and enjoy quality time
with their loved ones. We have witnessed momentous occasions, memorable trips, all of
it, during this yearly break. A happy team builds a strong organization!
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Business

Report
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Corporate Information
BOARD OF DIRECTORS
Sl. No. Name of the Director

Designation

1

K. R. Kamath

Chairman and Non-Executive Director

2

Ambadas Mukundrao Pedgaonkar

Independent Director

3

Mohan Vasant Tanksale

Independent Director

4

Ganesh Ramanand Rao

Managing Director and Chief Executive Officer

5

Meenakshi Ganesh Rao

Executive Director

KEY MANAGERIAL PERSONNEL
Sl. No. Name

Designation

1

Loganathan R.

Chief Financial Officer

2

Mona Thakkar

Company Secretary

STATUTORY AUDITORS
HARIBHAKTI AND CO., LLP
705, Leela Business Park,
Andheri Kurla Road, Andheri (East),
Mumbai - 400059.
Email ID: snehal.shah1@haribhakti.co.in

REGISTRAR AND SHARE TRANSFER AGENT
Satellite Corporate Services Private Limited
Unit. No 49, Building No. 13 AB, 2nd Flr,
Samhita Commercial Co-Op Soc. Ltd.,
Off. Andheri Kurla Rd., MTNL Lane,
Sakinaka, Mumbai-400072.
Phone Nos: 022-28520461/462
Email ID: service@satellitecorporate.com

REGISTERED OFFICE
7th Floor, No. 707/708, Cyber One, Plot
No 4 & 6, Sector No. 30A, Vashi,
Navi Mumbai – 400703.
Tel.: 022 20870050;
E-mail ID: secretarial@nocpl.in;
Website: www.nocpl.in
CIN: U93030MH2014PTC252078
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Directors’

Report

DEAR MEMBERS,
The Directors hereby submit the Annual Report of New Opportunity Consultancy Private Limited (‘the
Company’ or ‘NOCPL’), along with the Audited Financial Statements for the Financial Year (FY) ended March
31, 2020 (FY 20). The Consolidated performance of your Company and its subsidiaries have been referred
to wherever required.
1. FINANCIAL (STANDALONE AND CONSOLIDATED) SUMMARY and HIGHLIGHTS:
Your Company’s performance during the FY 20 as compared to previous FY ended March 31, 2019 (FY 19)
is summarized below:
(` In Lakh)
Particulars
Income from operations
Other Income

Standalone
2019-20
2018-19
17,151.47
13,666.05

Consolidated
2019-20
2018-19
17,174.31
13,796.65

105.09

135.60

105.10

145.40

Total Income

17,256.56

13,801.65

17,279.41

13,942.05

Total Expenditure

12,406.64

9,636.72

12,351.47

9,835.08

Exceptional / Extra ordinary items
Profit (Loss) before tax
Provision for taxation and Deferred Taxes
Profit /(Loss) for the year
Other comprehensive Income
Profit for the period after the share of
profit / (losses) of minority interest
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-

-

-

-

4,849.92

4,164.93

4,927.94

4,106.98

1244.18

1247.05

1278.59

1247.06

3,605.74

2,917.87

3,649.35

2,859.92

23.00

(9.20)

23.25

(5.25)

3,628.74

2908.67

3,672.60

2,854.67
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Business performance in FY 2020:

states. Your Company established geographical
presence in 11 states, and are steadily inching
towards a nation-wide presence. In the month
of March - 2020, your Company was hit by an
unanticipated global pandemic - the Corona
virus. This pandemic led to a nation-wide
lockdown, requiring us to press pause button
on our business operations. Your Company
has closed the previous year’s business with
a reasonably good performance. While the
battle is still raging on, it is certain that through a
new business model ensuring social distancing
and accelerated digital innovations, business
will be back to normal shortly. The Company
is optimistic to move to a new normal that
presents us with diverse opportunities.

Income from operations increased from ` 13,801.65
Lakh in FY 19 to ` 17,256.56 Lakh recording an
annual growth of 25.03 %.
y

Profit after Tax (PAT) stood at ` 3605.74 Lakh in
FY 20 as compared to ` 2917.87 Lakh in FY 19,
resulting in a Y-O-Y growth of 23.57%.

y

Assets under Management (AUM) of your
Company has grown at 36.53 % on a Y-O-Y
basis from ` 141710.23 Lakh in FY 19 to
` 193487.32 Lakh in FY 20.

y

Branch network has increased from 280
branches across 7 states in FY 19, to 462
branches across 11 states in FY 20.

y

Number of principals for whom your Company
works as Business Correspondent has increased
from 5 in FY 19 to 11 in FY 20.

2.

TRANSFER TO RESERVES

During FY 20, your Company has initiated a lot
of steps to improve efficiency and reduce the
risk. Your Company would like to list down a
few important initiatives:
The process of onboarding customers for new
loans has been further improved with Credit
Bureau integration. The on-boarding process is
now faster and highly efficient.

STANDALONE
The Company has transferred the entire profit
of ` 3628.74 Lakh to the general reserve.

3.

CONSOLIDATED

y

The Company has transferred the entire
consolidated profit of ` 3672.60 Lakh to the
general reserve.

We have achieved 100 % cashless disbursement
of loans, which has resulted in reduction of
fraud and cash in transit risk.

y

The collection process is completely paperless.
Our digital collection software has increased
efficiency and minimized the reconciliation
process with real-time data.

y

Your Company has commenced business in
Assam, Odisha, Uttar Pradesh and Rajasthan.
We are now present in 11 states and inching
towards being a national player.

y

Your Company has entered into BC partnership
with Axis Bank, Equitas SFB, Fincare SFB, Fed Fin
and Northern Arc thus reducing the principal
concentration risk.

y

Your Company is driven by passion and are
proud to put “Employee first” in all our initiatives.
Your Company has initiated various employee
benefit schemes to further strengthen this bond.

DIVIDEND
With a view to conserve the resources
for meeting the increasing working capital
requirements of the Company, the Directors do
not recommend any dividend for the FY 20.

4.

STATE OF AFFAIRS AND FUTURE OUTLOOK:
The FY 20 began with huff and puff. The
accelerated political activities that comes
with General Elections was visible all around
until the declaration of election results. Your
Company encountered numerous limitations
and restrictions which hindered the normal
business activities. The business picked up from
second quarter. During the year, your company
fostered 6 new partnerships with various Banks
and commenced business in several new
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y

5.

An internal audit system has been put in place
by appointing a Chartered Accountant firm as
Internal Auditors to get an independent view on
the functioning of the Company and improve
the processes.

There is no business activity in the Subsidiary
Company for the whole FY 20. PAT is derived
from the Interest Income received by the
Company from the loans provided.
y

Profit After Tax stood at ` 43.64 Lakh in FY 20
as compared to ` (57.95 Lakh) in FY 19.

7.

CHANGES IN CAPITAL AND DEBENTURES
There was no change in the share capital during
the FY 20.
No debentures were issued by the Company
during the FY 20. The Company has redeemed
440 Listed Non-Convertible Debentures (NCDs)
issued to AAV SARL aggregating to ` 4.40 Crore
on 24th August, 19. After the full redemption of
NCDs, the Company has delisted from BSE Ltd.
DEPOSITS
Your Company has not accepted any deposits
during the FY 20.

9.

CREDIT RATING OF SECURITIES
The credit rating provided by ICRA for nonconvertible debentures of the Company is
[ICRA] BB (pronounced ICRA double B) with
stable outlook. Since the NCD have been
redeemed the Company doesn’t intend to
continue the credit rating of securities.
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11. BOARD OF DIRECTORS AND MEETINGS
As on date of this report, your Company’s
Board of Directors comprises of the following
members, namely:

SUBSIDIARY
In accordance with Section 129(3) of the Act,
a statement containing salient features of
the financial statements of Indian Association
for Saving and Credit (IASC), the Subsidiary
Company in form AOC-1 is appended as
Annexure A which forms a part of this Report.

8.

As per Section 134 (3) (a) of the Companies Act,
2013 (the Act ), annual return/ extract of annual
return referred to in Section 92 of the Act has
been placed at the web site https://www.nocpl.
in/financial.html is appended as Annexure B.

CHANGE IN NATURE OF BUSINESS
There is no change in the nature of business of
your Company during the FY 20.

6.

10. ANNUAL RETURN

Sl. Name of the
No. Director

Designation

DIN

1

K. R. Kamath

Chairman and
Non-Executive
Director

01715073

2

Ambadas
Mukundrao
Pedgaonkar

Independent
Director

03540861

3

Mohan
Vasant
Tanksale

Independent
Director

02971181

4

Ganesh
Ramanand
Rao

Managing
02302989
Director and Chief
Executive Officer

5

Meenakshi
Ganesh Rao

Executive Director

06748708

No change took place in the Board’s composition
during the FY 20.
BOARD MEETINGS:
During the FY 20, 4 (four) Board Meetings were
held on Apr 26, 19, Jul 26, 19, Nov 1, 19 and Jan
31, 20 respectively and all the Directors were
present in all the Board meetings held during
the FY 20.
COMMITTEES OF THE BOARD
Currently, the Board has 4 (four) Committees:
Audit Committee, Nomination and Remuneration
Committee, Corporate Social Responsibility
Committee and Management Committee.
AUDIT COMMITTEE:
During the FY 20, 4 (four) Audit Committee
meetings were held on Apr 26, 19, Jul 26, 19,
Nov 1, 19 and Jan 31, 20 respectively and
all the Members were present in all the Audit
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Committee meetings held during the FY 20.
All the recommendations made by the Audit
Committee were accepted by the Board.
NOMINATION AND REMUNERATION COMMITTEE:
During the FY 20, 3 (three) meeting of the
Nomination and Remuneration Committee was
held on Apr 26, 19, Jul 26, 19 and Nov 1, 19
respectively and all the Members were present
in all the meetings held during the FY 20.
CORPORATE SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY COMMITTEE:
During the FY 20, 1 (One) meeting of the
Corporate Social Responsibility Committee
(CSR) was held on Apr 26, 19 and all the
Members were present in all the CSR committee
meetings held during the FY 20.
Pursuant to Section 135 of the Companies Act,
2013 read with the Companies (Corporate
Social Responsibility Policy) Rules, 2014, your
Company has adopted a Policy on CSR and
the Policy has been placed on the website of
the Company. The salient features of the policy
& report on CSR is attached as Annexure C to
this Report.

*During the FY 20, Mr. K. R. Kamath ceased to be a
member of the Management Committee and Mr.
Loganathan R. was inducted as a member subsequent
to reconstitution of the Management Committee by
the Board at its meeting held on 26th Apr, 19.
12. DECLARATION OF INDEPENDENT DIRECTORS
The Independent Directors (IDs) have submitted
declaration of independence, as required
pursuant to Section 149(7) of the Companies
Act, 2013, stating that they meet the criteria of
independence as provided in Section 149(6) of
the Companies Act, 2013. In the opinion of the
Board, these IDs fulfill the conditions specified
in the Act and the rules made thereunder for
appointment as IDs and confirm that they are
independent of the Management.
13. DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITY STATEMENT
To the best of their knowledge and belief, and
according to the information and explanations
obtained by them, the Directors confirm
the following in terms of Section 134 of the
Companies Act, 2013 and the Rules made
thereunder: a.

in the preparation of the annual accounts,
the applicable accounting standards
have been followed along with proper
explanation relating to material departures;

b.

the Directors has selected such accounting
policies and applied them consistently and
made judgments and estimates that are
reasonable and prudent so as to give a
true and fair view of the state of affairs of
the Company at the end of the financial
year and of the profit of the Company for
that period;

c.

the Directors has taken proper and sufficient
care for the maintenance of adequate
accounting records in accordance with
the provisions of the Act, for safeguarding
the assets of the Company and for
preventing and detecting frauds and other
irregularities;

d.

the Directors has prepared the annual
accounts on a going concern basis;

MANAGEMENT COMMITTEE:
During the FY 20, 19 (Nineteen) meetings of the
Management Committee were held on Apr 3,
19, May 21, 19, Jun 6, 19, Jun 21, 19, Jul 11, 19,
Jul 27, 19, Aug 16, 19, Aug 28, 19, Sept 12, 19,
Sept 28, 19, Oct 16, 19, Nov 7, 19, Nov 26, 19, Dec
11, 19, Dec 26, 19, Jan 10, 20, Jan 29, 20, Feb 19,
20 and Mar 6, 20.
Particulars of the composition and attendance of
Members at the Management Committee Meetings
are given below:
Sr.
Name
Nature
No.
1 Mr. Ganesh
Chairman and
Ramanand Rao Managing
Director
2 Mr. K. R.
Non-Executive
Kamath*
Director
3 Mrs. Meenakshi Executive
Ganesh Rao
Director
4 Mr. Loganathan Chief Financial
R.
Officer

Attendance
19
1
19
18
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e.

the Directors has laid down internal
financial controls which are adequate and
operating efficiently;

f.

the Directors has devised proper systems
to ensure compliance with the provisions of
all applicable laws and that such systems
were adequate and operating effectively.

g.

the Directors has complied with the
provisions relating to the constitution of
Internal Complaints Committee under
the Sexual Harassment of Women at the
Workplace (Prevention, Prohibition and
Redressal) Act, 2013.

14. ANNUAL EVALUATION
Your Company has adopted a Policy on
appointment, remuneration and evaluation
of the Directors, Key Managerial Personnel
and Senior Management (the “Policy”) as
required by the provisions of Section 178 of the
Companies Act, 2013 (the “Act”).
The purpose of this Policy is to establish and
govern the procedures applicable to evaluate
the performance of the members of the
Board, modalities for remuneration payable to
Directors, Key Managerial Personnel (KMP) and
Senior Management and laying down manner
of appointment of KMP and Senior Management
personnel. The policy also lays down criteria for
evaluation of the Board as a whole, Individual
Directors, Committees and Chairman.
Board has carried out the Annual performance
evaluation for the FY 20, on Nov 1, 19 of its own
performance, the Directors individually as well
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as the working of its Committees. A structured
exercise was carried out based on the criteria
for evaluation forming part of the Directors
Appointment, Remuneration & Evaluation Policy.
Inputs were received from the Directors covering
various aspects of the Board’s functioning
such as adequacy of the composition of the
Board and its Committees, attendance at
Meetings, Board culture, duties of Directors, and
governance.
A separate exercise was carried out to evaluate
the performance of individual Directors including
Independent Directors and the Chairman of the
Board, who were evaluated on parameters
such as level of engagement and contribution,
independence of judgement, safeguarding the
interest of the Company and its Stakeholders
etc. The Nomination & Remuneration Committee
has reviewed the implementation and
compliance of the evaluation framework and
has found the same to be in order.
The aforesaid policy has been placed on the
website of the Company. The weblink to the
policy is https://www.nocpl.in/policies.html.
15. LOAN FROM DIRECTORS
The Company has not obtained any unsecured
loan from Directors during the FY 20.
16. PARTICULARS OF LOANS, GUARANTEES OR
INVESTMENTS UNDER SECTION 186 OF THE
COMPANIES ACT, 2013
During the FY 20, your Company had not
granted any loans or guarantees or made any
investments covered under Section 186 of the
Act.
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The standing investments of your Company, as on FY 20 were as follows:
Sl.
Date of
No. Investment

20th April
2015

1

Details of
Investee

Amount
(In `)

Indian
Association
For Savings
And Credit
(Subsidiary
Company)

59,98,700*

Purpose for which
the proceeds from
Date of
Date of Expected
investment is proposed
Board
Special
rate of
to be utilized by the
Resolution Resolution return
recipient

-

20th April
2015

NA

NA

* The nominal value of the investment in the equity share capital of Subsidiary Company is ` 59,98,700.
The total investment value (including premium paid for acquisition of the equity shares of the subsidiary
company is ` 1,80,50,000)
No fresh investment was made in the share capital
of the subsidiary company during FY 20.
17. PARTICULARS
OF
CONTRACTS
ARRANGEMENTS WITH RELATED PARTIES

OR

All transactions entered into by the Company
with related parties were in the ordinary course
of business and on an arm’s length basis.
The Company did not enter into any material
transaction with such related parties, under
Section 188 of the Companies Act, 2013, during
the year. Form AOC-2, as required under Section
134 (3) (h) of the Act, read with Rule 8 (2) of the
Companies (Accounts) Rules 2014, is attached
as part of this report, vide Annexure D.
18. KEY MANGERIAL PERSONNEL
Pursuant to the provisions of Section 203 of the
Companies Act, 2013 read with the rules made
thereunder, the following employees are the
whole-time Key Managerial Personnel of the
Company:
1.

Ganesh Rao, Managing Director and CEO

2.

Meenakshi Rao, Executive Director

3.

Loganathan R., Chief Financial Officer

4.

Mona Thakkar, Company Secretary

No change took place in the composition of the
whole-time Key Managerial Personnel of your
Company during the FY 20.

19. PARTICULARS OF EMPLOYEES
In terms of the provisions of Section 197(12)
of the Companies Act, 2013, read with Rules
5(2) and 5(3) of the Companies (Appointment
and Remuneration of Managerial Personnel)
Rules, 2014, a statement needs to be included
showing the names of the top ten employees
in terms of remuneration drawn and names
and other particulars of the employees drawing
remuneration exceeding ` 1.02 Cr (Rupees One
Crore and two Lakh) per annum for FY 20 in
aggregate or ` 8.50 Lakh (Rupees Eight Lakh fifty
thousand) per month. None of the employees of
the Company draw remuneration exceeding the
above limits.
The disclosures relating to the details as required
under Rule 5(1) and 5(2) of the Companies
(Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial
Personnel) Rules, 2014 forms part of this report.
Having regard to the provisions of the second
proviso to Section 136(1) of the Companies Act,
2013, the Annual Report is being sent to members
excluding the information specified under Rule
5(1) and 5(2) of the Companies (Appointment
and Remuneration of Managerial Personnel)
Rules, 2014. The said information is available
for inspection at the Registered Office of your
Company on all working days, during business
hours. Any member interested in obtaining such
information may write to the Company and the
same will be furnished on request.
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20. AUDITORS AND AUDITORS’ OBSERVATIONS
A. Statutory Auditors: M/s. Haribhakti and Co.
LLP, Chartered Accountants., were appointed
as the Statutory Auditors of the Company
at the Annual General Meeting (AGM) of the
Shareholders held on September 30, 2015, to
hold office from the conclusion of that meeting
up to the conclusion of the ensuing AGM. It is
now proposed to reappoint
M/s. Haribhakti and Co. LLP, Chartered
Accountants as the Statutory Auditors of
the Company at the ensuing AGM of the
Shareholders for a second term of 5 years as
may be approved in the ensuing AGM on such
remuneration in the manner laid down by the
Shareholders.
The report of the Auditors on the Financial
Statements is attached herewith. The report
does not contain any qualification, reservation
or adverse remark.
The notes to the accounts forming part of the
financial statements are self-explanatory and
need no further clarifications or explanations. There
have been no frauds reported by the Auditors
other than the ones detected and reported by the
management for the FY 20 pursuant to Section
143 of the Companies Act, 2013.
B. Internal Auditors: In order to strengthen
the Internal Control Mechanism your company
has appointed M/s. Ramakrishnan and Co.,
Chartered Accountants as the Internal Auditors
of your Company.
21. SECRETARIAL AUDITORS’ REPORT
M/s. S. Sandeep & Associates, Practicing
Company Secretaries have been appointed to
conduct the Secretarial Audit of your Company.
The Secretarial Audit Report for the FY 20
(Annexure E) forms a part of Annual Report. The
Secretarial Audit Report does not contain any
qualification, reservation or adverse remark.
22. COST RECORDS
The Company was not required to maintain cost
records as specified by the Central Government
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under sub-section (1) of section 148 of the Act.
23. MATERIAL CHANGES AFFECTING THE FINANCIAL
POSITION OF THE COMPANY
There are no material changes and
commitments in your Company between March
31, 2020 and the date of this report having an
adverse bearing on the financial position of the
Company except for the fact that the nationwide lock down has been extended multiple
times and the business of the Company is in a
pause mode.
24. RISK MANAGEMENT
Your Company, being a Business Correspondent
to various Banks/NBFCs, has to manage various
risks. The management reviews and monitors
these risks at periodical intervals.
Your Company has adopted a ‘Risk Management
Policy' covering appropriate risk-management
measures, systems and processes that seek to
strike an appropriate balance between risk and
returns.
25. DETAILS OF ADEQUACY OF INTERNAL FINANCIAL
CONTROLS
The Company has adopted Internal Control
Systems and Procedures considering the nature
of business and complexity of its operations
for ensuring orderly and efficient conduct of its
business, including adherence to the Company’s
policies, safeguarding of its assets, processes for
prevention and detection of frauds and errors,
accuracy and completeness of the accounting
records, and timely preparation of reliable
financial statements.
With a view to suggest improvements, add
value and strengthen the overall internal
control system including risk management,
the Company has appointed a Chartered
Accountants’ firm as Internal Auditors, who
shall provide an independent and critical
appraisal of the functioning of the Company on
a continuous basis. All significant observations
of Internal Audit, its suggestions and follow-up
action are being presented to the Board’s Audit
Committee on periodical basis.
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26. INVESTOR EDUCATION AND PROTECTION FUND
(IEPF)
Your Company has not declared any dividends
from its incorporation. Hence, there is no unclaimed
dividend relating to the earlier financial years,
which needs to be transferred to the Investors
Education and Protection Fund, in terms of Section
125 of the Companies Act, 2013.
27. DETAILS OF SIGNIFICANT AND MATERIAL ORDERS
PASSED BY THE REGULATORS OR COURTS OR
TRIBUNALS
During the FY 20, there were no significant and
material orders passed by the Regulators or
Courts or Tribunals impacting the going concern
status of the Company and its operations in
future.
28. CONSERVATION OF ENERGY, TECHNOLOGICAL
ABSORPTION
AND
FOREIGN
EXCHANGE
EARNINGS/OUTGO
y

Conservation of Energy and Technological
Absorption
Your company has no activity relating
to conservation of energy or technology
absorption.

y

Foreign Exchange Earnings and Outgo
Your company during the FY 20 had
no earnings or expenditure in foreign
exchange.

29. WHISTLE
BLOWER
MECHANISM

POLICY

AND

VIGIL

Your Company is in compliance with Section 177
of the Companies Act, 2013 and has established
a Vigil Mechanism and has adopted a Whistle
Blower Policy for Directors and Employees to
report their genuine concerns to the Chairman
of the Audit Committee.
30. DISCLOSURE UNDER THE SEXUAL HARASSMENT
OF WOMEN AT WORKPLACE (PREVENTION,
PROHIBITION AND REDRESSAL) ACT, 2013
Your Company has in place a 'Policy for Prevention
of Sexual Harassment at Workplace' in line with
the requirements of the Sexual Harassment of

Women at Workplace (Prevention, Prohibition
and Redressal) Act, 2013. All employees and
visitors at workplace are covered under the
Policy. As per the provisions of the Act, Internal
Complaints Committees (ICC) have been set up
at Head and Coimbatore Zonal Office to redress
complaints regarding sexual harassment. With
a view to publicize the Company's Policy
and as a measure for prevention of sexual
harassment, the external member of the ICC
(Practicing Advocate dealing with Labour Law &
Women Issues) conducted 'Awareness Session'
at Head Office by explaining the nuances of
relevant provisions of the Act to the employees
and shared her views/ experiences in resolving
such complaints.
No complaint necessitating action by the ICC
has been received by your Company during
the FY 20.
31. SECRETARIAL STANDARDS OF ICSI
Your Company is in compliance with the
relevant provisions of applicable Secretarial
Standards issued by the Institute of Company
Secretaries of India and approved by the
Central Government.
32. ACKNOWLEDGEMENT
The Directors wish to thank the Principal Banks/
NBFCs, Customers, Service Agencies, and other
Stakeholders for their support. The Directors
also thank the Employees for their contribution
during the FY 20.

For and on behalf of the Board
							
		
Chairman
Place: Mumbai 			
K. R. Kamath
Date: 26.05.2020		
DIN: 01715073
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Homemaker to

Breadwinner
Manju Daimari lives in Khangkhalabari, Assam, with her husband
and daughter. Her family’s income depended on the book store
run by her husband. Due to lack of capital to stock up on fastselling books and stationery, the book store made a minimal
profit. Manju availed a loan through New Opportunity. This loan
enabled her to purchase fast-moving stock.
Manju’s shop quickly became the pit stop for every school-going
child in her locality. Her infectious smile and eagerness to cater
to all her customers’ demand has made Manju the most loved
bookseller in the area! Her bookstore is now generating a regular
stream of income. With the increased income, Manju now plans
to purchase a xerox machine for her shop.
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Annexure A

FORM AOC-1
(Pursuant to first proviso to sub-section (3) of section 129 read with rule 5 of Companies (Accounts) Rules,
2014)
Statement containing salient features of the financial statement of subsidiaries:
(` in Lakh)
Sl. No.
Particulars
Details
1.
Name of the subsidiary
Indian Association for Savings
and Credit
2.
Reporting period for the subsidiary concerned, if different from
March 31, 2020
the Holding Company’s reporting period
3.
Reporting currency and Exchange rate as on the last date of
NA
the relevant Financial year in the case of Foreign Subsidiaries
4.
Share capital
60.00
5.
Reserves & surplus
1942.92
6.
Total assets
2066.75
7.
Total Liabilities
2066.75
8.
Investments
-9.
Turnover
-10.
Profit before taxation
78.03
11.
Provision for taxation
-12.
Profit after taxation
43.64
13.
Proposed Dividend
0
14.
% of shareholding
99.98%
For and on behalf of the Board of Directors
For New Opportunity Consultancy Private Limited

K.R. Kamath
Chairman
DIN: 01715073

Ganesh Ramanand Rao
Managing Director and CEO
DIN: 02302989

Loganathan R.
Chief Financial Officer
		

Mona Jeetendra Thakkar
Company Secretary
(A43836)
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Annexure B

FORM NO. MGT 9
EXTRACT OF ANNUAL RETURN
As on financial year ended on 31.03.2020
Pursuant to Section 92 (3) of the Companies Act, 2013 and rule 12(1) of the Company
(Management & Administration) Rules, 2014.
			
I.  REGISTRATION & OTHER DETAILS:
1

CIN

U93030MH2014PTC252078

2

Registration Date

15-01-2014

3

Name of the Company

NEW OPPORTUNITY CONSULTANCY PRIVATE LIMITED

4

Category/Sub-category of
the Company

Company Limited by Shares / Non-govt company

5

Address of the Registered
office &

No: 707/708, 7th Floor, Cyber One, Plot No 4 & 6, Sector No. 30A,
Vashi, Navi Mumbai, Maharashtra, India – 400703

contact details

022 20870050

6

Whether listed company

No

7

Name, Address & contact
details of the Registrar &
Transfer Agent, if any.

Satellite Corporate Services Private Limited and address is Unit. No
49, Building No. 13 AB, 2nd Floor, Samhita Commercial Co-Op Society
Ltd, Off Andheri Kurla Rd, MTNL Lane, Sakinaka, Mumbai – 400
072, Maharashtra, Tel. No.: 022-28520461/462; Email Id: service@
satellitecorporate.com
										
II.  PRINCIPAL BUSINESS ACTIVITIES OF THE COMPANY
(All the business activities contributing 10 % or more of the total turnover of the company shall be
stated)
Sl. No. Name and Description of main products / services
1

48

Activities of head offices; management consultancy
activities

NIC Code of the
Product/service

% to total turnover
of the company

70200

100%
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III.     PARTICULARS OF HOLDING, SUBSIDIARY AND ASSOCIATE COMPANIES
Sl.
Name and address of the
No. Company

CIN/GLN

Holding/
Subsidiary/
Associate

% of
shares
held

Applicable
Section

1

U91110MH1998NPL113558

Subsidiary

99.98%

Sec 2(87)

Indian Association for
Savings & Credit

IV.    SHARE HOLDING PATTERN 								
(Equity share capital breakup as percentage of total equity)					
(i) Category-wise Share Holding
Shareholding at the beginning of the year
Category of Shareholders

Physical

Demat

% of
Total
Shares

Total

Shareholding at the end of the year
Physical

Demat

% of
Total
Shares

Total

%
Change
during
the
year

A. Promoters
(1) Indian
a) Individual/ HUF

49,99,950

- 49,99,950

93.33% 49,99,950

- 49,99,950

93.33%

0.00%

b) Central Govt

-

-

-

0.00%

-

-

-

0.00%

0.00%

c) State Govt(s)

-

-

-

0.00%

-

-

-

0.00%

0.00%

d) Bodies Corp.

-

-

-

0.00%

-

-

-

0.00%

0.00%

e) Banks / FI

-

-

-

0.00%

-

-

-

0.00%

0.00%

f) Any other

-

-

-

0.00%

-

-

-

0.00%

0.00%

- 49,99,950

93.33%

0.00%

Sub Total (A) (1)

49,99,950

- 49,99,950

93.33% 49,99,950

(2) Foreign
a) NRI Individuals

-

-

-

0.00%

-

-

-

0.00%

0.00%

b) Other Individuals

-

-

-

0.00%

-

-

-

0.00%

0.00%

c) Bodies Corp.

-

-

-

0.00%

-

-

-

0.00%

0.00%

d) Any other

-

-

-

0.00%

-

-

-

0.00%

0.00%

Sub Total (A) (2)

-

-

-

0.00%

-

-

-

0.00%

0.00%

- 49,99,950

93.33%

0.00%

0.00%

0.00%

TOTAL (A)

49,99,950

- 49,99,950

93.33% 49,99,950

B. Public Shareholding
1. Institutions
a) Mutual Funds

-

-

-

0.00%

-

-

-

b) Banks / FI

-

-

-

0.00%

-

-

-

0.00%

0.00%

c) Central Govt

-

-

-

0.00%

-

-

-

0.00%

0.00%

d) State Govt(s)

-

-

-

0.00%

-

-

-

0.00%

0.00%

e) Venture Capital Funds

-

-

-

0.00%

-

-

-

0.00%

0.00%

f) Insurance Companies

-

-

-

0.00%

-

-

-

0.00%

0.00%

g) FIIs

-

-

-

0.00%

-

-

-

0.00%

0.00%

h) Foreign Venture Capital Funds

-

-

-

0.00%

-

-

-

0.00%

0.00%

i) Others (specify)

-

-

-

0.00%

-

-

-

0.00%

0.00%

Sub-total (B)(1):-

-

-

-

0.00%

-

-

-

0.00%

0.00%
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Shareholding at the beginning of the year
Category of Shareholders

Physical

Demat

Shareholding at the end of the year

% of
Total
Shares

Total

Physical

Demat

% of
Total
Shares

Total

%
Change
during
the
year

2. Non-Institutions
a) Bodies Corp.
i) Indian

-

-

-

0.00%

-

-

-

0.00%

0.00%

ii) Overseas

-

-

-

0.00%

-

-

-

0.00%

0.00%

i) Individual shareholders holding
nominal share capital upto ` 1
Lakh

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

0.00%

0.00%

ii) Individual shareholders holding
nominal share capital in excess
of ` 1 Lakh

3,57,550

-

3,57,550

6.67%

3,57,550

-

3,57,550

6.67%

0.00%

Non Resident Indians

-

-

-

0.00%

-

-

-

0.00%

0.00%

Overseas Corporate Bodies

-

-

-

0.00%

-

-

-

0.00%

0.00%

Foreign Nationals

-

-

-

0.00%

-

-

-

0.00%

0.00%

Clearing Members

-

-

-

0.00%

-

-

-

0.00%

0.00%

b) Individuals

c) Others (specify)

Trusts

-

-

-

0.00%

-

-

-

0.00%

0.00%

Foreign Bodies - D R

-

-

-

0.00%

-

-

-

0.00%

0.00%

Sub-total (B)(2):-

3,57,550

-

3,57,550

6.67%

3,57,550

-

3,57,550

6.67%

0.00%

Total Public (B)

3,57,550

-

3,57,550

6.67%

3,57,550

-

3,57,550

6.67%

0.00%

-

-

-

0.00%

-

-

-

0.00%

0.00%

- 53,57,500 100.00%

0.00%

C. Shares held by Custodian for
GDRs & ADRs
Grand Total (A+B+C)

53,57,500

- 53,57,500 100.00% 53,57,500

(ii) Shareholding of Promoter 						
Shareholding at the beginning
of the year
Sl. Shareholder’s
No.
Name

1

2

50

Mrs.
Meenakshi
Ganesh Rao
Mr. Ganesh
Ramanand
Rao
Total

No. of
Shares

% of total
Shares
of the
company

Shareholding at the end
of the year

% of Shares
Pledged/
encumbered
to total
shares

No. of
Shares

% of total
Shares
of the
company

% of Shares
Pledged /
encumbered
to total
shares

% change in
shareholding
during the
year

23,24,900

43.40%

-

23,24,900

43.40%

-

0.00%

26,75,050

49.93%

38.14%

26,75,050

49.93%

23.14%

0.00%

49,99,950

93.33%

38.14% 49,99,950

93.33% 23.14%

0.00%
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(iii) Change in Promoters’ Shareholding (please specify, if there is no change)				
Sl.
No.

Particulars

Shareholding at the
beginning of the year
% of total
No. of shares
shares

Cumulative Shareholding
during the year
% of total
No. of shares
shares

At the beginning of the year
1
Mrs. Meenakshi Ganesh Rao
23,24,900
43.40%
23,24,900
43.40%
2 Mr. Ganesh Ramanand Rao
26,75,050
49.93%
26,75,050
49.93%
Date wise Increase/ Decrease in Promoters
Share holding during the year specifying the
0.00%
0.00%
reasons for increase/decrease
At the end of the year
1
Mrs. Meenakshi Ganesh Rao
23,24,900
43.40%
23,24,900
43.40%
2 Mr. Ganesh Ramanand Rao
26,75,050
49.93%
26,75,050
49.93%
										
(iv) Shareholding Pattern of top ten Shareholders								
(Other than Directors, Promoters and Holders of GDRs and ADRs):
Sl.
No.

Shareholding at the Cumulative Shareholding
beginning of the year
during the year

For each of the Top 10 shareholders

No. of
shares

% of total
shares

No. of
shares

% of total
shares

At the beginning of the year
1

Mr. Jasbinder Singh Toor

3,57,550

Date wise Increase/Decrease in Share holding
during the year specifying the reasons for
increase/decrease

6.67%

3,57,550

6.67%

6.67%

3,57,550

6.67%

-

At the end of the year
1

Mr. Jasbinder Singh Toor

3,57,550

(v) Shareholding of Directors and Key Managerial Personnel:
Sl. Shareholding of each Directors and
No. each Key Managerial Personnel

Shareholding at the beginning Cumulative Shareholding
of the year
during the year
% of total
shares

No. of shares

No. of
shares

% of total
shares

At the beginning of the year
1

Mrs. Meenakshi Ganesh Rao

23,24,900

43.40%

23,24,900

43.40%

2

Mr. Ganesh Ramanand Rao

26,75,050

49.93%

26,75,050

49.93%

0.00%

-

0.00%

-

0.00%

-

0.00%

Date wise Increase / Decrease in Share
holding during the year specifying the
reasons for increase / decrease
At the End of the year
1

Mrs. Meenakshi Ganesh Rao

23,24,900

43.40%

23,24,900

43.40%

2

Mr. Ganesh Ramanand Rao

26,75,050

49.93%

26,75,050

49.93%
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V. INDEBTEDNESS										
								
(Amt. ` Lakhs)
Secured Loans
Unsecured
Total
Particulars
Deposits
excluding deposits
Loans
Indebtedness
Indebtedness at the beginning of the
financial year
i) Principal Amount
517.92
2,120.00
NA
2,637.92
ii) Interest due but not paid
NA
iii) Interest accrued but not due
49.18
NA
49.18
Total (i+ii+iii)
567.10
2,120.00
NA
2,687.10
Change in Indebtedness during the
financial year
* Addition
1,500.00
50.00
NA
1,550.00
* Reduction
(975.36)
(2.08)
NA
(977.44)
Net Change
524.64
47.92
NA
572.56
Indebtedness at the end of the
financial year
i) Principal Amount
3,162.57
47.91
NA
3,210.48
ii) Interest due but not paid
NA
iii) Interest accrued but not due
21.99
NA
21.99
Total (i+ii+iii)
3,184.56
47.91
NA
3,232.47

VI. REMUNERATION OF DIRECTORS AND KEY MANAGERIAL PERSONNEL
A. Remuneration to Managing Director, Whole-time Directors and/or Manager:
SN. Particulars of Remuneration
Name

Name of MD/WTD/ Manager

Total
Amount

GANESH
Meenakshi
RAMANAND RAO
Rao - ED
- MD and CEO

(`/Lac)

Designation
1

98.50

34.71

133.21

(a) Salary as per provisions contained in section 17(1)
of the Income-tax Act, 1961

-

-

-

(b) Value of perquisites u/s 17(2) Income-tax Act, 1961

-

-

-

(c) Profits in lieu of salary under section 17(3) Incometax Act, 1961

-

-

0.00

2

Stock Option

-

-

0.00

3

Sweat Equity

-

-

0.00

4

Commission

-

-

0.00

- as % of profit

-

-

-

- others, specify

-

-

0.00

Others, please specify

-

-

0.00

98.50

34.71

133.21

-

-

-

5

Gross salary

Total (A)
Ceiling as per the Act
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B. Remuneration to other Directors
SN. Particulars of Remuneration

1

Independent Directors
Fee for attending meetings of Board /
Committees of Board
Commission
Others, please specify
1. Sitting fees for Independent Directors Meeting
Total (1)

2

Other Non-Executive Directors

Total
Amount
(`/Lac)

Name of Director
AMBADAS MUKUNDRAO
PEDGAONKAR

MOHAN
VASANT
TANKSALE

4.00

4.00

8.00

4.00
RAMACHANDRA
KASARGOD KAMATH

4.00

8.00
Total
Amount

Fee for attending meetings of Board /
3.75
3.75
Committees of Board
Commission
Others, please specify
12.00
12.00
1. Professional Fees paid
Total (2)
Total (B)=(1+2)
15.75
15.75
Total Managerial Remuneration
Overall Ceiling as per the Act
											
C. Remuneration to Key Managerial Personnel other than MD/Manager/WTD				
Particulars of Remuneration
Name of Key Managerial Personnel
Sl.
Total Amount
Mona Jeetendra
Loganathan R.
No. Name
(`/Lac)
Thakkar
Designation
CFO
CS
1
Gross salary
(a) Salary as per provisions contained in
25.71
5.97
31.68
section 17(1) of the Income-tax Act, 1961
(b) Value of perquisites u/s 17(2) Income-tax
Act, 1961
(c) Profits in lieu of salary under section 17(3)
Income- tax Act, 1961
2
Stock Option
3
Sweat Equity
4
Commission
- as % of profit
- others, specify
5
Others, please specify
Total
25.71
5.97
31.68
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VII. PENALTIES / PUNISHMENT/ COMPOUNDING OF OFFENCES:
Type

Section of the
Companies
Act

Brief
Description

Details of Penalty
/ Punishment/
Compounding fees
imposed

Appeal
Authority [RD / made, if
NCLT/ COURT] any (give
Details)

A. COMPANY - NA
Penalty
Punishment
Compounding
B. DIRECTORS - NA
Penalty
Punishment
Compounding
C. OTHER OFFICERS IN
DEFAULT - NA
Penalty
Punishment
Compounding
										
										
For New Opportunity Consultancy Private Limited
				
KR Kamath
Chairman
DIN: 01715073
										
										
Date 26/05/20								
Place: Mumbai								
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Nukkad

Champ
Anto Jemila is a student of Kanniseri Pudur Nukkad
center. This May, she graduated 10th standard,
securing 80% in her board exams. Jemila is a diligent
and curious child, who, under the guidance of her
Pathshala teacher, Miss Rajeshwari, has developed
a strong love for the subjects Biology and Maths.
Jemila’s parents work in a matchbox factory. Jemila
plans to pursue science and aspires to become a
teacher, and Miss Rajeshwari continues to ignite in
pathshala students, a deep love for learning. We are
so proud of Jemila, the world is your oyster!
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Annexure C

ANNUAL REPORT ON CSR ACTIVITIES
1. CSR Objectives and brief outline of the Company’s CSR Policy:
Your Company has adopted a Corporate Social Responsibility policy pursuant to Section 135 of the
Companies Act, 2013. Your Company is a new generation service provider in the business of promoting
financial inclusion. The Company acts as Authorized Business Correspondents to multiple Banks and NonBanking Finance Companies (NBFCs) in India. Your Company’s goal of financial inclusion is incomplete unless
it provides or enhances the livelihood opportunities of its customers.
Since NOCPL is a growing company and is committed towards social welfare of the common people, it
caters to the needs of self-employed, informal segment of customers belonging to low income, primarily
from semi urban and rural markets. The Company seeks to positively impact the lives of the disadvantaged
by supporting and engaging in activities that aim to improve their well-being.
The Company’s CSR Policy has been uploaded on the website of the Company and the web link to CSR
policy is http://nocpl.in/policies.html
2. Composition of the CSR Committee
Sl. NO.
1
2
3

NAME
Mrs. Meenakshi Rao
Dr. Ambadas Pedgaonkar
Mr. Mohan Tanksale

DESIGNATION
Chairman of the committee and Executive Director
Independent Director
Independent Director

3. Average net profit of the Company for the last three financial years:
The average profits for the last three years calculated was ` 2907.01 Lakh for CSR during the FY 20:
FY
2018 - 2019
2017- 2018
2016 - 2017
Total
Avg of PBT (last 3 years)
2% of Avg PBT
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PBT as per IND AS (` In Lakh)
4328.11
3095.79
1297.14
8721.04
2907.01
58.14
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4. Prescribed CSR expenditure (2% of the amount as in item 3 above)
The Company during the FY 20 is required to spend ` 58.14 Lakh towards CSR.
5. Details of CSR spent during the financial year:
a) Total amount spent for the FY 20; ` 60.25 Lakh
b) Amount unspent, if any; NA
A detailed note on the CSR initiatives of the Company is appended as Schedule I.
c) Manner in which the amount spent during the FY 20 is detailed below:
(` in Lakh)

CSR Project
or activity
identified

1. Nukkad
Pathshala

Sector
in which
project is
covered

Promotion
of education

2.TN/Kerala
Social
during Floods impact
and Cyclone projects

Amount spent
Projects or Proon the projects
grammes
Amount
or programs
Cumulative
(1) Local Area or
outlay
Sub-heads:
expenditure
other
(budget)
(1) Direct
up to the
(2) Specify the State project or
expenditure
reporting
& District where
programs
on projects or
period
projects or programs
wise
programs
was undertaken
(2) Overheads
Tamil Nadu covering
13 Districts Tuticorin,
Virudhunagar,
Coimbatore, Trichy,
Thanjavur, Dindigul,
Theni, Madurai,
Salem, Thirupur,
50.54
50.54
50.54
Erode, Namakkal,
and Dharmapury.
Totally 38 Nukkad
Pathshala centers
are operational with
41 teachers and
1235 students.
Flood affected
districts of Karnataka
3.37
3.37
3.37
and Madhya
Pradesh

Eradicating
hunger,
poverty,
3. Adoption
malnutrition Coimbatore district in
of Pillur Tribal
and
Pillur Village
Village
promoting
healthcare,
education

3.60

3.60

3.60

Amount
spent:
Direct or
through
implementing
agency

Direct

Direct

Direct
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CSR Project
or activity
identified

4.Training

Sector
in which
project is
covered

Employment
enhancing
vocational
skills

Amount spent
Projects or Proon the projects
grammes
Amount
or programs
Cumulative
(1) Local Area or
outlay
Sub-heads:
expenditure
other
(budget)
(1) Direct
up to the
(2) Specify the State project or
expenditure
reporting
& District where
programs
on projects or
period
projects or programs
wise
programs
was undertaken
(2) Overheads
Trichy, Tirupur,
Tirunelveli, Madurai,
Kanchipuram,
Chennai, Namakkal,
Coimbatore, Salem,
2.74
2.74
2.74
Thanjavur districts of
Tamil Nadu, Thrissur
in Kerala and Pune
and Solapur districts
of Maharashtra.
Total
60.25
60.25
60.25

Amount
spent:
Direct or
through
implementing
agency

Direct

6.

In case the company has failed to spend two percent of the average net profits of the last three
financial years or any part thereof, the company shall provide the reasons for not spending the amount
in its Boards report: Not Applicable

7.

The CSR committee confirms that the implementation and monitoring of the CSR Policy is in compliance
with the CSR objectives and Policy of the company.

Ganesh Rao
Managing Director
Meenakshi Rao
Chairman of CSR Committee
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SCHEDULE – I
IMPARTING SKILLS, BUILDING LIVES
The Corporate Social Responsibility (CSR) programs of the Company, were started since the inception of the
organization. During FY 20, the Company partnered with various polytechnics, hospitals, ITI’s and undertook
community development projects in the fields of Skill building, Education and Healthcare.
Skill Development
Your Company has collaborated with polytechnics, ITIs, National Skill Development Corporation approved
institutions and bank sponsored RSETIs to provide free training programs to the members and their
wards. These institutions have adequate infrastructure, facilities and technical know-how to carry out
skill development activities. Your Company acts as the sourcing partners for these reputed institutions by
identifying members and their families who need livelihood skills and enroll them in income generating
training programs. On completion of the course, participants are placed in reputed organizations through
our network partners. Beneficiaries are encouraged to be self-employed, wherein, your company helps
them avail credit through our bank partners.
Some of our valued Associate Partners are:
y

State Bank of India Rural Self-employment Institute

y

Indian Bank Self-employment Training Institute.

y

Canara Bank Self-employment Training Institute

y

Syndicate Bank Self-employment Training Institute.

y

Indian Overseas Bank Self-employment Training Institute

y

Carborundum Universal Ltd.

y

Ramakrishna Mission Vidhyalaya, Coimbatore

y

PSG Arts and Science College.

In the FY 20, 7673 beneficiaries enrolled in various skill development programs conducted by NOCPL. More
than 600 were employed in reputed organizations while a substantial number chose to start their own
business enterprise.
FY

2019 - 2020

Candidates

7673

Impact

1270

Impact %

17%

Education - Nukkad Pathshala
For the benefit of our member’s children, your Company have set up free after-school learning centers in
various villages close to our branches, called 'Nukkad Pathshala'. Our Pathshalas seek to bring to every
corner or 'Nukkad', an unrivalled passion to learn. Nukkad Pathshala aims at delivering foundational English,
Math and Science skills to children of various age groups - ranging from five to fifteen. Your Company hopes
to bring about an education revolution and help our students reach the stars with the help of experienced
teachers and professors. Currently, 38 Nukkad Pathshala centers are operational across Tamil Nadu, with a
strength of 41 teachers and 1235 students.
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Highlights of the Year
Nukkad Pathshala
1. Your Company has set up well stocked libraries in all our Nukkad Pathshala centers. “Friday Book Club”
was launched, where students pick a book a week and discuss it with their peers. There is a noticeable
change in their confidence and speaking skills.
2. Your Company has introduced a “Pathshala Town House” where parents and students attended guest
lectures on topics around ‘Child welfare and development’
3. Your Company has launched an Online Mentorship Program by setting up projectors in 5 of the centers.
Students interacted with their mentors through video calls and learned English through short stories and
activities. The mentors are noticing a significant change in the student’s confidence when they speak
English.
4. Your Company has developed low-cost, activity-based learning kits for Nukkad Pathshala students to
help strengthen their foundational Maths and Science. These kits were made through a volunteer drive
conducted in the month of December, 2019 with over 250 participants.
5. Your Company teachers were trained on how to use the YWCA syllabus to help develop the student’s
English skills.
6. Your Company has launched “A Value a Month” program, wherein the teachers teach kids one value
a month, and re-inforce the value through activities conducted throughout the month. These activities
were shared in the Company’s social media and received a lot of outside participation.
7. All national and regional festivals were celebrated across all the Nukkad Pathshala centers.
8. The initiative was published in several publications like- DT Next, Grehlakshmi magazine, and Eenadu
Vasundhara.
Skill Development
1. Job Fair: Job fairs were organized in 4 regions for more than 1,500 candidates.
2. Murugappa and Ramakrishna ITI Course: Your Company has conducted the Murugappa and
Ramakrishna entrance exam this year. 600 students wrote the entrance exam in Tamil Nadu out of
which 23 candidates have joined the 2- years free ITI course of Murugappa and 29 candidates have
joined the 2-years free ITI course of Ramakrishna Mission Vidhyalaya.
3. Women Entrepreneurship: Promotional drives were organized for budding women entrepreneurs in
partnership with various colleges and communities by enabling them to put up stalls and market their
products.
4. Awareness Programs: Micro credit awareness programs were organized for members where the
opportunities and threats of credit were explained in detail.
5. Education Sponsorship: Your Company has sponsored 10 disadvantaged students for under graduate
programs at Ramakrishna Arts and Science College.
Tribal Village Adoption Program
Your Company has y

distributed clothes to 150 tribals in Pillur village

y

sponsored higher education for one tribal student.

y

distributed educational books to Pillur GTR School students.

y

equipped the villagers with the supplies needed to further eco-tourism.

y

provided a computer to the village school.

y

provided drinking water supply by setting up a borewell in the village.
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Annexure D

Form No. AOC-2

(Pursuant to clause (h) of sub-section (3) of Section 134 of the Act and Rule 8 (2) of the Companies
(Accounts) Rules, 2014)
Form for disclosure of particulars of contracts/arrangements entered into by the company with related
parties referred to in sub-section (1) of section 188 of the Companies Act, 2013 including certain arm’s
length transactions under third proviso thereto.
1. Details of contracts or arrangements or transactions not at arm’s length basis
All transactions entered into by the Company during the year with related parties were on an arm’s
length basis.
2. Details of material contracts or arrangement or transactions at arm’s length basis
The transactions entered into by the Company during the year with related parties on an arm’s length
basis were not material in nature.
For and on behalf of the board

								
Place: Mumbai 					
Date: 26.05.2020		

			

Chairman
K. R. Kamath
DIN: 01715073
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Annexure E

SECRETARIAL AUDIT REPORT
for the financial year ended March 31, 2020
[Pursuant to section 204(1) of the Companies Act, 2013 and rule No.9 of the Companies
(Appointment and Remuneration Personnel) Rules, 2014]
To,
The Members,
NEW OPPORTUNITY CONSULTANCY PRIVATE LIMITED
7th FLOOR, NO. 707/708, CYBER ONE, PLOT NO 4&6
SECTOR 30A, VASHI NAVI MUMBAI – 400703.

We have conducted the secretarial audit of the compliance of applicable statutory provisions and the
adherence to good corporate practices of M/s. NEW OPPORTUNITY CONSULTANCY PRIVATE LIMITED (CIN:
U93090MH2014PTC252078) (hereinafter called “the Company”).
The Secretarial Audit was conducted in a manner that provided us a reasonable basis for evaluating the
corporate conducts / statutory compliances and expressing our opinion thereon.
Based on our verification of the Company’s books, papers, minute books, forms and returns filed and
other records maintained by the company and also the information provided by the Company, its officers,
agents and authorized representatives during the conduct of secretarial audit, We hereby report that in our
opinion, the company has, during the audit period covering the financial year ended on 31st March 2020,
has complied with the statutory provisions listed hereunder and also that the Company has proper Boardprocesses and compliance-mechanism in place to the extent, in the manner and subject to the reporting
made hereinafter.
We have examined the books, papers, minute books, forms and returns filed and other records maintained
by the Company for the financial year ended on 31st March 2020 according to the provisions of:
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The Companies Act, 2013 (the Act) and the rules made thereunder;
The Securities Contracts (Regulation) Act, 1956 (‘SCRA’) and the rules made thereunder as applicable to the
Company;
The Depositories Act, 1996 and the Regulations and Bye-laws framed thereunder as applicable to the
Company.
The Foreign Exchange Management Act, 1999 and the rules and regulations made thereunder. The Company
does not have any Foreign Direct Investment, External Commercial Borrowings or other credit facilities or
Overseas Direct Investment.
The following regulations and guidelines prescribed under the Securities and Exchange Board of India Act,
1992 (‘SEBI Act’):
a. The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Registrars to an Issue and Share Transfer Agents) Regulations,
1993 regarding the Companies Act and dealing with client.
b. The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations,
2015;
c. The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Issue and Listing of Debt Securities) Regulations, 2008;
We have also examined compliance with the applicable clauses of the Secretarial Standards issued by
The Institute of Company Secretaries of India.
The Company has entered into a listing agreement with BSE Ltd. in respect of the non-convertible debentures
issued by the Company. The Company has complied with the requirements of the said listing agreement.
During the period under review the Company has complied with the provisions of the applicable Acts,
Rules, Regulations, Guidelines, Standards, etc. as mentioned above.
WE FURTHER REPORT THAT, during the audit period there were no actions / events in pursuance of:
The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Substantial Acquisition of Shares and Takeovers) Regulations, 2011;
The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Prohibition of Insider Trading) Regulations, 1992;
The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Issue of Capital and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2009;
The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Share Based Employee Benefits) Regulation, 2014;
The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Delisting of equity shares regulations), 2009
The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Buyback of Securities) Regulations, 1998
WE FURTHER REPORT that the Board of Directors of the Company is duly constituted with proper balance of
Executive, Non-Executive Directors and Independent Directors. No changes took place in the composition of
the Board of Directors during the period under review.
Adequate notice is given to all the Directors to schedule the Board Meetings, agenda and detailed notes on
agenda were sent at least seven days in advance, and a system exists for seeking and obtaining further
information and clarifications on the agenda items before the meeting and for meaningful participation at
the meeting.
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WE FURTHER REPORT that, based on the information provided by the Company, its officers and authorized
representatives during the conduct of the audit, and also on the review of quarterly compliance reports
taken on record by the Board of Directors of the Company, in our opinion, adequate systems and processes
and control mechanism exist in the Company to monitor and ensure compliance with applicable general
laws.
As per the minutes of the meetings duly recorded and signed by the Chairman, the decisions of the Board
were taken unanimously and no dissenting views have been recorded.
WE FURTHER REPORT that there are adequate systems and processes in the company commensurate with
the size and operations of the company to monitor and ensure compliance with applicable laws, rules,
regulations and guidelines.
WE FURTHER REPORT that, during the audit period, the Company has redeemed 440 Listed Non-Convertible
Debentures (NCDs) issued to AAV SARL aggregating to ` 4.4 Crore on 24th August 19. After the full redemption
of NCDs, the Company has delisted from BSE.

									

For S Sandeep & Associates
Company Secretaries

Place: Chennai									
Date: 26/05/2020									

S. Sandeep

UDIN: F005853B000284417
FCS No.: 5853; CP No.: 5987
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Moulding

the Way
Outside Lakshmi’s house is the refreshing smell of mud,
just like before the onset of rain. Lakshmi’s smile is just
as sweet and energizing. With great enthusiasm, she
leads us to her pottery set up.
Lakshmi availed a loan through New Opportunity to
set up her own business, with an aim to support her
family’s financial needs. She spends most of her day
moulding clay lamps and pots on her wheel and selling
them in nearby markets. Her income helps finance
her children’s school expenses. Lakshmi is a proud
entrepreneur, moulding her own path for herself and her
family!
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Standalone Financial

Statements

66

Independent

Auditor’s
Report

To the Members of New Opportunity Consultancy
Private Limited
Report on the Audit of the Standalone Ind AS
Financial Statements
Opinion
We have audited the accompanying Standalone
Ind AS Financial Statements of New Opportunity
Consultancy Private Limited (“the Company”),
which comprise the Balance Sheet as at March 31,
2020, the Statement of Profit and Loss (including
Other Comprehensive Income), the Statement
of Changes in Equity and the Statement of Cash
Flows for the year then ended and notes to the
Standalone Ind AS Financial Statements including
a summary of significant accounting policies and
other explanatory information (hereinafter referred
to as “Standalone Ind AS Financial Statements”).
In our opinion and to the best of our information
and according to the explanations given to us, the
aforesaid Standalone Ind AS Financial Statements
give the information required by the Companies
Act, 2013 (“the Act”) in the manner so required and
give a true and fair view in conformity with the
accounting principles generally accepted in India
including the Indian Accounting Standards (“Ind AS”)
prescribed under section 133 of the Act, of the state
of affairs of the Company as at March 31, 2020,

its profit (including other comprehensive income),
changes in equity and its cash flows for the year
ended on that date.
Basis for Opinion
We conducted our audit in accordance with
Standards on Auditing (SAs) specified under section
143(10) of the Act. Our responsibilities under those
Standards are further described in the Auditor’s
Responsibilities for the Audit of the Standalone Ind
AS Financial Statements section of our report. We
are independent of the Company in accordance
with the Code of Ethics issued by the Institute of
Chartered Accountants of India (“ICAI”) together
with the ethical requirements that are relevant
to our audit of the Standalone Ind AS Financial
Statements under the provisions of the Act and
Rules thereunder, and we have fulfilled our other
ethical responsibilities in accordance with these
requirements and the Code of Ethics. We believe that
the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient
and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion
on the Standalone Ind AS Financial Statements.
Emphasis of Matter
We draw attention to Note No. 31 to the
accompanying Standalone Ind AS Financial
Statements which explains the uncertainties and
the management’s evaluation of the financial
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impact on the Company due to lockdown and
other restrictions on account of COVID-19 pandemic
situation, for which a definitive assessment of the
impact is highly dependent upon the circumstances
as they evolve in the subsequent period.
Our opinion is not modified in respect of this matter.
Other Information
The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible
for the other information. The other information
comprises the information included in the
Company’s Directors’ Report, but does not include
the Standalone Ind AS Financial Statements,
Consolidated Ind AS Financial Statements and our
auditor’s report thereon.
Our opinion on the Standalone Ind AS Financial
Statements does not cover the other information
and we do not express any form of assurance
conclusion thereon.
In connection with our audit of the Standalone
Ind AS Financial Statements, our responsibility is
to read the other information and, in doing so,
consider whether the other information is materially
inconsistent with the Standalone Ind AS Financial
Statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit
or otherwise appears to be materially misstated.
If, based on the work we have performed, we
conclude that there is a material misstatement of
this other information, we are required to report
that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.
Responsibilities of Management and Those Charged
with Governance for the Standalone Ind AS Financial
Statements
The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible
for the matters stated in section 134(5) of the
Act with respect to the preparation of these
Standalone Ind AS Financial Statements that give a
true and fair view of the financial position, financial
performance (including other comprehensive
income), changes in equity and cash flows of
the Company in accordance with the accounting
principles generally accepted in India, including Ind
AS prescribed under section 133 of the Act, read
with the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards)
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Rules, 2015, as amended. This responsibility also
includes maintenance of adequate accounting
records in accordance with the provisions of the
Act for safeguarding of the assets of the Company
and for preventing and detecting frauds and
other irregularities; selection and application of
appropriate accounting policies; making judgments
and estimates that are reasonable and prudent;
and design, implementation and maintenance
of adequate internal financial controls, that were
operating effectively for ensuring the accuracy and
completeness of the accounting records, relevant to
the preparation and presentation of the Standalone
Ind AS Financial Statements that give a true and
fair view and are free from material misstatement,
whether due to fraud or error.
In preparing the Standalone Ind AS Financial
Statements, management is responsible for
assessing the Company’s ability to continue as a
going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters
related to going concern and using the going
concern basis of accounting unless management
either intends to liquidate the Company or to cease
operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do
so.
Those Board of Directors are also responsible
for overseeing the Company’s financial reporting
process.
Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the
Standalone Ind AS Financial Statements
Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance
about whether the Standalone Ind AS Financial
Statements as a whole are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to
issue an auditor’s report that includes our opinion.
Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance,
but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in
accordance with SAs will always detect a material
misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can
arise from fraud or error and are considered
material if, individually or in the aggregate, they
could reasonably be expected to influence the
economic decisions of users taken on the basis of
this Standalone Ind AS Financial Statements. As part
of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise
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professional judgment and maintain professional
skepticism throughout the audit. We also:
y

y

Identify and assess the risks of material
misstatement of the Standalone Ind AS Financial
Statements, whether due to fraud or error, design
and perform audit procedures responsive to
those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is
sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for
our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material
misstatement resulting from fraud is higher
than for one resulting from error, as fraud may
involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions,
misrepresentations, or the override of internal
control.
Obtain an understanding of internal control
relevant to the audit in order to design audit
procedures that are appropriate in the
circumstances. Under section 143(3)(i) of the
Act, we are also responsible for expressing our
opinion on whether the Company has adequate
internal financial controls with reference to
financial statements in place and the operating
effectiveness of such controls.

y

Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting
policies used and the reasonableness of
accounting estimates and related disclosures
made by management.

y

Conclude on the appropriateness of the
management’s use of the going concern basis
of accounting and, based on the audit evidence
obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists
related to events or conditions that may cast
significant doubt on the Company’s ability to
continue as a going concern. If we conclude that
a material uncertainty exists, we are required
to draw attention in our auditor’s report to
the related disclosures in the Standalone Ind
AS Financial Statements or, if such disclosures
are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our
conclusions are based on the audit evidence
obtained up to the date of our auditor’s report.
However, future events or conditions may cause
the Company to cease to continue as a going
concern.

y

Evaluate the overall presentation, structure

and content of the Standalone Ind AS Financial
Statements, including the disclosures, and
whether the Standalone Ind AS Financial
Statements represent the underlying transactions
and events in a manner that achieves fair
presentation.
We communicate with those charged with
governance regarding, among other matters,
the planned scope and timing of the audit and
significant audit findings, including any significant
deficiencies in internal control that we identify
during our audit.
We also provide those charged with governance with
a statement that we have complied with relevant
ethical requirements regarding independence, and
to communicate with them all relationships and
other matters that may reasonably be thought to
bear on our independence, and where applicable,
related safeguards.
Other matter
Due to severe health hazard associated with
COVID-19 and also the consequential nationwide lockdown from March 25, 2020 till May
31, 2020, announced by the government, it was
impracticable for us to physically verify certain
documents pertaining to revenue and expense
transactions nor the management could facilitate
scan copies of the same due to its voluminous
nature. Therefore, we have performed and relied on
other related alternative audit procedures to obtain
comfort over the completeness and accuracy of
these transactions.
Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements
(1) As required by the Companies (Auditor’s Report)
Order, 2016 (“the Order”) issued by the Central
Government of India in terms of section 143(11)
of the Act, we give in “Annexure 1”, a statement
on the matters specified in paragraphs 3 and 4
of the Order, to the extent applicable.
(2) As required by section 143(3) of the Act, we
report that:
a. We have sought and obtained all the
information and explanations which to the
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best of our knowledge and belief were
necessary for the purposes of our audit;

the operating effectiveness of such controls,
refer to our separate report in “Annexure 2”;

b. In our opinion, proper books of account as
required by law have been kept by the
Company so far as it appears from our
examination of those books;

h. With respect to the other matter to be
included in the Auditor’s Report in accordance
with the requirements of section 197(16) of
the Act:

c. The Balance Sheet, the Statement of Profit
and Loss (including Other Comprehensive
Income), the Statement of Changes in Equity
and the Statement of Cash Flows dealt with
by this report are in agreement with the
books of account;

In our opinion and to the best of our
information
and
according
to
the
explanations given to us, the Company
being a private company, section 197 of the
Act related to the managerial remuneration
is not applicable;

d. In our opinion, the aforesaid Standalone Ind
AS Financial Statements comply with the Ind
AS prescribed under section 133 of the Act
read with the Companies (Indian Accounting
Standards) Rules, 2015, as amended;
e. The matter described under the Emphasis
of Matter section above, in our opinion, may
have an adverse effect on the functioning of
the Company;
f.

On the basis of the written representations
received from the directors as on March 31,
2020, and taken on record by the Board of
Directors, none of the directors is disqualified
as on March 31, 2020 from being appointed
as a director in terms of section 164(2) of
the Act;

g. With respect to the adequacy of the
internal financial controls with reference to
financial statements of the Company and

i.

With respect to the other matters to be
included in the Auditor’s Report in accordance
with Rule 11 of the Companies (Audit and
Auditors) Rules, 2014, in our opinion and to
the best of our information and according to
the explanations given to us:

(i) The Company has disclosed the impact of
pending litigations on its financial position in
its Standalone Ind AS Financial Statements –
Refer Note No. 30 on Contingent Liabilities to
the Standalone Ind AS Financial Statements;
(ii) The Company did not have any long-term
contracts including derivative contracts.
Hence, the question of any material
foreseeable losses does not arise; and
(iii) There were no amounts which were required
to be transferred to the Investor Education
and Protection Fund by the Company.

For Haribhakti & Co. LLP
Chartered Accountants
ICAI Firm Registration No.103523W / W100048
Snehal Shah
Partner
Place: Mumbai
Date: May 26, 2020
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ANNEXURE 1 TO THE INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
[Referred to in paragraph 1 under ‘Report on Other
Legal and Regulatory Requirements’ section in the
Independent Auditor’s Report of even date to the
members of New Opportunity Consultancy Private
Limited (“the Company”) on the Standalone Ind AS
Financial Statements for the year ended March 31,
2020]
Based on the audit procedures performed for
the purpose of reporting a true and fair view on
the Standalone Ind AS Financial Statements of
the Company and taking into consideration the
information and explanations given to us and the
books of account and other records examined by
us in the normal course of audit, we report that:
(i)

(a) The Company has maintained proper
records showing full particulars, including
quantitative details and situation of fixed
assets.
(b) The Company has a program of physical
verification of fixed assets to cover all the
items in a phased manner over a period
of three years, which, in our opinion, is
reasonable having regard to the size of
the Company and the nature of its assets.
However, the fixed assets of the Company
have not been physically verified by the
management during the year and as
such, we cannot comment on material
discrepancies existing, if any.
(c) The Company does not have any
immovable property and hence, reporting
under this clause is not applicable.

(ii)		

The Company is in the business of providing
services and does not have any physical
inventories. Accordingly, clause 3(ii) of the
Order is not applicable to the Company.

(iii)		

The Company has not granted any loans,
secured or unsecured to companies, firms,
Limited Liability Partnerships or other
parties covered in the register maintained
under section 189 of the Act. Accordingly,
clause 3(iii) of the Order is not applicable
to the Company.

(iv)		 The Company has complied with the
provisions of sections 185 and 186 of the
Act in respect of grant of loans, making
investments and providing guarantees
and securities, as applicable.
(v)		

In our opinion, the Company has not
accepted any deposits from the public
within the provisions of sections 73 to 76 of
the Act and the rules framed there under.
Accordingly, the provisions of clause 3(v)
of the Order are not applicable.

(vi)		

The Central Government has not prescribed
the maintenance of cost records for any of
the products of the Company under subsection (1) of section 148 of the Act and
the rules framed there under.

(vii) (a) The Company is regular in depositing
with appropriate authorities, undisputed
statutory dues including provident fund,
employees’ state insurance, income tax,
goods and services tax (GST), customs
duty, cess and any other material
statutory dues applicable to it, except that
there have been slight delay in few cases.
During the year 2017-18, sales tax, value
added tax, service tax and duty of excise
subsumed in GST and are accordingly
reported under GST.
		 No undisputed amounts payable in
respect of provident fund, employees’
state insurance, income tax, GST, customs
duty, cess and any other material statutory
dues applicable to it, were outstanding, at
the year end, for a period of more than
six months from the date they became
payable.
(b) There are no dues with respect to income
tax, sales tax, service tax, value added
tax, GST, customs duty, excise duty which
have not been deposited on account of
any dispute.
(viii)		

During the year, the Company has not
defaulted in repayment of loans or
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borrowings to bank. The Company did not
have any outstanding loans or borrowings
from financial institution, government or
dues to debenture holders.

of Act, where applicable, and the details
have been disclosed in the Standalone Ind
AS Financial Statements as required by the
applicable accounting standards.

(ix)		

The Company has prima facie utilized
the moneys raised by way of term loans
during the year for the purposes for which
they were raised. The Company has not
raised money by way of initial public issue
offer or further public offer (including debt
instruments).

(xiv)		 The Company has not made any
preferential allotment or private placement
of shares or fully or partly convertible
debentures during the year. Accordingly,
clause 3(xiv) of the Order is not applicable
to the Company.

(x)		

During the course of our examination of
the books and records of the Company,
carried out in accordance with the
generally accepted auditing practices in
India, and according to the information and
explanations given to us, we have neither
come across any instance of fraud by the
Company or any fraud on the Company
by its officers or employees, noticed or
reported during the year, nor have we
been informed of any such instance by the
management.

(xi)		 As the Company is a private limited
company, the provisions of section 197
read with Schedule V to the Act are not
applicable to the Company. Accordingly,
clause 3(xi) of the Order is not applicable
to the Company.
(xii)		

The Company has not entered into any
non-cash transactions with directors or
persons connected with them during the
year and hence provisions of section 192
of the Act are not applicable.

(xvi)		 The Company is not required to be
registered under section 45-IA of the
Reserve Bank of India Act, 1934.

For Haribhakti & Co. LLP
Chartered Accountants
ICAI Firm Registration No. 103523W / W100048

Snehal Shah

In our opinion, the Company is not a Nidhi
Company. Accordingly, clause 3(xii) of the
Order is not applicable to the Company.

(xiii)		 All transactions entered into by the
Company with the related parties are in
compliance with sections 177 and 188
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ANNEXURE 2 TO THE INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
[Referred to in paragraph 2(g) under ‘Report on
Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements’ section
in our Independent Auditor’s Report of even date
to the members of New Opportunity Consultancy
Private Limited on the Standalone Ind AS Financial
Statements for the year ended March 31, 2020]
Report on the Internal Financial Controls with
reference to Financial Statements under clause (i) of
sub-section 3 of section 143 of the Companies Act,
2013 (“the Act”)
We have audited the internal financial controls
with reference to financial statements of New
Opportunity Consultancy Private Limited (“the
Company”) as of March 31, 2020 in conjunction
with our audit of the Standalone Ind AS Financial
Statements of the Company for the year ended on
that date.
Management’s Responsibility for Internal Financial
Controls
The Company’s management is responsible for
establishing and maintaining internal financial
controls based on the internal control with reference
to financial statements criteria established by the
Company considering the essential components of
internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit
of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting
(the “Guidance Note”) issued by the Institute of
Chartered Accountants of India (“ICAI”). These
responsibilities include the design, implementation
and maintenance of adequate internal financial
controls that were operating effectively for ensuring
the orderly and efficient conduct of its business,
including adherence to Company’s policies, the
safeguarding of its assets, the prevention and
detection of frauds and errors, the accuracy and
completeness of the accounting records, and the
timely preparation of reliable financial information,
as required under the Act.
Auditors’ Responsibility
Our responsibility is to express an opinion on
the Company's internal financial controls with
reference to financial statements based on our
audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with

the Guidance Note and the Standards on Auditing
specified under Section 143(10) of the Act to the
extent applicable to an audit of internal financial
controls, both issued by the ICAI. Those Standards
and the Guidance Note require that we comply
with ethical requirements and plan and perform
the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about
whether adequate internal financial controls with
reference to financial statements was established
and maintained and if such controls operated
effectively in all material respects.
Our audit involves performing procedures to
obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the
internal financial controls with reference to financial
statements and their operating effectiveness.
Our audit of internal financial controls with
reference to financial statements included obtaining
an understanding of internal financial controls with
reference to financial statements, assessing the risk
that a material weakness exists, and testing and
evaluating the design and operating effectiveness
of internal controls based on the assessed risk.
The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s
judgement, including the assessment of the risks
of material misstatement of the Standalone Ind AS
Financial Statements, whether due to fraud or error.
We believe that the audit evidence we have
obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide
a basis for our audit opinion on the Company’s
internal financial controls with reference to financial
statements.
Meaning of Internal Financial Controls with reference
to Financial Statements
A company's internal financial control with reference
to financial statements is a process designed
to provide reasonable assurance regarding the
reliability of financial reporting and the preparation
of financial statements for external purposes in
accordance with generally accepted accounting
principles. A company's internal financial control
with reference to financial statements includes
those policies and procedures that (1) pertain to
the maintenance of records that, in reasonable
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detail, accurately and fairly reflect the transactions
and dispositions of the assets of the company; (2)
provide reasonable assurance that transactions
are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of
financial statements in accordance with generally
accepted accounting principles, and that receipts
and expenditures of the company are being
made only in accordance with authorisations of
management and directors of the company; and (3)
provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention
or timely detection of unauthorised acquisition, use,
or disposition of the company's assets that could
have a material effect on the financial statements.
Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls
with reference to Financial Statements
Because of the inherent limitations of internal
financial controls with reference to financial
statements, including the possibility of collusion or
improper management override of controls, material
misstatements due to error or fraud may occur and
not be detected. Also, projections of any evaluation
of the internal financial controls with reference to
financial statements to future periods are subject
to the risk that the internal financial controls with
reference to financial statements may become
inadequate because of changes in conditions, or
that the degree of compliance with the policies or
procedures may deteriorate.

statements were operating effectively as at March
31, 2020, based on the internal control with reference
to financial statements criteria established by the
Company considering the essential components of
internal controls stated in the Guidance Note issued
by the ICAI.
We have included an Emphasis of Matter (EOM)
section in our Independent Auditor’s Report to
highlight the impact of COVID-19 assessment on
the Standalone Ind AS Financial Statements of the
Company for the year ended March 31, 2020.
Our opinion on the Company’s internal financial
controls with reference to financial statements is
not affected by this EOM since no concerns have
been noted with regard to the design and operating
effectiveness of internal controls.

For Haribhakti & Co. LLP
Chartered Accountants
ICAI Firm Registration No.103523W / W100048

Snehal Shah
Partner
Membership No. 048539

Opinion
In our opinion, the Company has, in all material
respects, adequate internal financial controls
with reference to financial statements and such
internal financial controls with reference to financial
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Tailor-made

for
Success

There’s a constant buzz of machines in
Pushpa’s tailoring shop, which is set in a busy
street at Ondiputhur, Tamil Nadu. Pushpa is
busy at work, greeting new customers and
also coordinating between her employees.
It was only a year ago when Pushpa took a
loan through New Opportunity and enrolled
for a free tailoring course through our partner
institute. Post her training, she set up a small
tailoring shop next to her house. Her neat work
helped her develop a steady stream of clients
and generate consistent income. This allowed
her to expand her business further- and
set up a bigger shop in a busy intersection!
Pushpa cannot be prouder. She has not only
managed to generate a steady income for her
household, but is also supporting two families
through her employees!
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Balance Sheet as at 31st March, 2020
Particulars
ASSETS
Non-current assets
(a) Property, Plant and Equipment
(b) Capital work - in - progress
(c) Intangible assets
(d) Investment in subsidiary company
(e) Financial assets
- Loans
- Other financial assets
(f) Deferred tax assets (net)
(g) Non current tax assets (net)
(h) Other non-current assets
Total non-current assets
Current assets
(a) Financial assets
(i) Trade receivables
(ii) Cash and cash equivalents
(iii) Bank balances other than (ii) above
(iv) Loans
(v) Other financial assets
(b) Other current assets
Total current assets
Total Assets
EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
Equity
(a) Equity Share capital
(b) Other Equity
Total equity
Liabilities
Non-current liabilities
Financial liabilities
- Borrowings
Total non-current liabilities
Current liabilities
(a) Financial liabilities
- Other financial liabilities
(b) Other current liabilities
(c) Provisions
(d) Current tax liabilities (net)
Total current liabilities
Total liabilities
Total Equity and Liabilities

Note No.

As at
31st March, 2020

2
2
3
4

(` in lakhs)

As at
31st March, 2019

640.14
16.50
180.50

474.07
20.85
180.50

5A
5B
6A
6B
7

6.78
4,916.20
122.70
100.40
5,983.22

4,708.55
169.62
30.76
5,584.35

8
9
10
11
12
13

1,793.50
613.74
4,916.07
32.32
461.58
132.82
7,950.03
13,933.25

1,502.41
1,357.14
1,916.88
62.34
288.93
79.71
5,207.41
10,791.76

14
15

535.75
8,716.52
9,252.27

535.75
5,087.78
5,623.53

16

2,508.58
2,508.58

1,769.51
1,769.51

17
18
19
20

1,234.38
587.46
350.55
2,172.39
4,680.97
13,933.25

1,989.73
652.71
570.15
186.14
3,398.73
5,168.24
10,791.76

The accompanying notes 1 to 45 are an integral part of the financial statements.
In terms of our report of even date attached

For Haribhakti & Co. LLP
For and on behalf of the Board of Directors		
Chartered Accountants			
ICAI Firm Registration No.103523W/W100048			
			
Snehal Shah
K.R. Kamath
Ganesh Ramanand Rao
Partner
Chairman
Managing Director & CEO
Membership No. 048539
DIN: 01715073
DIN: 02302989
R. Loganathan
Chief Financial Officer
		
Place : Mumbai
Date : 26th May, 2020
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Company Secretary
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Date : 26th May, 2020		
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Statement of Profit and Loss for the year ended 31st March, 2020
Note
No.

Particulars
I.

Revenue from operations

21
22

II.

Other Income

III.

Total Income (I + II)

IV.

Expenses:

For the year ended
31st March, 2020
17,151.47

(` in lakhs)

For the year ended
31st March, 2019
13,666.05

105.09

135.60

17,256.56

13,801.65

Employee benefits expense

23

9,115.07

6,031.42

Finance costs

24

526.88

272.70

Depreciation and amortization expense

25

216.63

119.66

Other expenses

26

Total Expenses
V.

Profit before tax ( III - IV)

VI.

Tax Expense
(2) Deferred Tax

VIII.

Other comprehensive income

4,849.92

4,164.93

1,222.00

1,106.69

6A

(3) Taxation for earlier years
Profit for the year (V - VI)

3,212.94
9,636.72

27

(1) Current Tax

VII.

2,548.06
12,406.64

39.18

70.44

(17.00)

69.93

3,605.74

2,917.87

30.73

(12.93)

Items that will not be reclassified to profit or loss (net of
tax expense)
- Remeasurement of post employment benefit obligations
- Income tax relating to these items

(7.73)

3.73

Total other comprehensive income

23.00

(9.20)

3,628.74

2,908.67

67.30

54.46

IX.

Total comprehensive income (VII+VIII)

X.

Earnings per equity share of face value of ` 10 each

28

- Basic and Diluted

The accompanying notes 1 to 45 are an integral part of the financial statements.
In terms of our report of even date attached
For Haribhakti & Co. LLP
For and on behalf of the Board of Directors		
Chartered Accountants			
ICAI Firm Registration No.103523W/W100048			
			
Snehal Shah
K.R. Kamath
Ganesh Ramanand Rao
Partner
Chairman
Managing Director & CEO
Membership No. 048539
DIN: 01715073
DIN: 02302989
R. Loganathan
Chief Financial Officer
		
Place : Mumbai
Date : 26th May, 2020

Mona Jeetendra Thakkar
Company Secretary
ACS M. No: A43836

Place : Mumbai		
Date : 26th May, 2020		
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Statement of changes in equity for the year ended 31st March, 2020
A. Equity Share Capital
Particulars
` in lakhs
Balance as at 1st April, 2018
535.75
Shares issued during the year
Balance as at 31st March, 2019
535.75
Shares issued during the year
Balance as at 31st March, 2020
535.75
								
B. Other equity 					
Reserves and Surplus
Debenture
Particulars
Securities
General
Redemption
Premium
Reserve
Reserve
Balance as at 1st April, 2018
123.75
220.00
Profit for the year 2018-19
Other Comprehensive income (net
of tax)
Balance as at 31st March, 2019
123.75
220.00
Profit for the year 2019-20
Transfer to General Reserve
(220.00)
220.00
Other Comprehensive income (net
of tax)
Balance as at 31st March, 2020
123.75
220.00

(` in lakhs)
Retained
Earnings

Total

1,835.36
2,917.87

2,179.11
2,917.87

(9.20)

(9.20)

4,744.02
3,605.74

5,087.78
3,605.74
-

23.00

23.00

8,372.77

8,716.52

The accompanying notes 1 to 45 are an integral part of the financial statements.				
In terms of our report of even date attached					
For Haribhakti & Co. LLP
For and on behalf of the Board of Directors		
Chartered Accountants			
ICAI Firm Registration No.103523W/W100048			
			
Snehal Shah
K.R. Kamath
Ganesh Ramanand Rao
Partner
Chairman
Managing Director & CEO
Membership No. 048539
DIN: 01715073
DIN: 02302989
R. Loganathan
Chief Financial Officer
		
Place : Mumbai
Date : 26th May, 2020
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Company Secretary
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Statement of cash flows for the year ended 31st March, 2020
Particulars

For the year ended
31st March, 2020
` in lakhs

For the year ended
31st March, 2019

` in lakhs

` in lakhs

` in lakhs

A. Cash Flows from Operating Activities
Profit before tax for the year

4,849.92

4,164.93

Adjustments for:
Dividend Income

-

(5.12)

Depreciation and amortization expense

216.63

119.66

Finance Cost

526.88

272.70

3.20

-

-

44.73

341.30

98.45

0.51

-

Loss on sale of assets
Liability no longer payable written back
Provision for expected credit loss on EMIs
Provision for expected credit loss on Trade Receivable
Loss on sale of Mutual Fund Units

-

Operating profit before working capital changes

1,088.52

0.01

5,938.44

530.43
4,695.36

Adjustment for - (Increase)/decrease in trade receivables
- (Increase)/decrease in Non-current and current
financial assets
- (Increase)/decrease in Other non-current and current
assets
- (Decrease)/increase in non-current and current
financial liabilities
- (Decrease)/increase in other non-current and current
liabilities
- (Decrease)/increase in other non-current and current
provisions
Cash generated from operations

(291.60)

(297.71)

(3,355.77)

(4,343.32)

(53.03)

(59.03)

(724.09)

(231.03)

(65.26)

185.28

(530.19) (5,019.93)

142.17

(4,603.64)

918.51

91.72

(1,474.54)

(909.55)

(556.03)

(817.82)

(317.59)

(298.79)

0.85

-

(Purchase)/sale of Investments

-

22.62

Dividend Income

-

5.12

(316.74)

(271.05)

Income taxes paid (net of refunds)
Net cash generated from/ (used in) operating activities
- (A)
B. Cash Flows from Investing Activities
Purchase of Property, Plant & Equipment and Intangible
Assets
Proceeds from sale of Property, Plant & Equipment

Net cash used in investing activities - (B)
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Statement of cash flows for the year ended 31st March, 2020 (Contd.)
For the year ended
31st March, 2020

Particulars

` in lakhs

For the year ended
31st March, 2019

` in lakhs

` in lakhs

` in lakhs

C. Cash Flow from Financing Activities
Proceeds from non-current borrowings (Refer Note 42)

1,532.56

1,880.00

Repayment of non-current borrowings (Refer Note 42)

(977.44)

(451.86)

145.76

-

(571.51)

(258.23)

129.37

1,169.91

Net increase/(decrease) in cash and cash equivalents
(A+B+C)

(743.40)

81.03

Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the year

1,357.14

1,276.11

613.74

1,357.14

25.00

0.01

588.74

1,257.13

-

100.00

613.74

1,357.14

Overdraft facility from Bank
Interest paid
Net cash generated from / (used in) financing activities
- (C)

Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year
Components of Cash & Cash Equivalents (Refer Note 9)
Cash
Balances With Bank:
in current accounts
in fixed deposit accounts with maturity less than 3
months

The above cash flow has been prepared under the "Indirect Method" as set out in Indian Accounting
Standard (Ind AS) 7- Statement of Cash Flows.				
The accompanying notes 1 to 45 are an integral part of the financial statements.
In terms of our report of even date attached				
For Haribhakti & Co. LLP
For and on behalf of the Board of Directors		
Chartered Accountants			
ICAI Firm Registration No.103523W/W100048			
			
Snehal Shah
K.R. Kamath
Ganesh Ramanand Rao
Partner
Chairman
Managing Director & CEO
Membership No. 048539
DIN: 01715073
DIN: 02302989
R. Loganathan
Chief Financial Officer
		
Place : Mumbai
Date : 26th May, 2020

80

Mona Jeetendra Thakkar
Company Secretary
ACS M. No: A43836

Place : Mumbai		
Date : 26th May, 2020		

Corporate Overview | Management Report | Financial Statements

Notes to Standalone Financial Statements for the year ended 31st March, 2020
1.

Significant Accounting Policies

i.

Corporate Information:

The Financial Statements have been prepared
& presented on the historical cost basis except
for certain financial instruments measured at
fair values at the end of each reporting period,
as explained in the accounting policies below.

New Opportunity Consultancy Private Limited
(NOCPL) is a Company incorporated under
the Companies Act, 2013. The Company is an
authorised Business Correspondent (BC) of YES
Bank Ltd., RBL Bank Ltd., Reliance Commercial
Finance Ltd., DCB Bank Ltd., IDBI Bank Ltd.,
Utkarsh Small Finance Bank Ltd., Axis Bank Ltd.,
Kotak Mahindra Bank Ltd., Fincare Small Finance
Bank, Equitas Small Finance bank, Northern Arc,
Fed Fin Financial Services Ltd. and Suryoday
Small Finance Bank. The Company is engaged
‘in the business of providing micro loans
under Self Help Group (SHG)/ Joint Liability
Group (JLG) model and other related financial
services on behalf of the banks. The Company
manages a portfolio of ` 1,93,487.32 lakhs (PY
` 1,41,710.23 lakhs) as on the balance sheet
date with regard to the services as a Business
Correspondent.
ii.

General Information and
Compliance with Ind AS:

Statement

Fair value is the price that would be received
to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability
in an orderly transaction between market
participants at the measurement date,
regardless of whether that price is directly
observable or estimated using another
valuation technique. In estimating the fair value
of an asset or a liability, the Company takes
in to account the characteristics of the asset
or liability if market participants would take
those characteristics into account when pricing
the asset or liability at the measurement date.
Fair value for measurement and/or disclosure
purposes in these financial statements is
determined on the basis stated above, except
for Accounting for Leases that are within the
scope of Ind AS 17 and measurements that
have some similarities to fair value but are not
fair value, such as net realizable value in Ind AS
2 or value in use under Ind AS 36. In addition,
for financial reporting purposes, fair value
measurements are categorized into Level 1, 2,
or 3 based on the degree to which the inputs
to the fair value measurements are observable
and the significance of the inputs to the fair
value measurements in its entirety, which are
described as follows:

of

These
financial
statements
(‘financial
statements’) of the Company have been
prepared in accordance with the Indian
Accounting Standards (hereinafter referred
to as the ‘Ind AS’) as notified by Ministry of
Corporate Affairs (‘MCA’) under Section 133 of
the Companies Act, 2013 (‘the Act’) read with
the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards)
Rules, 2015, as amended and other relevant
provisions of the Act. The Company has
uniformly applied the accounting policies
during the periods presented. The financial
statements for the year ended 31st March,
2020 were authorized and approved for issue
by the Board of Directors on 26th May, 2020.
iii.

Historical cost is generally based on the fair
value of the consideration given in exchange
for goods and services.

Basis of Preparation:
The financial statements have been prepared
on going concern basis in accordance with
accounting principles generally accepted in
India.

y

Level 1 inputs are quoted prices (unadjusted) in
active markets for identical assets or liabilities
that the entity can access at the measurement
date;

y

Level 2 inputs are inputs, other than quoted
prices included within level 1, that are
observable for the asset or liability, either
directly or indirectly; and
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Notes to Standalone Financial Statements for the year ended 31st March, 2020
y

iv. Use of Estimates:
The preparation of financial statements is in
conformity with generally accepted accounting
principles which require the management of the
Company to make judgements, estimates and
assumptions that affect the reported amount
of revenues, expenses, assets and liabilities
and disclosure of contingent liabilities at the
end of the reporting period. Although these
estimates are based upon the management’s
best knowledge of current events and
actions, uncertainty about these assumptions
and estimates could result in the outcomes
requiring a material adjustment to the carrying
amounts of assets or liabilities in future period.
Appropriate changes in estimates are made
as management becomes aware of changes
in circumstances surrounding the estimates.
Application of accounting policies that require
significant accounting estimates involving
complex and subjective judgments and the use
of assumptions in these financial statements
have been disclosed separately under the
heading “Significant accounting Judgements,
estimates and assumption”.
v.

Current versus non-current classification
The entity presents assets and liabilities in the
balance sheet based on current/ non-current
classification.
An asset is classified as current, when:

y

It is expected to be realised or intended to be
sold or consumed in normal operating cycle.

y

It is held primarily for the purpose of trading.

y

It is expected to be realised within twelve
months after the reporting period, or

y

It is cash or cash equivalent unless restricted
from being exchanged or used to settle a
liability for at least twelve months after the
reporting period.
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All other assets are classified as non-current.

Level 3 inputs are unobservable inputs for the
asset or liability.

A liability is classified as current, when:
y

It is expected to be settled in normal operating
cycle.

y

It is held primarily for the purpose of trading.

y

It is due to be settled within twelve months
after the reporting period, or

y

There is no unconditional right to defer the
settlement of the liability for at least twelve
months after the reporting period.
The entity classifies all other liabilities as noncurrent.
Deferred tax assets and liabilities are classified
as non-current assets and liabilities.

vi. Foreign currency transactions
Functional and presentation currency
The financial statements are presented in Indian
Rupee in lakhs which is also the functional
and presentation currency of the Company. All
amounts have been rounded-off to the nearest
rupee.
(a) Initial recognition
Foreign currency transactions are recorded
in the functional currency, by applying to the
exchange rate between the functional currency
and the foreign currency at the date of the
transaction.
(b) Conversion
Foreign currency monetary items are converted
to functional currency using the closing rate.
Non-monetary items denominated in a foreign
currency which are carried at historical cost are
reported using the exchange rate at the date
of the transaction; and non-monetary items
which are carried at fair value or any other
similar valuation denominated in a foreign
currency are reported using the exchange rates
that existed when the values were determined.
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Exchange differences arising on monetary items
on settlement, or restatement as at reporting
date, at rates different from those at which
they were initially recorded, are recognized in
the Statement of Profit and Loss in the year in
which they arise.
vii. Property, Plant and Equipment:
Property, Plant and Equipment (PPE), being fixed
assets are tangible items that are held for use in
supply of services or for administrative purposes
and are expected to be used for more than a
period of twelve months. They are measured
at cost less accumulated depreciation and
any accumulated impairment. Cost comprises
of the purchase price including import duties
and non-refundable purchase taxes after
deducting trade discounts and rebates and
any costs attributable to bringing the asset to
the location and condition necessary for it to be
capable of operating in the manner intended
by the Management.
Depreciation on Property, Plant and Equipment
(PPE) are provided under straight line method
as per the useful lives and manner prescribed
under Schedule II to the Companies Act, 2013,
except leasehold buildings under operating
lease arrangements, which are amortised over
the leasehold period.
Where the cost of a part of the PPE is significant
to the total cost of the PPE and if that part of
the PPE has a different useful life than the main
PPE, the useful life of that part is determined
separately for depreciation.
The Company has used the following useful
lives to provide depreciation on its Property,
Plant and Equipment:
Class of Assets

Useful Lives

Improvements to Leasehold Buildings are
amortized as depreciation over the lease
period, which is considered as the estimated
useful life by the management.
The depreciation method applied to an asset
is reviewed at each financial year-end and
if there has been a significant change in the
expected pattern of consumption of future
economic benefits embodied in the asset,
depreciation is charged prospectively to reflect
the changed pattern.
The carrying amount of an item of PPE is
derecognised on disposal or when no future
economic benefits are expected from its use
or disposal. Gains or losses arising from derecognition of Property, Plant and equipment
are measured as the difference between
the net disposal proceeds and the carrying
amount of the asset and are recognized in the
Statement of Profit and Loss when the asset is
de-recognised.
viii. Intangible assets and amortisation:
An intangible asset is an identifiable nonmonetary asset without physical substance.
Intangible assets are recognised only if it is
probable that future economic benefits that
are attributable to the asset will flow to the
enterprise and the cost of the asset can be
measured reliably.
Computer software licenses are capitalised
on the basis of costs incurred to acquire and
bring to use the specific software. Operating
software is capitalised and amortised along
with the related fixed asset.
The Company has used the following useful
lives to amortise its intangible assets:

Furniture and fixtures

10 years

Class of Assets

Useful Lives

Office equipment

5 years

Computer software

3 Years

Computers

3 years
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ix. Impairment of Non-Financial assets:
The Company periodically assesses whether
there is any indication that an asset or a group
of assets comprising a cash generating unit may
be impaired. If any such indication exists, the
Company estimates the recoverable amount of
the asset. For an asset or group of assets that
does not generate largely independent cash
inflows, the recoverable amount is determined
for the cash-generating unit to which the asset
belongs. If such recoverable amount of the
asset or the recoverable amount of the cash
generating unit to which the asset belongs is less
than its carrying amount, the carrying amount
is reduced to its recoverable amount. The
reduction is treated as an impairment loss and is
recognized in the Statement of Profit and Loss. If
at the balance sheet date there is an indication
that if a previously assessed impairment loss
no longer exists, the recoverable amount is
reassessed and the asset is reflected at the
recoverable amount subject to a maximum of
depreciable historical cost. An impairment loss
is reversed only to the extent that the amount of
asset does not exceed the net book value that
would have been determined if no impairment
loss had been recognized.
x.

Other
business
combinations,
involving
entities or businesses are accounted for using
acquisition method.
xi. Financial instruments:
A financial instrument is any contract that gives
rise to a financial asset of one entity and a
financial liability or equity instrument of another
entity.

Financial assets
Initial recognition and measurement
All financial assets are recognized initially at
fair value plus, in the case of financial assets
not recorded at fair value through profit or loss,
transaction costs that are attributable to the
acquisition of the financial asset. Purchases or
sales of financial assets that require delivery
of assets within a time frame established by
regulation or convention in the market place
(regular way trades) are recognized on the
trade date, i.e., the date that the Company
commits to purchase or sell the asset.
Subsequent measurement
For purposes of subsequent measurement,
financial assets are classified in four categories:

y

Debt instruments at amortized cost

y

Debt instruments at fair value through other
comprehensive income (FVTOCI);

y

Debt instruments and equity instruments at fair
value through profit or loss (FVTPL);

y

Equity instruments measured at fair value
through other comprehensive income (FVTOCI).

Business Combinations:
A common control business combination,
involving entities or businesses in which all the
combining entities or businesses are ultimately
controlled by the same party or parties both
before and after the business combination and
where the control is not transitory, is accounted
for using the pooling of interests method.
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1.

Debt instruments at amortized cost:
A ‘debt instrument’ is measured at the amortized
cost if both the following conditions are met:
y

The asset is held within a business model
whose objective is to hold assets for collecting
contractual cash flows, and

y

Contractual terms of the asset give rise on
specified dates to cash flows that are solely
payments of principal and interest (SPPI) on the
principal amount outstanding.
After initial measurement, such financial assets
are subsequently measured at amortized cost
using the effective interest rate (EIR) method.
Amortized cost is calculated by taking into
account any discount or premium on acquisition
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Company makes an irrevocable election to
present in OCI the subsequent changes in the
fair value on an instrument-by-instrument
basis. The classification is made on initial
recognition.

and fees or costs that are an integral part of the
EIR. The EIR amortization is included in finance
income in the profit or loss. The losses arising
from impairment are recognized in the profit or
loss. This category generally applies to trade
and other receivables.

If the Company decides to classify an equity
instrument as at FVOCI, then all fair value
changes on the instrument, excluding dividends,
impairment gains or losses and foreign
exchange gains and losses, are recognized in
the OCI. Any gains or losses on de-recognition
is recognized in the OCI and are not recycled to
the Statement of Profit and Loss.

Debt instrument at FVTOCI:
A ‘debt instrument’ is classified as at the FVTOCI
if both of the following criteria are met:
y

The objective of the business model is achieved
both by collecting contractual cash flows and
selling the financial assets, and

y

The asset’s contractual cash flows represent
SPPI.

Equity instruments included within the FVTPL
category are measured at fair value with all
changes recognized in the Statement of Profit
and Loss.

Debt instruments included within the FVTOCI
category are measured initially as well as
at each reporting date at fair value. Fair
value movements are recognized in the other
comprehensive income (OCI).

De-recognition of Financial Assets:
A financial asset (or, where applicable, a part
of a financial asset or part of a Company
of similar financial assets) is primarily derecognized when:

Debt instrument at FVTPL:
FVTPL is a residual category for debt instruments.
Any debt instrument, which does not meet the
criteria for categorization as at amortized cost
or as FVTOCI, is classified as at FVTPL. Debt
instruments included within the FVTPL category
are measured at fair value with all changes
recognized in the Statement of Profit and Loss.
In addition, the Company may elect to
designate a debt instrument, which otherwise
meets amortized cost or FVTOCI criteria, as at
FVTPL. However, such election is allowed only if
doing so reduces or eliminates a measurement
or recognition inconsistency (referred to as
‘accounting mismatch’).
Equity investments (other than investments in
subsidiaries and joint ventures):
All equity investments within the scope of Ind
AS 109,’ Financial Instruments’, are measured
at fair value either through Statement of Profit
and Loss or other comprehensive income. The

y

The rights to receive cash flows from the asset
have expired, or

y

The Company has transferred its rights to receive
cash flows from the asset or has assumed an
obligation to pay the received cash flows in full
without material delay to a third party under
a ‘pass-through’ arrangement and either (a)
the Company has transferred substantially all
the risks and rewards of the asset, or (b) the
Company has neither transferred nor retained
substantially all the risks and rewards of the
asset, but has transferred control of the asset.
When the Company has transferred its rights to
receive cash flows from an asset or has entered
into a pass-through arrangement, it evaluates
if and to what extent it has retained the risks
and rewards of ownership. When it has neither
transferred nor retained substantially all of the
risks and rewards of the asset, nor transferred
control of the asset, the Company continues to
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current liabilities when the payment is due
within a period of 12 months from the end of
the reporting period. For all trade and other
payables classified as current, the carrying
amounts approximate fair value due to the
short maturity of these instruments. Other
payables falling due after 12 months from the
end of the reporting period are presented as
non-current liabilities and are measured at
amortized cost unless designated as fair value
through profit and loss at the inception.

recognize the transferred asset to the extent
of the Company’s continuing involvement. In
that case, the Company also recognizes an
associated liability. The transferred asset and
the associated liability are measured on a basis
that reflects the rights and obligations that the
Company has retained.
Investment in Subsidiaries, Associates and
Joint ventures:
The Company’s investment in equity instruments
of Subsidiaries are accounted for at cost as per
Ind AS 27.
2.

c.

Financial Liabilities

Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or
loss include financial liabilities held for trading
and financial liabilities designated upon initial
recognition as at fair value through profit or
loss. Gains or losses on liabilities held for trading
are recognized in the profit or loss.

Initial recognition and measurement
All financial liabilities are recognized initially at
fair value and transaction cost (if any) that is
attributable to the acquisition of the financial
liabilities is also adjusted.

Financial guarantee contracts:

Subsequent measurement

A financial guarantee contract is a contract
that requires the issuer to make specified
payments to reimburse the holder for a loss it
incurs because a specified debtor fails to make
payment when due in accordance with the
terms of a debt instrument.

The measurement of financial liabilities depends
on their classification, as described below:
a.

Loans and borrowings
After initial recognition, interest-bearing loans
and borrowings are subsequently measured
at amortized cost using the Effective Interest
Rate (EIR) method. Gains and losses are
recognized in profit or loss when the liabilities
are de-recognized as well as through the
EIR amortization process. Amortized cost is
calculated by taking into account any discount
or premium on acquisition and fees or costs
that are an integral part of the EIR. The EIR
amortization is included as finance costs in the
Statement of Profit and Loss.

b.

Trade and other payables
These amounts represent liabilities for goods
or services provided to the Company which
are unpaid at the end of the reporting period.
Trade and other payables are presented as
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Other financial liabilities at fair value through
profit or loss:

Financial guarantee contracts issued by the
company are initially measured at their fair
values and are subsequently measured at the
higher of:
-

The amount of loss allowance determined in
accordance with impairment requirements of
Ind AS 109; and

-

The amount initially recognized less, when
appropriate, the cumulative amount of income
recognized in accordance with the principles of
Ind AS 18.
De-recognition of Financial Liabilities:
A financial liability is de-recognized when the
obligation under the liability is discharged or
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lifetime expected losses for all contract assets
and / or all trade receivables that do not
constitute a financing transaction. For all other
financial assets, expected credit losses are
measured at an amount equal to the 12-month
expected credit losses or at an amount equal
to the life time expected credit losses, if the
credit risk on the financial asset has increased
significantly since initial recognition.

cancelled or expires. When an existing financial
liability is replaced by another from the same
lender on substantially different terms, or the
terms of an existing liability are substantially
modified, such an exchange or Modification is
treated as the de-recognition of the original
liability and the recognition of a new liability. The
difference in the respective carrying amounts is
recognized in the Statement of Profit or Loss.
3.

Offsetting of financial instruments

xiii. Fair value measurement:
The Company measures financial instruments
at fair value at each balance sheet date.
Fair value is the price that would be received
to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability
in an orderly transaction between market
participants at the measurement date. The
fair value measurement is based on the
presumption that the transaction to sell the
asset or transfer the liability takes place either:

Financial assets and financial liabilities are
offset and the net amount is reported in the
balance sheet if there is a currently enforceable
legal right to offset the recognized amounts and
there is an intention to settle on a net basis,
to realize the assets and settle the liabilities
simultaneously.
4.

Compound Financial Instruments:
A financial instrument that comprises of
both the liability and equity components are
accounted as compound financial instruments.
The fair value of the liability component is
separated from the compound instrument
and is subsequently measured at amortized
cost. The residual value is recognized as equity
component of other financial instrument and is
not re-measured after initial recognition.
The transaction costs related to compound
instruments are allocated to the liability and
equity components in the proportion to the
allocation of gross proceeds. Transaction costs
related to equity component is recognized
directly in equity and the cost related to liability
component is included in the carrying amount
of the liability component and amortized using
effective interest method.

xii. Impairment of Financial assets:
The Company assesses at each date of balance
sheet whether a financial asset or a group of
financial assets is impaired. Ind AS 109 requires
expected credit losses to be measured through
a loss allowance. The Company recognizes

y

In the principal market for the asset or liability,
or

y

In the absence of a principal market, in the most
advantageous market for the asset or liability.
The principal or the most advantageous market
must be accessible by the Company.
The fair value of an asset or a liability is
measured using the assumptions that market
participants would use when pricing the asset
or liability, assuming that market participants
act in their economic best interest.
A fair value measurement of a non-financial
asset takes into account a market participant’s
ability to generate economic benefits by using
the asset in its highest and best use or by selling
it to another market participant that would use
the asset in its highest and best use.
The Company uses valuation techniques that
are appropriate in the circumstances and for
which sufficient data are available to measure
fair value, maximizing the use of relevant
observable inputs and minimizing the use of
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calculating the effective interest rate, the
company estimates the expected cash flows
by considering all the contractual terms of
the financial instrument but does not consider
the expected credit losses. Interest income is
included in finance income in the Statement of
Profit and Loss. The expected cash flows are
reassessed on a yearly basis and changes, if
any, are accounted prospectively.

unobservable inputs. All assets and liabilities for
which fair value is measured or disclosed in the
financial statements are categorized within the
fair value hierarchy, described as follows, based
on the lowest level input that is significant to the
fair value measurement as a whole:
y

Level 1: Quoted (unadjusted) market prices in
active markets for identical assets or liabilities;

y

Level 2: Valuation techniques for which the
lowest level input that is significant to the fair
value measurement is directly or indirectly
observable, or

y

xiv. Revenue Recognition:
Revenue from Operations
Income from product delivery and services
from banks in the capacity of Business
Correspondent are recognized on accrual
when the Company’s performance obligation is
satisfied.
b.

Interest Income:
Interest income, including income arising from
other financial instruments, is recognised using
the effective interest rate (EIR) method. EIR is
the rate that exactly discounts the estimated
future cash payments or receipts over the
expected life of the financial instrument or
a shorter period, where appropriate, to the
gross carrying amount of the financial asset
or to the amortized cost of a financial. When
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Other Operating Revenue:
Other Operating revenue comprises income from
ancillary activities incidental to the operations
of the company and are recognized when the
right to receive the income is established as per
the terms of the contract.

Level 3: Valuation techniques for which the
lowest level input that is significant to the fair
value measurement is unobservable.
For assets and liabilities that are recognized in
the financial statements on a recurring basis,
the Company determines whether transfers
have occurred between levels in the hierarchy
by re-assessing categorization (based on the
lowest level Input that is significant to the fair
value measurement as a whole) at the end of
each reporting period.

a.

c.

d.

Dividend income:
Dividend income from investments is recognised
when the Company’s right to receive payment
has been established (provided that it is
probable that the economic benefits will flow to
the Company and the amount of income can
be measured reliably).

xv. Leases:
Effective April 1, 2019, the Company has
adopted Ind AS 116 “Leases”. Leases are
classified as finance leases whenever the
terms of the lease transfer substantially all
the risks and rewards incidental to ownership
to the lessee. All other leases are classified as
operating leases.
As a lessee
The Company’s lease asset classes primarily
consist of leases for land and buildings.
The Company assesses whether a contract
contains a lease, at inception of the contract.
Ind AS 116 defines a lease as a contract, or a
part of a contract, that conveys the right of use
an asset (the underlying asset) for a period of
time in exchange of consideration. To assess
whether as contract conveys the right to control
the use of an identified asset, the Company
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annual leave and sick leave in the period the
related service is rendered at the undiscounted
amount of the benefits expected to be paid in
exchange for that service.

assesses whether: (i) the contract involves the
use of an identified asset; (ii) the Company has
substantially all of the economic benefits from
use of the asset through the period of the lease
and (iii) the Company has the right to direct the
use of the asset.

Liabilities recognized in respect of shortterm employee benefits are measured at the
undiscounted amount of the benefits expected
to be paid in exchange for the related service.

At the date of commencement of the lease,
the Company recognizes a right-of-use asset
and a corresponding lease liability for all lease
arrangements in which it is a lessee, except for
leases with a term of twelve months or less
(short term leases) and low value leases. For
these short-term and low value leases, the
Company recognizes the lease payments as
an operating expenses on a straight line basis
over the term of the lease.
The right-of-use assets are initially recognized
at cost, which comprises the initial amount of the
lease liability adjusted for any lease payments
made at or prior to the commencement date
of the lease plus any initial direct costs less
any lease incentives. They are subsequently
measured at cost less accumulated depreciation
and impairment losses. Right-of-use assets are
depreciated from the commencement date on
straight line basis over the shorter of the lease
term and useful life of the underlying assets.

Liabilities recognized in respect of other longterm employee benefits are measured at the
present value of the estimated future cash
outflows expected to be made by the Company
in respect of services provided by employees
up to the reporting date.
Compensated leave absences are encashed
by employees at year end and no carry
forward of leave is permitted as per the leave
policy.
2.

Post-Employment Benefits

a.

Defined Contribution Plans
A defined contribution plan is a postemployment benefit plan under which the
Company pays specified contributions to a
separate entity. The Company makes specified
monthly contributions towards Provident Fund
and Superannuation Fund. The Company’s
contribution is recognized as an expense in the
Statement of Profit and Loss during the period
in which the employee renders the related
service.

As a lessor
Lease for which the Company is a lessor
is classified as finance or operating lease.
Whenever the terms of the lease transfer
substantially all the risks and rewards of
ownership to the lessee, the contract is
classified as a finance lease. All other leases
are classified as operating leases. For operating
leases, rental income is recognized on straight
line basis over the term of the relevant lease.
xvi. Employee benefits
1.

Short Term and other long term employee
benefits:
A liability is recognized for benefits accruing to
employees in respect of wages and salaries,

b.

Defined Benefit Plans
For defined benefit retirement plans, the cost
of providing benefits is determined using the
projected unit credit method, with actuarial
valuations being carried out at the end of each
annual reporting period. Re-measurement,
comprising actuarial gains and losses, the
effect of the changes to the asset ceiling (if
applicable) and the return on plan assets
(excluding interest), is reflected immediately in
the statement of financial position with a charge
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extremely rare cases where there is a liability
that cannot be recognized because it cannot
be measured reliably. The company does not
recognize a contingent liability but discloses its
existence in the financial statements.

or credit recognized in OCI in the period in
which they occur. Re-measurement recognized
in other comprehensive income is reflected
immediately in retained earnings and will not
be reclassified to profit or loss. Past service cost
is recognized in profit or loss in the period of a
plan amendment.

Contingent Assets are not recognized but are
disclosed when the inflow of economic benefits
are probable.

xvii. Borrowing costs:
Borrowing costs directly attributable to
acquisition/ construction of qualifying assets
are capitalized until the time all substantial
activities necessary to prepare the qualifying
assets for their intended use are complete. A
qualifying asset is one that necessarily takes
substantial period of time to get ready for its
intended use/ sale. All other borrowing costs
are charged to the Statement of Profit and Loss.

xx. Earnings per share:
Basic earnings per share are calculated by
dividing the net profit or loss for the period
attributable to equity shareholders by the
weighted average number of equity shares
outstanding during the period. Partly paid
equity shares (if any) are treated as a fraction
of an equity share to the extent that they were
entitled to participate in dividends relative to
a fully paid equity share during the reporting
period. The weighted average number of equity
shares outstanding during the period is adjusted
for events of bonus issue; bonus element in a
rights issue to existing shareholders; share split;
and consolidation of shares if any.

xviii. Provisions:
A provision is recognized when an enterprise
has a present obligation (legal or constructive)
as result of past event and it is probable that
an outflow of embodying economic benefits
of resources will be required to settle a reliably
assessable obligation. Provisions are determined
based on best estimate required to settle each
obligation at each balance sheet date. If the
effect of the time value of money is material,
provisions are discounted using a current pretax rate that reflects, when appropriate, the
risks specific to the liability. When discounting
is used, the increase in the provision due to the
passage of time is recognized as a finance cost.

For the purpose of calculating diluted earnings
per share, the net profit or loss for the period
attributable to equity shareholders and
the weighted average number of shares
outstanding during the period are adjusted for
the effects of all dilutive potential equity shares.
xxi. Taxes on Income:
Tax expense comprises of current and deferred
tax.

xix. Contingent liabilities and Contingent Assets:
A contingent liability is a possible obligation
that arises from past events whose existence
will be confirmed by the occurrence or nonoccurrence of one or more uncertain future
events beyond the control of the company
or a present obligation that is not recognized
because it is not probable that an outflow
of resources will be required to settle the
obligation. A contingent liability also arises in
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a.

Current income tax:
Current income tax assets and liabilities
are measured at the amount expected to
be recovered from or paid to the taxation
authorities. The tax rates and tax laws used
to compute the amount are those that are
enacted or substantively enacted, at the
reporting date. Current income tax relating to
items recognized directly in equity is recognized
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in other comprehensive income / equity and not
in the Statement of Profit and Loss. Management
periodically evaluates positions taken in the
tax returns with respect to situations in which
applicable tax regulations are subject to
interpretation and establishes provisions where
appropriate.

to future income tax liability, is considered as
an asset if there is convincing evidence that
the Company will pay normal income tax. The
carrying amount of MAT is reviewed at each
reporting date and asset will be written down
to the extent the company’s right of adjustment
would lapse.

b.

Accordingly, MAT is recognized as an asset in
the Balance Sheet when it is highly probable
that future economic benefit associated with it
will flow to the Company.

Deferred tax:

Deferred tax is provided on temporary
differences between the tax bases of assets
and liabilities and their carrying amounts for
financial reporting purposes at the reporting
date.
Deferred tax assets are recognized for all
deductible temporary differences, the carry
forward of unused tax credits and any unused
tax losses. Deferred tax assets are recognized to
the extent that it is probable that taxable profit
will be available against which the deductible
temporary differences, and the carry forward
of unused tax credits and unused tax losses
can be utilized.
The carrying amount of deferred tax assets are
reviewed at each reporting date and reduced
to the extent that it is no longer probable that
sufficient taxable profit will be available to
allow all or part of the deferred tax asset to be
utilized.
Unrecognized deferred tax assets are reassessed at each reporting date and are
recognized to the extent that it has become
probable that future taxable profits will allow
the deferred tax asset to be recovered.
Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured
based on tax rates (and tax laws) that have
been enacted or substantively enacted at the
reporting date.
c.

Minimum alternate tax:

Minimum Alternate Tax (MAT) paid in
accordance with the tax laws, which gives future
economic benefits in the form of adjustment

xxii. Cash and cash equivalents:
Cash and cash equivalents for the purposes
of cash flow statement comprise cash at bank
and in hand and short-term deposits with an
original maturity of three months or less, which
are subject to an insignificant risk of changes in
value.
Significant accounting Judgments, estimates
and assumptions:
The preparation of financial statements
in conformity with the recognition and
measurement principles of Ind AS requires
management to make judgments, estimates
and assumptions that affect the reported
balances of revenues, expenses, assets and
liabilities and the accompanying disclosures,
and the disclosure of contingent liabilities.
Uncertainty about these assumptions and
estimates could result in outcomes that require
a material adjustment to the carrying amount
of assets or liabilities affected in future periods.
The estimates and underlying assumptions
are reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revisions
to accounting estimates are recognized in the
period in which the estimate is revised if the
revision affects only that period or in the period
of the revision and future periods if the revision
affects both current and future periods.
The following are the areas of estimation
uncertainty and critical judgments that the
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there is no significant change in the useful
lives as compared to previous year.

management has made in the process of
applying the Company’s accounting policies:
a) Recognition of deferred tax assets:
The extent to which deferred tax assets can
be recognized is based on an assessment
of the probability of the future taxable
income against which the deferred tax
assets can be utilized.

d) Evaluation of indicators for impairment of
assets:
The evaluation of applicable indicators of
impairment of assets requires assessment
of several external and internal factors
which could result in deterioration of
recoverable amount of the assets.

b) Provision and contingent liability:
On an ongoing basis, the Company reviews
pending cases, claims by third parties and
other contingencies. For contingent losses
that are considered probable, an estimated
loss is recorded as an accrual in financial
statements. Loss contingencies that are
considered possible are not provided for
but disclosed as Contingent liabilities in
the financial statements. Contingencies,
the likelihood of which is remote, are not
disclosed in the financial statements.
c)

Useful lives of depreciable assets:
Management reviews the useful lives of
depreciable assets at each reporting. As
at March 31, 2020 management assessed
that the useful lives represent the expected
utility of the assets to the Company. Further,
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e) Defined benefit obligation:
Management’s estimate of the Defined
Benefit obligation is based on a number of
underlying assumptions such as standard
rates of inflation, mortality, discount rate
and anticipation of future salary increases.
Variation in these assumptions may impact
the obligation amount and the annual
defined benefit expenses.
f)

Fair value measurements:
Management applies valuation techniques
to determine the fair value of financial
instruments (where active market quotes
are not available). This involves developing
estimates and assumptions consistent with
how market participants would price the
instrument.

-

Disposals during the year

Capitalised during the year

232.87

110.88

As at 31st March, 2020
316.04
						

As at 31st March, 2019

Net Carrying amount

As at 31st March, 2020

-

62.64

Depreciation charged for the year

Disposals during the year

48.24

As at 31st March, 2019

-

25.10

Depreciation charged for the year

Disposals during the year

23.14

As at 1st April, 2018

Accumulated Depreciation

426.92

145.81

Additions during the year

As at 31st March, 2020

281.11

-

Disposals during the year

As at 31st March, 2019

91.56

189.55

Furniture &
Fixtures

71.38

72.17

119.44

0.29

70.68

49.06

31.55

17.51

190.82

-

4.34

73.94

121.23

-

49.34

71.89

Office
Equipments

136.54

82.67

167.59

-

58.52

109.07

-

49.28

59.79

304.13

-

-

112.39

191.74

-

59.36

132.38

Computers

116.16

86.34

19.48

-

16.94

2.54

-

2.54

-

135.64

-

-

46.76

88.88

-

88.88

-

Leasehold
Improvements

					

Additions during the year

As at 1st April, 2018

Gross Block

Particulars

2. Property, Plant and Equipment (PPE)

Notes to financial statements for the year ended 31st March, 2020

640.14

474.07

417.38

0.29

208.78

208.89

-

108.45

100.44

1,057.52

-

4.34

378.90

682.96

-

289.14

393.82

Total

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

46.76

-

46.76

-

-

-

-

Capital
work-in -progress

(` in lakhs)
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3. Intangible assets

(` in lakhs )

Particulars

Computer Software

Total

Gross Block
As at 1st April, 2018

4.58

4.58

Additions during the year

31.10

31.10

Disposals during the year

-

-

35.68

35.68

Additions during the year

3.49

3.49

Disposals during the year

-

-

39.17

39.17

As at 1st April, 2018

3.62

3.62

Amortization during the year

11.21

11.21

-

-

14.83

14.83

7.85

7.85

-

-

22.68

22.68

As at 31st March, 2019

20.85

20.85

As at 31st March, 2020

16.50

16.50

As at 31st March, 2019

As at 31st March, 2020
Accumulated amortization

Disposals during the year
As at 31st March, 2019
Amortization during the year
Disposals during the year
As at 31st March, 2020
Net Carrying amount

4. Investment in Subsidiary Company 		
As at
As at
31st March, 2020 31st March, 2019
` in lakhs
` in lakhs

Particulars
Investment carried at cost - Trade - Unquoted
- Investments in equity instruments of subsidiary
-5,99,870 Equity Shares of ` 10/- each fully paid up in Indian
Association for
Savings and Credit (31st March, 2019: 5,99,870 Equity shares)
Extent of holding - 99.98% (31st March, 2019: 99.98%)
Total
Aggregate amount of Unquoted Investments
Aggregate provision for diminution in value of investments
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180.50

180.50

180.50

180.50

180.50

180.50

-

-
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5A. Loans			
Particulars
Unsecured, considered good
Loan to Employees
Total
			
5B. Other financial assets - Non Current			
Particulars

As at
31st March, 2020
` in lakhs

As at
31st March, 2019
` in lakhs

6.78

-

6.78

-

As at
31st March, 2020
` in lakhs

As at
31st March, 2019
` in lakhs

Unsecured, considered good
Margin Deposits Account with scheduled banks #

4,916.20

4,708.55

Total

4,916.20

4,708.55

# Represents margin deposit for providing financial services to Banks against First Loss Default Guarantee.
		
6A. Deferred tax assets (net):			
As at
As at
Particulars
31st March, 2020 31st March, 2019
` in lakhs
` in lakhs
Deferred tax liability
- On Property Plant and Equipment and intangible assets
- On fair value adjustments for financial instruments
1.12
A
1.12
Deferred tax assets
- On Property Plant and Equipment and intangible assets
25.48
6.31
- On Provision for Gratuity
11.31
11.89
- On Provision for Expected credit loss
76.92
152.54
- On Others
8.99
B
122.70
170.74
Net deferred tax (liability)/asset
A-B
122.70
169.62
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Reconciliation of deferred tax:				

Particulars

Deferred tax (Charge)/credit
(liability)/
to Statement
(Charge)/
assets as at
of Profit and credit to OCI
1st April, 2018
Loss
` in lakhs

Deferred Tax (Liability)/Asset
- On PPE and intangible assets
- On fair value adjustments for
financial instruments
- On Provision for Expected credit loss
- On Provision for Gratuity
Total
				

Particulars

` in lakhs

(2.65)

8.95

-

6.30

(10.24)

9.12

-

(1.12)

249.20
236.31

(96.66)
8.16
(70.44)

3.73
3.73

152.54
11.89
169.62

Deferred tax (Charge)/credit
(liability)/
to Statement
(Charge)/
assets as at
of Profit and
credit to OCI
1st April, 2019
Loss
` in lakhs

Deferred Tax (Liability)/Asset
- On PPE and intangible assets
- On fair value adjustments for
financial instruments
- On Provision for Expected credit loss
- On Provision for Gratuity
- On Others
Total

` in lakhs

Deferred tax
(liability)/
assets as at
31st March,
2019
` in lakhs

` in lakhs

` in lakhs

Deferred tax
(liability)/
assets as at
31st March,
2020
` in lakhs

6.30

19.18

-

25.48

(1.12)

1.12

-

-

152.54
11.89
169.62

(75.62)
7.15
8.99
(39.18)

(7.73)
(7.73)

76.92
11.31
8.99
122.70

6B. Non Current Tax Assets (net)
Particulars

As at
31st March, 2020

As at
31st March, 2019

` in lakhs

` in lakhs

Advance Tax (net of provisions of ` 2,837.78 lakhs)

100.40

-

Total

100.40

-
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7. Other non-current assets
Particulars

As at
31st March, 2020

As at
31st March, 2019

` in lakhs

` in lakhs

Capital Advance

-

30.76

Total

-

30.76

8. Trade receivables
Particulars

As at
31st March, 2020

As at
31st March, 2019

` in lakhs

` in lakhs

Trade receivables/unbilled revenue, Unsecured
Considered Good

1,793.50

Considered Doubtful

0.51
1,794.01

1,502.41

0.51

-

1,793.50

1,502.41

Allowance for doubtful debts
Total

1,502.41

For receivables secured against borrowings, see Note 16.
9. Cash and cash equivalents
Particulars

As at
31st March, 2020

As at
31st March, 2019

` in lakhs

` in lakhs

Balance with Banks
- In Current Account

588.74

1,257.13

-

100.00

25.00

0.01

613.74

1,357.14

- In Fixed Deposits having maturity of less than three months
Cash on Hand
Total
10. Bank balance other than cash and cash equivalents
Particulars

As at
31st March, 2020

As at
31st March, 2019

` in lakhs

` in lakhs

Earmarked balances with banks
Margin Deposits Account with scheduled banks #

4,916.07

1,916.88

Total

4,916.07

1,916.88

# Represents margin deposit for providing financial services to Banks against First Loss Default
Guarantee.

97

New Opportunity Consultancy Pvt. Ltd ANNUAL REPORT 2019-20

Notes to financial statements for the year ended 31st March, 2020
11. Loans
Particulars

As at
31st March, 2020

As at
31st March, 2019

` in lakhs

` in lakhs

Unsecured, considered good
Advances / Loans to employees

32.32

62.34

Total

32.32

62.34

12. Other financial assets
Particulars

As at
31st March, 2020

As at
31st March, 2019

` in lakhs

` in lakhs

Unsecured, considered good
Rental deposits

357.10

260.01

Interest Accrued but not due

40.20

23.59

Other Receivables #

64.28

5.32

461.58

288.93

Total
# Other receivable includes amount recoverable in cash equivalent.
13. Other current assets
Particulars

As at
31st March, 2020

As at
31st March, 2019

` in lakhs

` in lakhs

Prepaid expenses
Advance for expenses
Total

123.70

71.71

9.12

8.00

132.82

79.71

14. Equity share capital				
Particulars
Authorised
Equity Shares of ` 10/- each
Issued, Subscribed and Paid up
Equity Shares of ` 10/- each
Total
				

98

As at 31st March, 2020
In Numbers
` in lakhs

As at 31st March, 2019
In Numbers
` in lakhs

66,00,000

660.00

66,00,000

660.00

53,57,500

535.75
535.75

53,57,500

535.75
535.75
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a) Terms/Rights attached to equity shares:				
The Company has only one class of equity shares having a par value of ` 10 per share. Each equity
shareholder is entitled to one vote per equity share.				
The dividend proposed by the Board of Directors is subject to the approval of the shareholders in the
ensuing Annual General Meeting, except in case of interim dividend.				
During the year ended 31st March, 2020, the amount of dividend per share recognized as distribution
to equity shareholders was ` Nil (31st March, 2019: ` Nil).				
In the event of liquidation of the company, the holders of equity shares will be entitled to receive
remaining assets of the company, after distribution of all preferential amounts. The distribution will be in
proportion to the number of equity shares held by the shareholders.
b) Details of Shareholders holding more than 5% shares in the company:				
Equity Shares
Particulars

As at 31st March, 2020
No. of
Shares held

As at 31st March, 2019

% of
Holding

No. of
Shares held

% of
Holding

Mr. Ganesh Rao

26,75,050

49.93%

26,75,050

49.93%

Mrs. Meenakshi Rao

23,24,900

43.40%

23,24,900

43.40%

3,57,550

6.67%

3,57,550

6.67%

53,57,500

100.00%

53,57,500

100.00%

Mr. Jasbinder Singh Toor

c) Reconciliation of the shares outstanding at the beginning and at the end of the reporting period:
Equity Shares
Particulars

As at 31st March, 2020
In Numbers

Shares outstanding at the beginning of the year

As at 31st March, 2019

` in lakhs

In Numbers

` in lakhs

53,57,500

535.75

53,57,500

535.75

Shares issued during the year

-

-

-

-

Shares bought back during the year

-

-

-

-

53,57,500

535.75

53,57,500

535.75

Shares outstanding at the end of the year

d) There are no shares which have been allotted for consideration other than cash, bonus shares and
shares bought back in the 5 years immediately preceding the reporting date.
e) There are no shares reserved for issue under options and contracts / commitments for sale of shares/
disinvestment.		
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15. Other equity

		

Particulars
Securities Premium

As at 31st
March, 2020

As at 31st
March, 2019

` in lakhs

` in lakhs

123.75

123.75

220.00

220.00

-

-

(220.00)

-

-

220.00

-

-

Add: Transferred from Debenture Redemption Reserve during the
year

220.00

-

Closing Balance

220.00

-

Opening Balance

4,744.03

1,835.36

Add: Profit for the year

3,605.74

2,917.87

23.00

(9.20)

Closing Balance

8,372.77

4,744.03

Total

8,716.52

5,087.78

Debenture Redemption Reserve
Opening Balance
Add: Transferred from Retained earnings during the year
Less: Transferred to General Reserve on account of redemption of
debentures during the year
Closing Balance
General Reserve
Opening Balance

Retained Earnings

Add: Transfer from Other Comprehensive Income

i)

Securities Premium Reserve: Securities premium is received from the shareholders of the company on
issue of shares. It is utilised in accordance with the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013.

ii) General Reserve: General Reserves is created out of transfer made from debenture redemption reserve
on redemption of debentures.
iii) Retained Earnings: Retained earnings are the balance (debit / credit) in the Statement of Profit and Loss.

100

Corporate Overview | Management Report | Financial Statements

Notes to financial statements for the year ended 31st March, 2020
16. Borrowings 			
As at 31st March, 2020
Particulars

As at 31st March, 2019

Non Current

Current

Non Current

Current

` in lakhs

` in lakhs

` in lakhs

` in lakhs

Secured Loans
Loans from Companies (Refer Note (i)
below)

815.71

666.86

89.81

428.12

-

-

-

440.00

1,680.00

-

1,680.00

-

22.91

25.01

-

-

2,518.62

691.87

1,769.81

868.12

(10.03)

(11.30)

(0.30)

(3.58)

2,508.58

680.57

1,769.51

864.54

Unsecured Loans
17.08% 440 Non-Convertible Debentures
of ` 1,00,000/- each (Refer Note (ii)
below)
Loan from subsidiary company (Refer
Note (iii) below)
Term Loan from Bank (Refer Note (iv)
below)
- Unamortised portion of upfront
processing fee
Total

The Company has not defaulted in the payment of interest and installments of the loans as at 31st March
2020.				
(i) Secured Loans from Companies:				
Loans from Jain Sons Finlease Limited:				
Loan of ` 200 lakhs (PY ` 200 lakhs) and outstanding of ` 12.14 lakhs (PY ` 119.77 lakhs):
Terms of repayment: 1 monthly installment is pending for the loan as on March 31, 2020. The interest is
payable on monthly basis and the rate of interest is 20% per annum. Last EMI payment date is in April
2020.				
Loan of ` 200 lakhs (PY ` 200 lakhs) and outstanding of ` 77.66 lakhs (PY ` 173.33 lakhs):
Terms of repayment: 7 monthly installments of ` 10.28 lakhs and 8th installment of ` 12.11 lakhs is
pending for the loan as on March 31, 2020. The interest is payable on monthly basis and the rate of
interest is 21% per annum. Last EMI payment date is in November 2020.
Loan of ` 88 lakhs (PY ` 88 lakhs) and outstanding of ` Nil (PY ` 87.93 lakhs):
Loan of ` 400 lakhs (PY ` 400 lakhs) and outstanding of ` Nil (PY ` 136.89 lakhs):
The above loans are secured by way of personal guarantee of Directors and pledge of shares equivalent
to 15% of the paid up capital of the Company or such equivalent number of shares representing 15%
of the post money valuation of the Company.
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Term Loan from U.C Inclusive Credit Private Limited:				
Tranche 1 of ` 300.00 lakhs and outstanding of ` 260.20 lakhs:				
Terms of repayment: Term loan is repayable in 36 monthly installments of ` 10.77 lakhs from the date
of first disbursement. The interest is payable on monthly basis and the rate of interest is 17.5% per
annum. Last EMI payment date is in September 2022.
Tranche 2 of ` 200.00 lakhs and outstanding of ` 182.57 lakhs:				
Terms of repayment: Term loan is repayable in 36 monthly installments of ` 7.00 lakhs from the date of
first disbursement. The interest is payable on monthly basis and the rate of interest is 17.5% per annum.
Last EMI payment date is in November 2022.
Both the above tranches are secured by hypothecation of receivable to the extent of 100% of the
principal outstanding. The term loan is guaranteed by Mr. Ganesh Rao, Managing Director and CEO and
Mrs. Meenakshi Rao, Director of the Company.
Loan from Caspian Impact Investment Private Limited:				
Loan of ` 500 lakhs and outstanding of ` 450 lakhs:

			

Terms of repayment: Loan is repayable in 30 monthly installments of ` 16.66 lakhs from the date of first
disbursement. The interest is payable on monthly basis and the rate of interest is 17.5% per annum.
Last EMI payment date is in June 2022.
Loan is hypothecated by way of first ranking, pari-passu charge over current assets of the Company
so as to provide a security cover of at least 1 time on the outstanding credit facility. The loan is
guaranteed by Mr. Ganesh Rao, Managing Director and CEO of the Company.
Loan from Vivriti Capital Private Limited:				
Loan of ` 500 lakhs and outstanding of ` 500 lakhs:

			

Terms of repayment: Term loan is repayable in 24 monthly instalments of ` 24.84 lakhs. The interest
is payable on monthly basis and the rate of interest is 17.5% per annum. Last EMI payment date is in
March 2022. 				
The loan is secured by first pari passu charge by way of hypothecation over all receivable of
the Company, both present and future so as to provide a security cover of at least 1 time on the
outstanding credit facility. The loan is guaranteed by Mr. Ganesh Rao, Managing Director and CEO of the
Company.
(ii) Unsecured Non-Convertible Debentures: 			
The debentures issued by the Company have been fully repaid in current financial year.
(iii) Unsecured Loans from Subsidiary of ` 1,680 lakhs (PY ` 1,680 lakhs):				
The interest on the above loan is payable on yearly basis and payable on the last working day of
the each Financial Year. Rate of interest is 21% per annum upto July 2019 and 17.5% per annum from
August (previous year 21% per annum). This loan is repayable in March 2025.
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(iv) Unsecured Term Loan from DCB Bank Limited:

			

Loan of ` 50 lakhs and outstanding of ` 47.92 lakhs:				
Terms of repayment: Term loan is repayable in 24 monthly installments of ` 2.08 lakhs. The interest is
payable on monthly basis and the rate of interest is 11.0% per annum. Last EMI payment date is in
February 2022.				
17. Other financial liabilities

			

Particulars

As at 31st
March, 2020

As at 31st
March, 2019

` in lakhs

` in lakhs

Current maturities of long term debt (Refer Note 16)

680.57

864.54

Interest accrued but not due on borrowings

22.00

49.19

Overdraft facility from Union Bank of India *

145.76

-

Accrued Employee Benefits

60.38

13.62

Disbursement in Pipeline

42.07

803.31

11.37

35.18

272.22

77.42

-

146.47

1,234.38

1,989.73

Other payables and accruals - dues to Micro and Small Enterprise
(Refer Note 33)
Other payables and accruals - dues to other than Micro and Small
Enterprise #
Commitment Charges Payable
Total

* The company has availed overdraft facility from Union bank of India for ` 150 lakhs at ROI of 11.40%. The
Company has hypothecated the trade receivables to 1.10 times covering the principal amount.
# Other payables and accruals represents EMI collected, cancelled disbursements and accrued
expenses.
18. Other current liabilities				
Particulars
Statutory dues payable
Member insurance payable
Others
Total

As at 31st March, 2020

As at 31st March, 2019

` in lakhs

` in lakhs
503.73

387.16

82.18

265.56

1.55

-

587.46

652.71
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19. Provisions				
Particulars

As at 31st March, 2020

As at 31st March, 2019

` in lakhs

` in lakhs

Provision for Gratuity (Refer Note 29)

44.94

41.23

305.61

528.92

-

-

Total

305.61

528.92

Total

350.55

570.15

Provision for Expected credit loss on EMI's
Less: Financial Guarantee availed

Movement in provision for expected credit loss on EMI's is as follows:
Particulars

			

As at 31st March, 2020

As at 31st March, 2019

` in lakhs

` in lakhs

Opening balance

528.92

515.30

Additions

341.30

98.45

Withdrawals/utilisation

564.61

84.83

Closing balance

305.61

528.92

Note:				
As an authorised Business Correspondent of various banks/financial institutions, the Company is obligated
to make good the loss suffered by banks/financial institutions on account of uncollected EMI's from the
members of JLG/SHG to the extent of first 5% of loan portfolio outstanding as First Loss Default Guarantee.
The above provision is based on Markov Chain Model. The withdrawals/utilisation represents the
commitment charges paid to the respective banks/financial institutions on the basis of principles explained
above.							
20. Current tax liabilities (net) 			
Particulars

As at 31st March, 2020

As at 31st March, 2019

` in lakhs

` in lakhs

Provision for taxation (net of Advance tax of `
1,889.34 lakhs)
Total
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21. Revenue from operations 		
Particulars
Revenue from Operations
Commission Income
Other operating income
Interest on Margin Deposits
Insurance and brokerage
Stationery fees

For the year ended
31st March, 2020

For the year ended
31st March, 2019

` in lakhs

` in lakhs

16,406.94

13,239.91

570.11
166.06
8.36
17,151.47

270.46
143.78
11.90
13,666.05

		
22. Other income 		
Particulars
Professional income
Dividend Income
Liability no longer payable written back
Miscellaneous Income

For the year ended
31st March, 2020

For the year ended
31st March, 2019

` in lakhs

` in lakhs

102.30
2.79
105.09

43.78
5.12
44.73
41.97
135.60

		
23. Employee benefits expense		
Particulars
Salaries, Wages and Bonus
Contribution to Provident Fund and Other Funds (Refer
Note 29)
Gratuity (Refer Note 29)
Staff Welfare Expenses

For the year ended
31st March, 2020

For the year ended
31st March, 2019

` in lakhs

` in lakhs

8,155.27

5,462.19

709.16

399.46

101.42
149.22
9,115.07

57.07
112.70
6,031.42

		
24. Finance cost 		
Particulars
Interest on Loans and Debentures
Interest on Income Tax
Interest to MSME Parties
Other Borrowing Cost

For the year ended
31st March, 2020

For the year ended
31st March, 2019

` in lakhs

` in lakhs

508.95
5.99
1.55
10.39
526.88

254.10
16.10
2.50
272.70
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25. Depreciation and amortization expense 		
Particulars
- Depreciation on Property, Plant and Equipment (Refer
Note 2)

For the year ended
31st March, 2020
` in lakhs
208.78

108.45

7.85

11.21

216.63

119.66

- Amortization on Intangible Assets (Refer Note 3)
Total
		
26. Other expenses 		
Particulars

For the year ended
31st March, 2019
` in lakhs

For the year ended
31st March, 2020

For the year ended
31st March, 2019

` in lakhs

` in lakhs

Travelling & Conveyance

179.59

123.45

Postage & Telephone

154.60

152.90

Insurance

178.84

87.90

Rent (Refer Note 34)

617.08

467.80

Electricity Charges

45.06

28.93

Printing and Stationery

194.74

165.35

16.30

19.65

Office Upkeep and Maintenance

198.91

124.91

Software Usage Charges

157.47

86.61

Professional & Legal Expenses

78.39

66.93

Directors sitting fees

11.75

7.90

9.31

10.65

85.57

97.32

3.20

-

-

1,468.05

201.86

154.20

60.25

48.63

0.51

-

341.30

98.45

-

0.01

13.31

3.30

2,548.06

3,212.94

Repair & Maintenance - Computer

Remuneration to auditors (Refer Note 26.1)
Rates & taxes
Loss on sale on Assets
Commitment Charges
Bank Charges
CSR Expenses (Refer Note 35)
Expected Credit Loss on Trade Receivable
Provision for expected credit loss On EMIs (Refer Note 19)
Loss on sale of Mutual Fund Units (net)
Miscellaneous Expenses

		

106

Corporate Overview | Management Report | Financial Statements

Notes to financial statements for the year ended 31st March, 2020
26.1 Remuneration to auditors (excluding GST) 		
For the year ended
31st March, 2020
` in lakhs
9.00

For the year ended
31st March, 2019
` in lakhs
9.12

b. for Taxation Matters

-

-

c. for Limited Review

-

1.50

0.31

0.03

9.31

10.65

Particulars
a. for Statutory Audit

d. for Reimbursement of Expenses
		
27. Tax expense 		
Particulars
A. Current Tax
Current tax on profit for the year
Charge/ (Credit) in respect of current tax for earlier years
TOTAL (A)
B. Deferred Tax
Origination and reversal of temporary differences
Charge in respect of deferred tax for earlier years
TOTAL (B)
Tax expense recognized in Statement of Profit and Loss
- (A)+(B)
Tax expense/(income) recognized in Other Comprehensive
Income (c)
Total Tax Expense
		

For the year ended
31st March, 2020
` in lakhs

For the year ended
31st March, 2019
` in lakhs

1,222.00
(17.00)
1,205.00

1,106.69
69.93
1,176.62

39.18
39.18

70.44
70.44

1,244.18

1,247.06

7.73

(3.73)

1,251.92

1,243.33
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The reconciliation of estimated income tax expense at tax rate to income tax expense reported in
Statement of Profit and Loss is as follows:		
Particulars
Profit/(loss) before tax
Enacted tax rate
Expected income tax expense at statutory tax rate

For the year ended
31st March, 2020
` in lakhs
4,849.92
25.168%
1,220.63

For the year ended
31st March, 2019
` in lakhs
4,164.93
28.84%
1,201.17

Tax effect of adjustments to reconcile expected income tax expense to reported income tax expense:
Expenses not deductible in determining taxable profits
Income exempt from taxation
Tax allowances and concession
Charge/ (Credit) in respect of current tax for earlier years
Others
Tax expense for the year

96.35
(144.33)
(17.00)
96.26
1,251.92

5.62
(1.48)
(178.43)
69.93
146.52
1,243.33

Consequent to reconciliation items shown above, the effective tax rate is 25.81% (FY 2018-19: 29.85%
Note: The above workings are based on provisional computation of tax expenses and are subject to
finalisation of tax audit/ filing of tax returns in due course.		
		
28. Earnings per share
Particulars
Profit/(Loss) after tax

For the year ended
31st March, 2020

For the year ended
31st March, 2019

` in lakhs

` in lakhs

3,605.74

2,917.87

Weighted Average no. of equity shares outstanding during
the year for basic earnings

53,57,500

53,57,500

Weighted Average no. of equity shares outstanding during
the year for diluted earnings

53,57,500

53,57,500

Basic Earnings Per Share (`)

67.30

54.46

Diluted Earnings Per Share (`)

67.30

54.46
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29. Employee benefits 			
The details of various employee benefits provided to employees are as under:			
A. Defined contribution plan:
The company also contributes on a defined contribution basis to employees’ provident fund. Contributions are made to the provident fund in India for employees as per the requirement of regulations.
The obligation of the company is limited to the amount contributed and it has no further contractual
nor any constructive obligation.				
					
(` in lakhs)
Particulars

For the year ended
31st March, 2020

For the year ended
31st March, 2019

Employer's Contribution to Provident Fund

592.87

286.13

Employer's Contribution to ESIC

114.68

112.14

1.61

1.19

709.16

399.46

Employer's Contribution to Labour welfare
Total
					
B. Defined benefit plan:				

In accordance with the Payment of Gratuity Act, 1972, the Company provides for gratuity, as defined
benefit plan. The gratuity plan provides for a lump sum payment to the employees at the time of
separation from the service on completion of vested year of employment i.e. five years. The liability of
gratuity plan is provided based on actuarial valuation using the projected unit credit method as at the
end of each financial year based on which the Company contributes the ascertained liability to Life
Insurance Corporation of India with whom the plan assets are maintained.
These plans typically expose the Company to actuarial risks such as: investment risk, interest rate risk,
salary escalation risk and longevity risk.
Investment risk: For funded plans that rely on insurers for managing the assets, the value of assets
certified by the insurer may not be the fair value of instruments backing the liability. In such cases, the
present value of the assets is independent of the future discount rate. This can result in wide fluctuations
in the net liability or the funded status if there are significant changes in the discount rate during the
inter-valuation period.
Interest rate risk: The defined benefit obligation calculated uses a discount rate based on government
bonds. If bond yields fall, the defined benefit obligation will tend to increase.
Salary escalation risk: The present value of the defined benefit plan liability is calculated by reference
to the future salaries of plan participants. As such, higher than expected increases in salary will increase
the defined benefit obligation.
Longevity risk: The present value of defined benefit plan liability is calculated by reference to the best
estimate of the mortality of plan participants both during and after their employment. An increase in the
life expectancy of the plan participants will increase the plan’s liability.				
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Principal actuarial assumptions:				
For the year ended
For the year ended
31st March, 2020
31st March, 2019
Discount Rate *
6.46%
7.37%
Expected Return on Assets
6.46%
7.37%
Salary Escalation #
0% for 3 years and 4% thereafter
7%
Attrition Rate
30.00%
30.23%
Indian Assured Lives Mortality
Indian Assured Lives Mortality
Mortality
(2012-14)
(2006-08)
					
*The rate used to discount post-employment benefit obligations is determined by reference to market
yields at the end of the reporting period on government bonds.
Particulars

#The estimates of future salary increases considered in the actuarial valuation take account of inflation,
seniority, promotion and other relevant factors, such as supply and demand in the employment market.
Amount recognized in Statement of Profit and Loss for the year:				
Particulars

( ` in lakhs)

For the year ended For the year ended
31st March, 2020
31st March, 2019

Total Service Cost

102.78

56.25

Net Interest Cost

(1.36)

0.82

101.42

57.07

Expenses recognized in the Statement of Profit and Loss
					
Recognized in Other Comprehensive Income (OCI) for the year:
Particulars
Return on plan assets (excluding amounts included in net
interest expense)

( ` in lakhs)
For the year ended For the year ended
31st March, 2020
31st March, 2019
6.23

6.78

Actuarial (gains)/losses arising from changes in financial
assumptions in DBO

(23.55)

8.49

Actuarial (gains)/losses arising from experience adjustments
on DBO

(13.93)

43.01

0.52

(45.35)

(30.73)

12.93

Actuarial (gains)/losses due to demographic assumption
changes in DBO
Amount recognized in OCI for the current year
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Change in present value of Defined Benefit Obligation (DBO):
Particulars

( ` in lakhs)
As at 31st
March, 2020

As at 31st
March, 2019

Present value of obligations as at the beginning of the year

152.52

87.07

Current Service Cost

102.78

56.25

9.54

6.30

(36.96)

6.15

(9.63)

(3.25)

218.25

152.52

Interest Cost
Actuarial (gain)/loss on plan obligation
Benefits paid
Present value of obligations as at the end of the year
Change in fair value of plan assets:
Particulars
Fair value of plan assets as at the beginning of the year

( ` in lakhs)
As at 31st
March, 2020

As at 31st
March, 2019

111.29

35.93

Expected Return on plan assets

10.90

5.47

Contributions

66.99

79.92

Benefits paid

(9.63)

(3.25)

Actuarial gain/(loss) on plan assets

(6.23)

(6.78)

Fair value of plan assets as at the end of the year

173.31

111.29

Net Asset/Liability recognized in Balance Sheet:
Particulars

( ` in lakhs)
As at 31st
March, 2020

As at 31st
March, 2019

Present value of obligations

218.25

152.52

Fair Value of Plan Assets

173.31

111.29

Amount recognized

44.94

41.23

Maturity profile of Present Value of defined benefit obligation:
Particulars

( ` in lakhs)
As at 31st
March, 2020

As at 31st
March, 2019

Within the next 12 months

27.54

10.20

Between 2 and 5 years

50.76

23.23

Between 6 and 10 years

12.82

6.20

Beyond 10 years

127.13

112.89

Total

218.25

152.52

Expected contributions to the plan for the next annual
reporting period

220.86

137.35

6.28 years

6.66 years

The average duration of the defined benefit plan obligation at
the end of the reporting period
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Sensitivity Analysis				
Below is the sensitivity analysis determined for significant actuarial assumptions for the determination of
defined benefit obligations and based on reasonably possible changes of the respective assumptions
occurring at the end of the reporting period while holding all other assumptions constant.
					
(` in lakhs)
As at 31st March, 2020

Particulars

Increase

Decrease

As at 31st March, 2019
Increase

Decrease

Discount rate by 1%

208.59

228.90

144.52

161.43

Salary Escalation rate by 1%

227.63

209.63

160.43

145.31

Attrition rate by 1%

216.26

220.14

149.58

155.50

Mortality rate by 10%

218.32

152.54

-

30. Contingent Liabilities:			
Particulars
First Loss Default Guarantee

(` in lakhs)
As at 31st March, 2020

As at 31st March, 2019

(to the extent of Margin Deposits)

31. The outbreak of COVID-19 pandemic across the globe and in India has contributed to a significant
impact and volatility in the global and Indian financial markets and slowdown in the economic
activities. The Company has made a provision of ` 341.30 lakhs as per the adopted ECL model for
impairment on loan portfolio handled as on March 31, 2020 as computed by an independent valuer.
The management has evaluated the impact of COVID19 on its assets comprising of property, plant and
equipment, investments, trade receivables and other financial assets, and has concluded that there
is no significant impact on the carrying amount of these assets besides impairment, if any, and are
recoverable as at the balance sheet date. The impact of COVID-19 pandemic is dependent on future
developments which is highly uncertain, therefore the financial impact in subsequent periods may be
different than currently assessed.  			
				
32. The balances in trade receivable are subject to confirmation and reconciliation, if any. However in
the opinion of the Management, balances in trade receivable account are recoverable at least to the
extent stated in the balance sheet.			
				
33. The information in relation to dues to Micro and Small Enterprises have been determined to the extent
such parties have been identified on the basis of information available with the Company, which has
been relied upon by the auditors.
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(` in lakhs)
Details of dues to Micro and Small Enterprises as per MSMED Act,
2006

As at 31st
March, 2020

As at 31st
March, 2019

a) Principal amount due to suppliers under MSMED Act, 2006

11.37

35.18

b) Interest accrued, due to suppliers under MSMED Act on the above
amount, and unpaid

0.22

-

c) Payment made to suppliers (other than interest) beyond the
appointed day during the year

97.94

-

-

-

1.33

-

1.55

-

d) Interest paid to suppliers under MSMED Act (Section 16)
e) Interest due and payable towards suppliers under MSMED Act for
payments already made
f) Interest accrued and remaining unpaid at the end of the year
to suppliers under MSMED Act (including interest mentioned in (e)
above)
				
34. Assets taken on operating lease:

The Company, as a Lessee, has entered into various cancellable agreements for lease of buildings
for its business ranging from one year to five years in the nature of operating lease with an option to
renew the lease.			
The future minimum lease payments are as follows:

		

(` in lakhs)
As at 31st
March, 2020

As at 31st
March, 2019

Within one year

-

1.96

After one year but not more than five years

-

-

More than five years

-

-

Particulars

During the year, ` 617.08 lakhs (P.Y. ` 467.80 lakhs) has been debited to Statement of Profit and Loss.
		
(i) There are no restriction covenants in the lease agreement. 			
(ii) The Company does not have any contingent lease rental expenses. 			
(iii) The above future minimum lease rentals includes normal escalation rate based on agreements.
		
35. CSR Expenditure: 			
				
(` in lakhs)
Particulars
a. Gross amount required to be spent by the Company
during the year

2019-20

2018-19

58.14

42.37

60.25

48.63

b. Amount spent during the year on:
(i) Construction/Acquisition of any asset
(ii) On purposes other than (i) above
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36. Particulars of Loans, Guarantees and Investment under section 186 of the Companies Act, 2013:
Name of the Company

2019-20

2018-19

Investment made in Indian Association for Savings and Credit

180.50

180.50

37. Fair value measurements:
i. Financial instruments by category & hierarchy:
The carrying value & fair value of financial instruments by categories & hierarchy as at 31st March,
2020 were as follows:
								
										
(` in lakhs)
Carrying Amount
Particulars

Note FVTOCI FVTPL

Amortised
cost

Fair Value
Level Level Level
1
2
3

Total

Total

Financial Assets
Trade Receivables

8

-

-

Cash and Cash equivalents

9

-

-

Other bank balances

10

-

-

Loans

5A, 11

-

-

Other financial assets

5B, 12

-

Borrowings

16

Other financial liabilities

17

1,793.50 1,793.50

-

-

-

-

613.74

-

-

-

-

4,916.07 4,916.07

-

-

-

-

39.10

-

-

-

-

-

5,377.78 5,377.78

-

-

-

-

-

-

3,189.16 3,189.16

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

613.74
39.10

Financial Liabilities
553.81

553.81

The carrying value & fair value of financial instruments by categories & hierarchy as at 31st March, 2019
were as follows:
( ` in lakhs )
Particulars
Financial Assets
Trade Receivables
Cash and Cash equivalents
Other bank balances
Loans
Other financial assets

Note

Carrying Amount
Amortised
FVTOCI FVTPL
Total
cost

Level
1

Fair Value
Level Level
2
3

Total

8

-

-

1,502.41 1,502.41

-

-

-

-

9

-

-

1,357.14 1,357.14

-

-

-

-

10
5A, 11
5B, 12

-

-

1,916.88 1,916.88
62.34
62.34
4,997.48 4,997.48

-

-

-

-

Financial Liabilities
Borrowings
16
2,634.04 2,634.04
Other financial liabilities
17
1,125.19 1,125.19
										

-

-

-
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The Company has classified its financial instruments into three levels in order to provide an indication
about the reliability of the inputs used in determining fair values.					
(i)		Level 1: quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or liabilities.
(ii) 		Level 2: inputs other than quoted prices included within Level 1 that are observable for the asset or
liability, either directly (i.e., as prices) or indirectly (i.e., derived from prices).
(iii) Level 3: inputs for the asset or liability that are not based on observable market data (unobservable inputs).
The carrying amounts of trade receivables, cash and cash equivalents, other bank balances, loans,
other financial assets, current borrowings and other current financial liabilities are a reasonable approximation of their fair values.
ii.

Valuation technique used to determine fair value:
The fair value of the financial assets and liabilities are at the amount that would be received to sell
an asset and paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction between market participants at the
measurement date.									
The carrying amounts of trade receivables, cash and cash equivalents, other bank balances, loans,
other financial assets, current borrowings and other current financial liabilities are a reasonable approximation of their fair values.									
The estimated fair value amounts as at 31st March, 2020 have been measured as at that date. As
such, the fair values of these financial instruments subsequent to reporting date may be different than
the amounts reported at each year-end.
There were no transfers between Level 1, Level 2 and Level 3 during the year.				
					

38. Financial Risk Management:					
The Company’s businesses are subject to several risks and uncertainties including financial risks
The Company's activities expose it to credit risk, liquidity risk and market risk - interest rate risk. The
Board of Directors has overall responsibility for the establishment and oversight of the Company’s risk
management framework. This note explains the sources of risk which the entity is exposed to and how
the entity manages the risk and the related impact in the financial statements.
Risk

Exposure arising from

Measurement

Credit risk

Cash and cash equivalents, trade receivables,
financial assets measured at amortised cost.

Ageing analysis, Credit ratings

Liquidity risk

Borrowings and other liabilities

Rolling cash flow forecasts

Market risk –
Long-term borrowings at variable rates
Interest rate risk
						

Cash flow forecasting,
Sensitivity analysis.
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a. Credit risk					
Credit risk is the risk that counterparty will not meet its obligations under a financial instrument or
customer contract, leading to a financial loss. Credit risk encompasses of both, the direct risk of default
and the risk of deterioration of creditworthiness as well as concentration risks.
The company's credit risk generally arises from Cash and cash equivalents, trade receivables, and
other financial assets.					
Credit risk management					
The Company assesses and manages credit risk of financial assets based on following categories
arrived on the basis of assumptions, inputs and factors specific to the class of financial assets.
A: Low credit risk					
B: Moderate credit risk					
C: High credit risk										
Assets
Group

Description of category

Low credit
risk

Assets where the counter-party
has strong capacity to meet the
obligations and where the risk of
default is negligible or nil.

Moderate
credit risk

Assets where the probability of
default is considered moderate,
counter-party where the capacity to
meet the obligations is not strong.

High credit Assets where there is a high
risk
probability of default.

Particulars

Provision for
expected credit loss

Cash and cash
equivalents, other bank
12 month expected
balances, investments,
credit loss/life time
loans, trade receivables
expected credit loss.
and other financial assets.
Nil

12 month expected
credit loss/life time
expected credit loss.

Nil

12 month expected
credit loss/life time
expected credit loss/
fully provided for.

Based on business environment in which the Company operates, a default on a financial asset is considered when the counterparty fails to make payments within the agreed time period as per contract.
Loss rates reflecting defaults are based on actual credit loss experience and considering differences
between current and historical economic conditions. Assets are written off when there is no reasonable
expectation of recovery. The Company continues to engage with parties whose balances are written
off and attempts to enforce repayment. Recoveries made are recognized in statement of profit and
loss.
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Classification of Financial assets among risk categories:
(` in lakhs)
Credit rating

Particulars

Low credit risk
Moderate credit risk
High credit risk

Cash and cash equivalents, other bank
balances, investments, loans, trade receivables
and other financial assets (Refundable
deposits).
Nil
Nil

Basis of arriving at ECL		

As at 31st
March, 2020

As at 31st
March, 2019

12,740.18

9,836.24

-

-

			

As an authorised Business Correspondent of various banks/financial institutions, the Company is
obligated to make good the loss suffered by banks/financial institutions on account of uncollected EMI's
from the members of JLG/SHG to the extent of first 5% of loan portfolio outstanding as First Loss Default
Guarantee. The provision is based on Markov Chain Model. The utilisation/withdrawal represents the
commitment charges paid to the respective banks/financial institutions on the basis of principles
explained above.					
Reconciliation of loss allowance for first loss default guarantee for EMIs:
(` in lakhs)
As at 31st
March, 2020

As at 31st
March, 2019

Balance at the beginning of the year

528.92

515.30

Additions during the year

341.30

98.45

(564.61)

(84.83)

305.61

528.92

Particulars

Amounts withdrawn/utilisation during the year
Balance at the end of the year
						
b. Liquidity risk

				

Prudent liquidity risk management implies maintaining sufficient cash and marketable securities and the
availability of funding through an adequate amount of committed credit facilities to meet obligations
when due and to close out market positions. Due to the dynamic nature of the business, the Company
maintains flexibility in funding by maintaining availability under committed credit lines. Management
monitors rolling forecasts of the company’s liquidity position and cash and cash equivalents on the
basis of expected cash flows. The Company takes into account the liquidity of the market in which the
entity operates. In addition, the company’s liquidity management policy involves projecting cash flows
and considering the level of liquid assets necessary to meet these, monitoring balance sheet liquidity
ratios against internal and external regulatory requirements and maintaining debt financing plans.
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Maturities of Financial Liabilities as at 31st March, 2020 are as follows:				
(` in lakhs)
Contractual cash Flows					
Less than 1
year

Particulars
Borrowings
Other Financial liabilities
Total

680.57
553.81
1,234.38

1-5 years

More than
5 years

2,508.58
2,508.58

Carrying
Amount

Total
-

3,189.16
553.81
3,742.97

3,189.16
553.81
3,742.97

Maturities of Financial Liabilities as at 31st March, 2019 are as follows:
(` in lakhs)
Contractual cash Flows					
Less than 1
year

Particulars

Borrowings
864.54
Other Financial liabilities
1,125.19
Total
1,989.73
						
c. Market risk

More than
5 years

1-5 years
89.51
89.51

1,680.00
1,680.00

Carrying
Amount

Total
2,634.04
1,125.19
3,759.24

2,634.04
1,125.19
3,759.24

				

Market risk is the risk that changes in market prices such as foreign exchange rates, interest rates etc.
could affect the Company’s income or the value of its holdings of financial instruments including cash
flow. The objective of market risk management is to manage and control market risk exposures within
acceptable parameters, while maximising the return.					
Interest rate Risks					
The Company uses a mix of cash and borrowings to manage the liquidity & fund requirements of its
day-to-day operations. Interest rate risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial
instrument will fluctuate because of changes in market interest rates. The borrowings are fixed rate
borrowings and are carried at amortized cost. They are therefore not subject to interest rate risk as
defined in Ind AS 107, ‘Financial Instruments - Disclosures’, since neither the carrying amount nor the
future cash flows will fluctuate because of a change in market interest rates.
Interest rate risk exposure
The Company does not have any variable rate borrowing which is subject to interest rate risk.
(` in lakhs)
Particulars
Fixed Rate Borrowings

As at 31st March, 2020

As at 31st March, 2019

3,189.16

2,634.04

39. Capital Management					
The Company’s objectives when managing capital is to safeguard continuity, maintain a strong credit
rating and healthy capital ratios in order to support its business and provide adequate return to
shareholders through continuing growth. The Company’s overall strategy remains unchanged from the
previous year.					
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The funding requirements are met through a mixture of equity, internal fund generation and other
non-current borrowings. The Company’s policy is to use current and non-current borrowings to meet
anticipated funding requirements.					
The Company monitors capital on the basis of the gearing ratio which is net debt divided by total
capital (equity plus net debt).					
Net debt are non-current and current debts as reduced by cash and cash equivalents and current
investments. Equity comprises all components including other comprehensive income.
The following table summarizes the gearing ratio of the Company:
(` in lakhs)
As at 31st
March, 2020

Particulars
Non-Current Borrowings (Refer Note 16)

As at 31st
March, 2019

2,508.58

1,769.51

680.57

864.54

3,189.16

2,634.04

Cash and Cash equivalents (Refer Note 9)

613.74

1,357.14

Total Cash (b)

613.74

1,357.14

2,575.42

1,276.91

535.75

535.75

Other Equity (Refer Note 15)

8,716.52

5,087.78

Total Equity (d)

9,252.27

5,623.53

11,827.70

6,900.43

0.22

0.19

Current Maturities of Long term Debt (Refer Note 17)
Total Borrowings (a)

Net Debt (c) = (a)-(b)
Share Capital (Refer Note 14)

Total Capital (e) = (c)+(d)
Gearing Ratio = (c)/(e)
40. Segment Information:				

The Company acts as an authorised Business Correspondent for banks and financial institutions, which
is the only reportable operating segment. Further there are no reportable geographical segments, since
all business activities are carried in India. Hence, separate disclosure requirements of Ind AS -108 “
Segment Reporting” are not applicable.
41. Related Party Disclosures:
(i) List of related parties with whom transactions have taken place during the year ended 31st March,
2020 and relationship:
(a) Holding Company:

- Nil 			

(b) Subsidiary Company:

- Indian Association for Savings and Credit
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(c) Key Management Personnel (KMP) & Relative: 				
- Mr. Ganesh Rao

- Mr. Mohan Vasant Tanksale

- Mrs. Meenakshi Rao

- Mr. Ambadas Mukundrao Pedgaonkar

- Mr. K. R. Kamath

- Mr. R. Loganathan

- Mrs. Mona Thakkar
- Ms. Krutika Ganesh Rao (Relative of Mr. Ganesh Rao)
		
(d) Others: (Enterprise over which key management personnel are able to exercise significant influence)
- None 				
(ii) Related Party Transactions:
(` in lakhs)
Nature of Transactions

Subsidiary Company
2019-20

Transactions during the period:
Salary paid
Salary paid to Relative of KMP
Directors sitting fees
Professional charges paid
Loan availed by Company during the year
which is guaranteed by Director
Interest paid
Reimbursement of rent
(made by IASC on NOCPL's behalf)
Reimbursement of software usage charges
(made by IASC on NOCPL's behalf)
Loan received during the year
Loan repaid to KMP
Loan given to KMP
Loan repaid by KMP
Purchase of PPE and Intangible Assets
Outstanding balances as at the year end:
Interest Payable
Loan Payable
Loan Receivable from KMP
Outstanding amount of loan guaranteed by
Director

2018-19

-

-

-

Key Management
Personnel (KMP) & Relative
2019-20
2018-19

-

164.91
3.28
11.75
12.00

138.24
7.90
12.00

-

-

1,500.00

200.00

313.60

11.61

-

19.12

28.17

46.31

-

-

12.51

15.09

-

-

-

1,680.00
66.07

6.20
16.00
-

150.00
5.00
-

9.25
1,680.00

11.61
1,680.00

0.20

10.00

-

-

1,482.57

517.93

Note: Salary paid does not include amount in respect of gratuity as the same is not determinable
separately. 				
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42. Reconciliation of the opening and closing balances of liabilities arising from Financing activities:		
		
(` in lakhs)
Particulars
Long-term
borrowings (Net)

Balance as on 31st Balance as on 1st Fair value / Ind
March, 2020
April, 2019
AS adjustments
3,189.16

2,634.04

-

Net Cash flowsinflow/(Outflow)
555.12
(` in lakhs)

Particulars
Long-term
borrowings (Net)

Balance as on 31st
March, 2019

Balance as on 1st
April, 2018

Fair value / Ind
AS adjustments

Net Cash flowsinflow/(Outflow)

2,634.04

1,181.43

24.47

1,428.15

The net cash flows - inflows/(outflows) are included in the Cash Flow Statement as Cash Flow from
Financing Activities.		
43. Ministry of Corporate Affairs (“MCA”) notifies new standard or amendments to the existing standards.
There is no such notification which would have been applicable from April 1, 2020.
44. Previous years figures have been regrouped, reclassified and rearranged wherever necessary to
conform to the current years classification.						
45. Figures have been rounded off to the nearest rupee.

In terms of our report of even date attached
For Haribhakti & Co. LLP

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors

Chartered Accountants			
ICAI Firm Registration No.103523W/W100048			
			
Snehal Shah
K.R. Kamath
Ganesh Ramanand Rao
Partner
Chairman
Managing Director & CEO
Membership No. 048539
DIN: 01715073
DIN: 02302989
R. Loganathan
Chief Financial Officer
		
Place : Mumbai
Date : 26th May, 2020

Mona Jeetendra Thakkar
Company Secretary
ACS M. No: A43836

Place : Mumbai		
Date : 26th May, 2020		
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Stitches of

Hope

Solanki Ben creates magic with her deft hands. She
spends a major part of the day doing mirror work
and embroidery on cut out fabrics sent by cloth
manufacturers. Solanki Ben is carrying on her family’s
legacy from her shop in Memco, Gujarat.
She took a loan through New
Opportunity in order to buy
raw materials for embroidery
so that she could directly sell
to customers. Her intricate
artistry has helped her attain
repeat customers and also
connections with various
cloth manufacturers. With her
increased income, she has
been able to purchase a twowheeler for her husband!

Consolidated Financial

Statement
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Independent

Auditor’s
Report

To the Members of New Opportunity Consultancy
Private Limited
Report on the Audit of the Consolidated Ind AS
Financial Statements
Opinion
We have audited the accompanying Consolidated
Ind AS Financial Statements of New Opportunity
Consultancy Private Limited (hereinafter referred
to as “the Holding Company”) and its subsidiary
(the Holding Company and its subsidiary together
referred to as “the Group”), comprising of the
Consolidated Balance Sheet as at March 31,
2020, the Consolidated Statement of Profit and
Loss (including Other Comprehensive Income), the
Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity and
the Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows for the
year then ended and notes to the Consolidated
Ind AS Financial Statements including a summary
of the significant accounting policies and other
explanatory information (hereinafter referred to as
“Consolidated Ind AS Financial Statements”).
In our opinion and to the best of our information
and according to the explanations given to us, the
aforesaid Consolidated Ind AS Financial Statements
give the information required by the Companies
Act, 2013 (“the Act”) in the manner so required and
give a true and fair view in conformity with the
accounting principles generally accepted in India
including the Indian Accounting Standards (“Ind
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AS”) prescribed under section 133 of the Act, of the
consolidated state of affairs of the Group as at
March 31, 2020, their consolidated profit (including
other comprehensive income), their consolidated
changes in equity and their consolidated cash flows
for the year ended on that date.
Basis for Opinion
We conducted our audit in accordance with the
Standards on Auditing (SAs) specified under section
143(10) of the Act. Our responsibilities under those
Standards are further described in the Auditor’s
Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated Ind
AS Financial Statements section of our report. We are
independent of the Group in accordance with the
Code of Ethics issued by the Institute of Chartered
Accountants of India (“ICAI”) together with the ethical
requirements that are relevant to our audit of the
Consolidated Ind AS Financial Statements under
the provisions of the Act and Rules thereunder, and
we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities
in accordance with these requirements and the
Code of Ethics. We believe that the audit evidence
we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to
provide a basis for our opinion on the Consolidated
Ind AS Financial Statements.
Emphasis of Matter
We draw attention to Note No. 31 to the
accompanying Consolidated Ind AS Financial
Statements which explains the uncertainties and
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the management’s evaluation of the financial
impact on the Company due to lockdown and
other restrictions on account of COVID-19 pandemic
situation, for which a definitive assessment of the
impact is highly dependent upon the circumstances
as they evolve in the subsequent period.
Our opinion is not modified in respect of this matter.
Other Information
The Holding Company’s Board of Directors is
responsible for the other information. The other
information comprises the information included in the
Holding Company’s Directors’ Report, but does not
include the Standalone Ind AS Financial Statements,
Consolidated Ind AS Financial Statements and our
auditor’s report thereon.
Our opinion on the Consolidated Ind AS Financial
Statements does not cover the other information
and we do not express any form of assurance
conclusion thereon.
In connection with our audit of the Consolidated
Ind AS Financial Statements, our responsibility is
to read the other information and, in doing so,
consider whether the other information is materially
inconsistent with the Consolidated Ind AS Financial
Statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit
or otherwise appears to be materially misstated.
If, based on the work we have performed, we
conclude that there is a material misstatement of
this other information, we are required to report
that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.
Responsibilities of Management and Those Charged
with Governance for the Consolidated Ind AS
Financial Statements
The Holding Company’s Board of Directors is
responsible for the preparation and presentation of
these Consolidated Ind AS Financial Statements in
terms of the requirements of the Act that give a true
and fair view of the consolidated financial position,
consolidated financial performance (including other
comprehensive income), consolidated changes in
equity and consolidated cash flows of the Group in
accordance with the accounting principles generally
accepted in India, including Ind AS prescribed under
section 133 of the Act, read with the Companies
(Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015, as
amended. The respective Board of Directors of the
companies included in the Group are responsible

for maintenance of adequate accounting records
in accordance with the provisions of the Act
for safeguarding the assets of the Group and
for preventing and detecting frauds and other
irregularities; the selection and application of
appropriate accounting policies; making judgments
and estimates that are reasonable and prudent;
and design, implementation and maintenance
of adequate internal financial controls, that were
operating effectively for ensuring the accuracy
and completeness of the accounting records,
relevant to the preparation and presentation of
the Consolidated Ind AS Financial Statements that
give a true and fair view and are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, which
have been used for the purpose of preparation of
the Consolidated Ind AS Financial Statements by the
Directors of the Holding Company, as aforesaid.
In preparing the Consolidated Ind AS Financial
Statements, the respective Board of Directors of the
companies included in the Group are responsible
for assessing the ability of the Group to continue as
a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters
related to going concern and using the going
concern basis of accounting unless management
either intends to liquidate the Group or to cease
operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do
so.
The respective Board of Directors of the companies
included in the Group are responsible for overseeing
the financial reporting process of the Group.
Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the
Consolidated Ind AS Financial Statements
Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance
about whether the Consolidated Ind AS Financial
Statements as a whole are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to
issue an auditor’s report that includes our opinion.
Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance,
but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in
accordance with SAs will always detect a material
misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can
arise from fraud or error and are considered
material if, individually or in the aggregate, they
could reasonably be expected to influence the
economic decisions of users taken on the basis of
these Consolidated Ind AS Financial Statements. As
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part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise
professional judgment and maintain professional
skepticism throughout the audit. We also:
y

y

y

y
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Identify and assess the risks of material
misstatement of the Consolidated Ind AS
Financial Statements, whether due to fraud or
error, design and perform audit procedures
responsive to those risks, and obtain audit
evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to
provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not
detecting a material misstatement resulting
from fraud is higher than for one resulting from
error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery,
intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the
override of internal control.
Obtain an understanding of internal control
relevant to the audit in order to design audit
procedures that are appropriate in the
circumstances. Under section 143(3)(i) of the
Act, we are also responsible for expressing our
opinion on whether the Holding Company and
its subsidiary, which is incorporated in India,
have adequate internal financial controls with
reference to financial statements in place and
the operating effectiveness of such controls.
Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting
policies used and the reasonableness of
accounting estimates and related disclosures
made by management.
Conclude
on
the
appropriateness
of
management’s use of the going concern basis
of accounting and, based on the audit evidence
obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists
related to events or conditions that may cast
significant doubt on the ability of the Group to
continue as a going concern. If we conclude that
a material uncertainty exists, we are required
to draw attention in our auditor’s report to
the related disclosures in the Consolidated Ind
AS Financial Statements or, if such disclosures
are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our
conclusions are based on the audit evidence
obtained up to the date of our auditor’s report.
However, future events or conditions may
cause the Group to cease to continue as a
going concern.

y

Evaluate the overall presentation, structure
and content of the Consolidated Ind AS
Financial Statements, including the disclosures,
and whether the Consolidated Ind AS
Financial Statements represent the underlying
transactions and events in a manner that
achieves fair presentation.

y

Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence
regarding the financial information of the
entities or business activities within the Group
of which we are the independent auditors, to
express an opinion on the Consolidated Ind AS
Financial Statements. We are responsible for
the direction, supervision and performance of
the audit of the Ind AS financial statements of
such entities included in the Consolidated Ind
AS Financial Statements of which we are the
independent auditors.

We communicate with those charged with
governance of the Holding Company and such
other entities included in the Consolidated Ind
AS Financial Statements of which we are the
independent auditors regarding, among other
matters, the planned scope and timing of the
audit and significant audit findings, including any
significant deficiencies in internal control that we
identify during our audit.
We also provide those charged with governance with
a statement that we have complied with relevant
ethical requirements regarding independence, and
to communicate with them all relationships and
other matters that may reasonably be thought to
bear on our independence, and where applicable,
related safeguards.
Other matter
Due to severe health hazard associated with
COVID-19 and also the consequential nationwide lockdown from March 25, 2020 till May
31, 2020, announced by the government, it was
impracticable for us to physically verify certain
documents pertaining to revenue and expense
transactions nor the management could facilitate
scan copies of the same due to its voluminous
nature. Therefore, we have performed and relied on
other related alternative audit procedures to obtain
comfort over the completeness and accuracy of
these transactions.
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Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements
As required by section 143(3) of the Act, based on
our audit we report, to the extent applicable, that:
a.

b.

c.

d.

We have sought and obtained all the
information and explanations which to the best
of our knowledge and belief were necessary
for the purposes of our audit of the aforesaid
Consolidated Ind AS Financial Statements;
In our opinion, proper books of account as
required by law relating to preparation of
the aforesaid Consolidated Ind AS Financial
Statements have been kept so far as it appears
from our examination of those books and the
reports of the other auditors;
The
Consolidated
Balance
Sheet,
the
Consolidated Statement of Profit and Loss
(including Other Comprehensive Income), the
Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity
and the Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows
dealt with by this report are in agreement with
the relevant books of account maintained for
the purpose of preparation of the Consolidated
Ind AS Financial Statements;
In our opinion, the aforesaid Consolidated Ind
AS Financial Statements comply with the Ind AS
specified under section 133 of the Act read with
the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards)
Rules, 2015, as amended;

e.

The matter described under the Emphasis of
Matter section above, in our opinion, may have
an adverse effect on the functioning of the
Group;

f.

On the basis of the written representations
received from the directors of the Holding
Company and its subsidiary company which is
incorporated in India, as on March 31, 2020 and
taken on record by the Board of Directors of the
respective companies, none of the directors of
the Group companies incorporated in India, are
disqualified as on March 31, 2020 from being
appointed as a director in terms of section
164(2) of the Act;

g.

With respect to the adequacy of the internal
financial controls with reference to financial
statements of the Holding Company and its
subsidiary company incorporated in India and
the operating effectiveness of such controls,

refer to our separate report in “Annexure”;
h.

With respect to the other matters to be included
in the Auditor’s Report in accordance with the
requirements of section 197(16) of the Act:

In our opinion and to the best of our information
and according to the explanations given to us, the
Holding Company being a private company and the
subsidiary company being a section 8 company,
section 197 of the Act related to the managerial
remuneration is not applicable;
i.

With respect to the other matters to be included
in the Auditor’s Report in accordance with Rule
11 of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules,
2014, in our opinion and to the best of our
information and according to the explanations
given to us:
(i)

The Consolidated Ind AS Financial
Statements disclose the impact of pending
litigations on the consolidated financial
position of the Group – Refer Note No.
30 to the Consolidated Ind AS Financial
Statements;

(ii) The Group did not have any material
foreseeable losses on long term contracts
including derivative contracts; and
(iii) There were no amounts which were
required to be transferred to the Investor
Education and Protection Fund by the
Holding Company and its subsidiary
company, incorporated in India.

For Haribhakti & Co. LLP
Chartered Accountants
ICAI Firm Registration No.103523W / W100048
Snehal Shah
Partner
Place: Mumbai

Membership No. 048539

Date: May 26, 2020 UDIN: 20048539AAAAAR6358
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ANNEXURE TO THE INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
[Referred to in paragraph 2(g) under ‘Report on
Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements’ section
in our Independent Auditor’s Report of even date
to the members of New Opportunity Consultancy
Private Limited on the Consolidated Ind AS Financial
Statements for the year ended March 31, 2020]
Report on the Internal Financial Controls with
reference to Financial Statements under clause (i) of
sub-section 3 of section 143 of the Companies Act,
2013 (“the Act”)
In conjunction with our audit of the Consolidated
Ind AS Financial Statements of New Opportunity
Consultancy Private Limited (“Holding Company”) as
of and for the year ended March 31, 2020, we have
audited the internal financial controls with reference
to Consolidated Ind AS Financial Statements of the
Holding Company and its subsidiary company,
which is incorporated in India, as of that date.
Management’s Responsibility for Internal Financial
Controls
The respective Board of Directors of the Holding
Company and its subsidiary company, which is
incorporated in India, are responsible for establishing
and maintaining internal financial controls based
on the internal control with reference to financial
statements criteria established by the Holding
Company considering the essential components
of internal control stated in the Guidance Note
on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over
Financial Reporting (the “Guidance Note”) issued
by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India
(“ICAI”). These responsibilities include the design,
implementation and maintenance of adequate
internal financial controls that were operating
effectively for ensuring the orderly and efficient
conduct of its business, including adherence to the
respective company’s policies, the safeguarding of
its assets, the prevention and detection of frauds
and errors, the accuracy and completeness of the
accounting records, and the timely preparation of
reliable financial information, as required under the
Act.
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Auditor’s Responsibility
Our responsibility is to express an opinion on
the internal financial controls with reference to
Consolidated Ind AS Financial Statements of
Holding Company and its subsidiary company,
which is incorporated in India, based on our audit.
We conducted our audit in accordance with the
Guidance Note and the Standards on Auditing
specified under section 143(10) of the Act, to the
extent applicable to an audit of internal financial
controls, both issued by the ICAI. Those Standards
and the Guidance Note require that we comply
with ethical requirements and plan and perform
the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about
whether adequate internal financial controls
with reference to Consolidated Ind AS Financial
Statements was established and maintained and
if such controls operated effectively in all material
respects.
Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain
audit evidence about the adequacy of the internal
financial controls with reference to Consolidated
Ind AS Financial Statements and their operating
effectiveness. Our audit of internal financial controls
with reference to Consolidated Ind AS Financial
Statements included obtaining an understanding
of internal financial controls with reference to
Consolidated Ind AS Financial Statements, assessing
the risk that a material weakness exists, and
testing and evaluating the design and operating
effectiveness of internal control based on the
assessed risk. The procedures selected depend on
the auditor’s judgement, including the assessment
of the risks of material misstatement of the
Consolidated Ind AS Financial Statements, whether
due to fraud or error.
We believe that the audit evidence we have
obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a
basis for our audit opinion on the internal financial
controls with reference to Consolidated Ind AS
Financial Statements of Holding Company and its
subsidiary company.
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Meaning of Internal Financial Controls with reference
to Financial Statements
A company's internal financial control with reference
to financial statements is a process designed
to provide reasonable assurance regarding the
reliability of financial reporting and the preparation
of financial statements for external purposes in
accordance with generally accepted accounting
principles. A company's internal financial control
with reference to financial statements includes
those policies and procedures that (1) pertain to
the maintenance of records that, in reasonable
detail, accurately and fairly reflect the transactions
and dispositions of the assets of the company; (2)
provide reasonable assurance that transactions
are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of
financial statements in accordance with generally
accepted accounting principles, and that receipts
and expenditures of the company are being
made only in accordance with authorisations of
management and directors of the company; and (3)
provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention
or timely detection of unauthorised acquisition, use,
or disposition of the company's assets that could
have a material effect on the financial statements.

Opinion
In our opinion and to the best of our information
and according to the explanations given to us the
Holding Company and its subsidiary company,
which is incorporated in India, have, in all material
respects, adequate internal financial controls
with reference to Consolidated Ind AS Financial
Statements and such internal financial controls with
reference to financial statements were operating
effectively as at March 31, 2020, based on the
internal control with reference to Consolidated Ind
AS Financial Statements criteria established by the
respective companies considering the essential
components of internal control stated in the
Guidance Note issued by the ICAI.
We have included an Emphasis of Matter (EOM)
section in our Independent Auditor’s Report to
highlight the impact of COVID-19 assessment on
the Consolidated Ind AS Financial Statements of
the Company for the year ended March 31, 2020.
Our opinion on the Company’s internal financial
controls with reference to financial statements is
not affected by this EOM since no concerns have
been noted with regard to the design and operating
effectiveness of internal controls.

Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls
with reference to Financial Statements
Because of the inherent limitations of internal
financial controls with reference to Consolidated
Ind AS Financial Statements, including the possibility
of collusion or improper management override
of controls, material misstatements due to error
or fraud may occur and not be detected. Also,
projections of any evaluation of the internal
financial controls with reference to Consolidated
Ind AS Financial Statements to future periods are
subject to the risk that the internal financial control
with reference to financial statements may become
inadequate because of changes in conditions, or
that the degree of compliance with the policies or
procedures may deteriorate.

For Haribhakti & Co. LLP
Chartered Accountants
ICAI Firm Registration No.103523W / W100048
Snehal Shah
Partner
Membership No. 048539
UDIN: 20048539AAAAAR6358
Place: Mumbai
Date: May 26, 2020
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Consolidated Balance Sheet as at 31st March, 2020
Particulars
ASSETS
Non-current assets
(a) Property, Plant and Equipment
(b) Capital work in progress
(c) Intangible assets
(d) Financial assets
- Investments
- Loans
- Other
(e) Deferred tax assets (net)
(f) Non Current Tax Assets (net)
(g) Other non-current assets
Total non-current assets
Current assets
(a) Financial assets
(i) Trade receivables
(ii) Cash and cash equivalents
(iii) Bank balances other than (ii) above
(iv) Loans
(v) Other
(b) Other current assets
Total current assets
Total assets
EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
Equity
(a) Equity Share capital
(b) Other Equity
Equity Attributable to owners of the Company
Non-Controlling interests
Total equity
Liabilities
Non-current Liabilities
(a) Financial liabilities
- Borrowings
Total Non-current Liabilities
Current Liabilities
(a) Financial liabilities
- Other financial liabilities
(b) Other current liabilities
(c) Provisions
(d) Current Tax Liabilities (net)
Total Current Liabilities
Total Liabilities
Total Equity and Liabilities

Note No.

As at 31st
March, 2020

(` in lakhs)
As at 31st
March, 2019

2
2
3

663.58
16.50

505.33
20.85

4
5
6
7
8
9

96.64
6.78
4,916.20
163.51
155.37
6,018.58

4,708.55
169.62
89.03
55.42
5,548.80

10
11
12
5
13
14

1,793.50
639.79
4,916.07
137.32
474.31
150.59
8,111.58
14,130.16

1,502.41
1,389.67
1,916.88
197.61
319.90
96.34
5,422.81
10,971.61

15
16

535.75
10,538.45
11,074.20
0.44
11,074.64

535.75
6,865.85
7,401.60
0.43
7,402.03

17

847.61
847.61

142.54
142.54

18
19
20
21

1,261.68
588.23
350.55
7.46
2,207.92
3,055.53
14,130.16

2,009.09
661.65
570.15
186.14
3,427.03
3,569.57
10,971.61

The accompanying Notes 1 to 49 are an integral part of the consolidated financial statements.
For Haribhakti & Co. LLP
For and on behalf of the Board of Directors		
Chartered Accountants			
ICAI Firm Registration No.103523W/W100048			
			
Snehal Shah
K.R. Kamath
Ganesh Ramanand Rao
Partner
Chairman
Managing Director & CEO
Membership No. 048539
DIN: 01715073
DIN: 02302989
R. Loganathan
Chief Financial Officer
		
Place : Mumbai
Date : 26th May, 2020
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Mona Jeetendra Thakkar
Company Secretary
ACS M. No: A43836

Place : Mumbai		
Date : 26th May, 2020		
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Consolidated Statement of Profit and Loss as at 31st March, 2020
(` in lakhs)
Note
No.

Particulars
I.
II.
III.
IV.

Revenue from operations
Other Income
Total Income (I + II)
EXPENSES:
Employee benefits expense
Finance costs
Depreciation and amortization expenses
Other expenses
Total expenses (IV)
V Profit before tax (III - IV)
VI Tax Expense
(1) Current Tax
(2) Deferred Tax
(3) Taxation for earlier years
VII Profit for the year (V - VI)
VIII Other comprehensive income
Items that will not be reclassified to profit or loss
- Remeasurement of post employment benefit obligations
- Income tax relating to these items that will not be
reclassified to profit or loss
Total other comprehensive income
IX Total comprehensive income (VII+VIII)
X Profit for the year attributable to
- Owners of the Company
- Non-controlling interests
XI Other Comprehensive Income for the year attributable to
- Owners of the Company
- Non-controlling interests
XII Total Comprehensive Income for the year attributable to
- Owners of the Company
- Non-controlling interests
XIII Earnings per equity share (Face value ` 10 each):
- Basic & Diluted

For the year ended
31st March, 2020

For the year ended
31st March, 2019

22
23

17,174.31
105.10
17,279.41

13,796.65
145.40
13,942.05

24
25
26
27

9,133.90
219.40
224.37
2,773.80
12,351.47
4,927.94

6,063.65
269.43
152.54
3,349.46
9,835.08
4,106.98

1,263.00
(1.71)
17.30
3,649.35

1,106.69
70.44
69.93
2,859.92

31.07

(8.98)

(7.82)

3.73

23.25
3,672.60

(5.25)
2,854.67

3,649.34
0.01
23.25
0.00

2,859.92
(0.01)
(5.25)
0.00

3,672.59
0.01

2,854.67
(0.01)

68.12

53.38

28

29

The accompanying Notes 1 to 49 are an integral part of the consolidated financial statements.

For Haribhakti & Co. LLP
For and on behalf of the Board of Directors		
Chartered Accountants			
ICAI Firm Registration No.103523W/W100048			
			
Snehal Shah
K.R. Kamath
Ganesh Ramanand Rao
Partner
Chairman
Managing Director & CEO
Membership No. 048539
DIN: 01715073
DIN: 02302989
R. Loganathan
Chief Financial Officer
		
Place : Mumbai
Date : 26th May, 2020

Mona Jeetendra Thakkar
Company Secretary
ACS M. No: A43836

Place : Mumbai		
Date : 26th May, 2020		
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Consolidated statement of changes in equity

as at 31st March, 2020

A. Equity Share capital 		
Particulars

` in lakhs

Balance as at 1st April 2018

535.75

Shares issued during the year

-

Balance as at 31st March 2019

535.75

Shares issued during the year

-

Balance as at 31st March 2020
B. Other equity
Particulars
Balance as at 1st
April, 2018
Profit for the year
2018-19
Transfer to other
reserves
Other
Comprehensive
income (net of tax)
Balance as at 31st
March, 2019
Profit for the year
2019-20
Transfer to other
reserves
Other
Comprehensive
income (net of tax)
Balance as at 31st
March, 2020
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535.75

									
(` in lakhs)
Reserves and Surplus
Debenture
NonCapital
General Retained
Securities Redemption
controlling
Total
Reserve
Reserve Earnings
Premium
Reserve
interests
369.21

123.75

220.00

-

3,298.23

0.44

4,011.63

-

-

-

-

2,859.92

(0.01)

2,859.91

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

(5.25)

0.00

(5.25)

369.21

123.75

220.00

-

6,152.90

0.43

6,866.29

-

-

-

-

3,649.34

0.01

3,649.35

-

-

(220.00)

220.00

-

-

-

-

-

23.25

369.21

123.75

-

220.00

9,825.49

0.00

23.25

0.44 10,538.89
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Consolidated Statement of cash flows

as at 31st March, 2020
(` in lakhs)

Particulars

For the year ended
31st March, 2020

For the year ended
31st March, 2019

A. Cash flows from operating activities
Profit before tax

4,927.94

4,106.98

Adjustments for:
Dividend Income

-

(5.12)

Depreciation and amortization expenses

224.37

152.54

Finance Costs

219.40

269.43

-

-

3.20

9.94

-

0.01

Loss on fair value changes of equity instruments

3.36

-

Provision for expected credit loss on Trade Receivable

0.51

-

Provision for expected credit loss on EMI & Service Tax

494.64

Assets written off (Net)
Loss on sale of PPE
Loss on Sale of Investments

Operating profit before working capital changes
- Increase in trade receivables
- Increase in Non-current and current financial assets
- Increase in Other non-current and current assets
- Decrease in non-current and current financial liabilities
- Decrease in other non-current and current liabilities
- Increase/(Decrease) in other non-current and current
provisions
Cash generated from / (used in) operations

945.48

98.45

5,873.42

4,632.23

(291.60)

(297.71)

(3,558.24)

(2,453.75)

(29.50)

(50.68)

(721.65)

(484.91)

(73.42)

228.93

(530.19)

(5,204.60)

525.25

146.13

(2,911.99)

668.82

1,720.24

(1,508.33)

(914.74)

(839.51)

805.50

Purchase of Property, Plant & Equipment and Intangible
Assets

(317.57)

(233.51)

Proceeds from sale of Property, Plant & Equipment and
Intangible Assets

0.85

5.54

(Purchase)/Sale of Investments

-

22.62

Dividend Income

-

5.12

(316.72)

(200.23)

Income taxes paid (Net of Refunds)
Net cash generated from/ (used in) operating activities
- (A)
B. Cash flows from investing activities

Net cash used in investing activities - (B)
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Consolidated Statement of cash flows

as at 31st March, 2020
(` in lakhs)

For the year ended
31st March, 2020

Particulars
C. Cash flow from Financing activities
Proceeds from non-current borrowings (Refer Note
No.44)
Repayment of non-current borrowings (Refer Note
No.44)
Overdraft facility from Bank
Interest paid
Net cash used in financing activities - (C)
Net increase/(decrease) in cash and cash equivalents
(A+B+C)
Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the year
Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year
Components of Cash & Cash Equivalents as at the year
end (Refer Note 11)
Cash
Balances With Bank:
in current accounts
in fixed deposit accounts with maturity less than 3
months

For the year ended
31st March, 2019

1,532.56

200.00

(1,008.22)

(481.97)

145.76
(263.75)
406.35

(254.96)
(536.93)

(749.88)

68.33

1,389.67
639.79

1,321.34
1,389.67

25.00

0.01

614.79

1,289.66

-

100.00

639.79

1,389.67

The above cash flow has been prepared under the "Indirect Method" as set out in Indian Accounting
Standard (Ind AS) 7- Statement of Cash Flows.

For Haribhakti & Co. LLP
For and on behalf of the Board of Directors		
Chartered Accountants			
ICAI Firm Registration No.103523W/W100048			
			
Snehal Shah
K.R. Kamath
Ganesh Ramanand Rao
Partner
Chairman
Managing Director & CEO
Membership No. 048539
DIN: 01715073
DIN: 02302989
R. Loganathan
Chief Financial Officer
		
Place : Mumbai
Date : 26th May, 2020
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Mona Jeetendra Thakkar
Company Secretary
ACS M. No: A43836

Place : Mumbai		
Date : 26th May, 2020		

A Quest

for Self
There is always a stream of customers bustling in and out of Meghali’s shop. Meghali
lives in Sapkhaiti, a village in Udalguri district of Assam, with her husband and
daughter. Her family’s source of income is a grocery shop, run jointly by Meghali and
her husband. The grocery shop was not generating enough income because of intense
competition in neighboring locations. Meghali thought of diversifying the commodities
stocked in her shop to increase footfall. To do this, she availed a loan through New
Opportunity and stocked up on items not easily available in the locality. With the stock
to cater to all her customers’ needs and her exemplary service, Meghali’s shop now
has a stream of new regular shoppers.
Her family now sees a steady income of `.15,000/- per month. She is now planning to
expand her store and sell stationary items as well!
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Notes to consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31st March, 2020
1.

Significant Accounting Policies

i.

Corporate Information:

in accordance with accounting principles
generally accepted in India.
The Consolidated Financial Statements have
been prepared & presented on the historical
cost basis except for certain financial
instruments measured at fair values at the end
of each reporting period, as explained in the
accounting policies below.

New Opportunity Consultancy Private Limited
(“the Company” or “the parent”) is a company
incorporated under the Companies Act, 2013.
The Company is an authorised Business
Correspondent (BC) of YES Bank Ltd., RBL Bank
Ltd., Reliance Commercial Finance Ltd., DCB
Bank Ltd., IDBI Bank Ltd., Utkarsh Small Finance
Bank Ltd., Axis Bank Ltd., Kotak Mahindra Bank
Ltd., Fincare Small Finance Bank, Equitas Small
Finance bank, Northern Arc, Fed Fin Financial
Services Ltd. and Suryoday Small Finance
Bank. The Parent and its subsidiary (together
referred to as “the Group”) are engaged in the
business of providing micro loans under Self
Help Group (SHG)/Joint Liability Group (JLG)
model and other related financial services
on behalf of the banks. The Group manages
a portfolio of Rupees ` 1,93,487.32 lakhs (PY
` 1,41,710.23 lakhs) as on the balance sheet
date with regard to the services as a Business
Correspondent.
ii.

General Information and
Compliance with Ind AS:

Statement

Fair value is the price that would be received
to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability
in an orderly transaction between market
participants at the measurement date,
regardless of whether that price is directly
observable or estimated using another
valuation technique. In estimating the fair
value of an asset or a liability, the Group takes
in to account the characteristics of the asset
or liability if market participants would take
those characteristics into account when pricing
the asset or liability at the measurement date.
Fair value for measurement and/or disclosure
purposes in these Consolidated Financial
Statements is determined on the basis stated
above, except for Accounting for Leases
that are within the scope of Ind AS 17 and
measurements that have some similarities
to fair value but are not fair value, such as
net realizable value in Ind AS 2 or value in
use under Ind AS 36. In addition, for financial
reporting purposes, fair value measurements
are categorized into Level 1,2, or 3 based
on the degree to which the inputs to the fair
value measurements are observable and
the significance of the inputs to the fair value
measurements in its entirety, which are
described as follows:

of

These consolidated financial statements
(‘Consolidated Financial Statements’) of the
Group have been prepared in accordance with
the Indian Accounting Standards (hereinafter
referred to as the ‘Ind AS’) as notified by Ministry
of Corporate Affairs (‘MCA’) under Section
133 of the Companies Act, 2013 (‘the Act’)
read with the Companies (Indian Accounting
Standards) Rules, 2015, as amended and
other relevant provisions of the Act. The Group
has uniformly applied the accounting policies
during the periods presented. The financial
statements for the year ended 31st March
2020 were authorized and approved for issue
by the Board of Directors on 26th May, 2020.
Basis of Preparation:
The Consolidated Financial Statements have
been prepared on going concern basis
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Historical cost is generally based on the fair
value of the consideration given in exchange
for goods and services.

y

Level 1 inputs are quoted prices (unadjusted) in
active markets for identical assets or liabilities
that the entity can access at the measurement
date;
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Notes to consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31st March, 2020
y

Level 2 inputs are inputs, other than quoted
prices included within level 1, that are
observable for the asset or liability, either
directly or indirectly; and

y

It is expected to be realised within twelve
months after the reporting period, or

y

It is cash or cash equivalent unless restricted
from being exchanged or used to settle a
liability for at least twelve months after the
reporting period.

y

Level 3 inputs are unobservable inputs for the
asset or liability.

iii.

Use of Estimates:

All other assets are classified as non-current.

The preparation of Consolidated Financial
Statements is in conformity with generally
accepted accounting principles which require
the management of the Group to make
judgements, estimates and assumptions
that affect the reported amount of revenues,
expenses, assets and liabilities and disclosure
of contingent liabilities at the end of the
reporting period. Although these estimates
are based upon the management’s best
knowledge of current events and actions,
uncertainty about these assumptions and
estimates could result in the outcomes
requiring a material adjustment to the carrying
amounts of assets or liabilities in future period.
Appropriate changes in estimates are made
as management becomes aware of changes
in circumstances surrounding the estimates.
Application of accounting policies that require
significant accounting estimates involving
complex and subjective judgments and the use
of assumptions in these financial statements
have been disclosed separately under the
heading “Significant accounting Judgements,
estimates and assumption”.

A liability is classified as current, when:

iv.

y

It is expected to be settled in normal operating
cycle.

y

It is held primarily for the purpose of trading.

y

It is due to be settled within twelve months
after the reporting period, or

y

There is no unconditional right to defer the
settlement of the liability for at least twelve
months after the reporting period.
The entity classifies all other liabilities as noncurrent.
Deferred tax assets and liabilities are classified
as non-current assets and liabilities.

v.

The
Consolidated
Financial
Statements
comprise the financial statements of the
Company and its subsidiary as at 31st March
2020. Control is achieved when the Company
is exposed, or has rights, to variable returns
from its involvement with the investee and
has the ability to affect those returns through
its power over the investee. Specifically, the
Company controls an investee if and only if the
Company has:

Current versus non-current classification
The entity presents assets and liabilities in the
balance sheet based on current/ non-current
classification.

Principles of Consolidation:

y

Power over the investee (i.e. existing rights that
give it the current ability to direct the relevant
activities of the investee)

An asset is classified as current, when:
y

It is expected to be realised or intended to be
sold or consumed in normal operating cycle.

y

Exposure, or rights, to variable returns from its
involvement with the investee, and

y

It is held primarily for the purpose of trading.

y

•The ability to use its power over the investee to
affect its returns
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Notes to consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31st March, 2020
Generally, there is a presumption that a majority
of voting rights result in control. To support this
presumption and when the Company has less
than majority of the voting or similar rights of an
investee, the Company considers all relevant
facts and circumstances in assessing whether
it has power over an investee, including:
y

The contractual arrangement with the other
vote holders of the investee

y

Rights
arising
arrangements

y

The Company’s voting rights and potential
voting rights

from

other

contractual

The Company re-assesses whether or not it
controls an investee if facts and circumstances
indicate that there are changes to one or more
of the three elements of control listed above.
Consolidation of a subsidiary begins when the
Company obtains control over the subsidiary
and ceases when the Company loses control
of the subsidiary. Assets, liabilities, income
and expenses of a subsidiary acquired or
disposed of during the year are included in
the consolidated financial statements from the
date the Group gains control until the date the
Company ceases to control the subsidiary.
Profit or loss and each component of other
comprehensive income (OCI) are attributed to
the equity holders of the parent of the Group
and to the non-controlling interests, even if this
results in the non-controlling interests having a
deficit balance. When necessary, adjustments
are made to the financial statements of
subsidiaries to bring their accounting policies
into line with the Group’s accounting policies.
All intra-group assets and liabilities, equity,
income, expenses and cash flows relating to
transactions between members of the Group
are eliminated in full on consolidation.
A change in the ownership interest of a
subsidiary, without a loss of control, is
accounted for as an equity transaction. If the
Group loses control over a subsidiary, it:
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y

Derecognises the assets (including goodwill)
and liabilities of the subsidiary

y

Derecognises the carrying amount of any noncontrolling interests

y

Derecognises the cumulative
differences recorded in equity

y

Recognises the fair value of the consideration
received

y

Recognises the fair value of any investment
retained

y

Recognises any surplus or deficit in profit or
loss

y

Reclassifies the parent’s share of components
previously recognised in OCI to profit or loss or
retained earnings, as appropriate, as would
be required if the Group had directly disposed
of the related assets or liabilities.

vi.

Foreign currency transactions

translation

Functional and presentation currency
The Group’s consolidated financial statements
are presented in Indian Rupee in lakhs which is
also the functional and presentation currency
of the parent company. All amounts have been
rounded-off to the nearest rupee in thousands.
(a) Initial recognition
Foreign currency transactions are recorded
in the functional currency, by applying to the
exchange rate between the functional currency
and the foreign currency at the date of the
transaction.
(b) Conversion
Foreign currency monetary items are converted
to functional currency using the closing rate.
Non-monetary items denominated in a foreign
currency which are carried at historical cost
are reported using the exchange rate at the
date of the transaction; and non-monetary
items which are carried at fair value or
any other similar valuation denominated
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in a foreign currency are reported using the
exchange rates that existed when the values
were determined.

The Group has used the following useful lives
to provide depreciation on its Property, Plant
and Equipment:

Exchange differences arising on monetary items
on settlement, or restatement as at reporting
date, at rates different from those at which
they were initially recorded, are recognized in
the Statement of Profit and Loss in the year in
which they arise.

Class of Assets

vii. Property, Plant and Equipment:
Property, Plant and Equipment (PPE), being
fixed assets are tangible items that are held for
use in supply of services or for administrative
purposes and are expected to be used for
more than a period of twelve months. They
are measured at cost less accumulated
depreciation and any accumulated impairment.
Cost comprises of the purchase price including
import duties and non-refundable purchase
taxes after deducting trade discounts and
rebates and any costs attributable to bringing
the asset to the location and condition
necessary for it to be capable of operating in
the manner intended by the Management.
Depreciation on Property, Plant and Equipment
(PPE) are provided under straight line method
as per the useful lives and manner prescribed
under Schedule II to the Companies Act, 2013,
except leasehold buildings under operating
lease arrangements, which are amortised
over the leasehold period. The management
believes that the estimates useful life as per
the provisions of Schedule II to the Companies
Act, 2013 would reflect approximation of the
period over which the assets are likely to be
used.
Where the cost of a part of the PPE is significant
to the total cost of the PPE and if that part of
the PPE has a different useful life than the main
PPE, the useful life of that part is determined
separately for depreciation.

Useful Lives

Furniture and fixtures

10 years

Office equipments

5 years

Vehicles

8 years

Computers

3 years

Improvements to Leasehold Buildings are
amortized as depreciation over the lease
period, which is considered as the estimated
useful life by the management.
The depreciation method applied to an asset
is reviewed at each financial year-end and
if there has been a significant change in the
expected pattern of consumption of future
economic benefits embodied in the asset,
depreciation is charged prospectively to reflect
the changed pattern.
The carrying amount of an item of PPE is
derecognised on disposal or when no future
economic benefits are expected from its use
or disposal. Gains or losses arising from derecognition of Property, Plant and equipment
are measured as the difference between
the net disposal proceeds and the carrying
amount of the asset and are recognized in the
Statement of Profit and Loss when the asset is
de-recognised.
viii. Intangible assets and amortisation:
An intangible asset is an identifiable nonmonetary asset without physical substance.
Intangible assets are recognised only if it is
probable that future economic benefits that
are attributable to the asset will flow to the
enterprise and the cost of the asset can be
measured reliably.
Computer software licenses are capitalised
on the basis of costs incurred to acquire and
bring to use the specific software. Operating
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Other
business
combinations,
involving
entities or businesses are accounted for using
acquisition method.

software is capitalised and amortised along
with the related fixed asset.
The Group has used the following useful lives
to amortise its intangible assets:
Class of Assets
Computer software
ix.

3 Years

Impairment of Non-Financial assets:
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1.

Financial assets
Initial recognition and measurement
All financial assets are recognized initially at
fair value plus, in the case of financial assets
not recorded at fair value through profit or loss,
transaction costs that are attributable to the
acquisition of the financial asset. Purchases or
sales of financial assets that require delivery
of assets within a time frame established
by regulation or convention in the market
place (regular way trades) are recognized on
the trade date, i.e., the date that the Group
commits to purchase or sell the asset.
Subsequent measurement
For purposes of subsequent measurement,
financial assets are classified in four categories:

y

Debt instruments at Amortized Cost

y

Debt instruments at Fair Value through Other
Comprehensive Income (FVTOCI);

y

Debt instruments and equity instruments at
Fair Value through Statement of Profit and Loss
(FVTPL);

y

Equity instruments measured at Fair Value
through Other Comprehensive Income (FVTOCI).

Business Combinations:
A common control business combination,
involving entities or businesses in which all the
combining entities or businesses are ultimately
controlled by the same party or parties both
before and after the business combination and
where the control is not transitory, is accounted
for using the pooling of interests method.

Financial instruments:
A financial instrument is any contract that
gives rise to a financial asset of one entity
and a financial liability or equity instrument of
another entity.

Useful Lives

The Group periodically assesses whether there
is any indication that an asset or a group of
assets comprising a cash generating unit may
be impaired. If any such indication exists, the
Group estimates the recoverable amount of
the asset. For an asset or group of assets that
does not generate largely independent cash
inflows, the recoverable amount is determined
for the cash-generating unit to which the asset
belongs. If such recoverable amount of the
asset or the recoverable amount of the cash
generating unit to which the asset belongs
is less than its carrying amount, the carrying
amount is reduced to its recoverable amount.
The reduction is treated as an impairment
loss and is recognized in the Statement of
Profit and Loss. If at the balance sheet date
there is an indication that if a previously
assessed impairment loss no longer exists, the
recoverable amount is reassessed and the
asset is reflected at the recoverable amount
subject to a maximum of depreciable historical
cost. An impairment loss is reversed only to
the extent that the amount of asset does not
exceed the net book value that would have
been determined if no impairment loss had
been recognized.
x.

xi.

Debt instruments at amortized cost:
A ‘debt instrument’ is measured at the
amortized cost if both the following conditions
are met:
y

The asset is held within a business model
whose objective is to hold assets for collecting
contractual cash flows, and
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y

so reduces or eliminates a measurement
or recognition inconsistency (referred to as
‘accounting mismatch’).

Contractual terms of the asset give rise on
specified dates to cash flows that are solely
payments of principal and interest (SPPI) on
the principal amount outstanding.

Equity investments (other than investments in
subsidiaries and joint ventures):

After initial measurement, such financial assets
are subsequently measured at amortized cost
using the effective interest rate (EIR) method.
Amortized cost is calculated by taking into
account any discount or premium on acquisition
and fees or costs that are an integral part
of the EIR. The EIR amortization is included in
finance income in the profit or loss. The losses
arising from impairment are recognized in the
profit or loss. This category generally applies to
trade and other receivables.

All equity investments within the scope of Ind
AS 109,’ Financial Instruments’, are measured
at fair value either through Statement of Profit
and Loss or other comprehensive income. The
Group makes an irrevocable election to present
in OCI the subsequent changes in the fair value
on an instrument-by-instrument basis. The
classification is made on initial recognition.
If the Group decides to classify an equity
instrument as at FVOCI, then all fair value
changes on the instrument, excluding dividends,
impairment gains or losses and foreign
exchange gains and losses, are recognized in
the OCI. Any gains or losses on de-recognition
is recognized in the OCI and are not recycled to
the Statement of Profit and Loss.

Debt instrument at FVTOCI:
A ‘debt instrument’ is classified as at the FVTOCI
if both of the following criteria are met:
y

The objective of the business model is achieved
both by collecting contractual cash flows and
selling the financial assets, and

y

The asset’s contractual cash flows represent
SPPI.
Debt instruments included within the FVTOCI
category are measured initially as well as at
each reporting date at fair value. Fair value
movements are recognized in the other
comprehensive income (OCI).

Equity instruments included within the FVTPL
category are measured at fair value with all
changes recognized in the Statement of Profit
and Loss.
De-recognition of Financial Assets:
A financial asset (or, where applicable, a part
of a financial asset or part of a Group of similar
financial assets) is primarily de-recognized
when:

Debt instrument at FVTPL:
FVTPL is a residual category for debt
instruments. Any debt instrument, which does
not meet the criteria for categorization as at
amortized cost or as FVTOCI, is classified as
at FVTPL. Debt instruments included within the
FVTPL category are measured at fair value
with all changes recognized in the Statement
of Profit and Loss.
In addition, the Group may elect to designate
a debt instrument, which otherwise meets
amortized cost or FVTOCI criteria, as at FVTPL.
However, such election is allowed only if doing

y

The rights to receive cash flows from the asset
have expired, or

y

The Group has transferred its rights to receive
cash flows from the asset or has assumed an
obligation to pay the received cash flows in full
without material delay to a third party under a
‘pass-through’ arrangement
and
either
(a) the Group has transferred substantially all
the risks and rewards of the asset, or (b) the
Group has neither transferred nor retained
substantially all the risks and rewards of the
asset, but has transferred control of the asset.
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When the Group has transferred its rights to
receive cash flows from an asset or has entered
into a pass-through arrangement, it evaluates
if and to what extent it has retained the risks
and rewards of ownership. When it has neither
transferred nor retained substantially all of the
risks and rewards of the asset, nor transferred
control of the asset, the Group continues to
recognize the transferred asset to the extent
of the Group’s continuing involvement. In that
case, the Group also recognizes an associated
liability. The transferred asset and the
associated liability are measured on a basis
that reflects the rights and obligations that the
Group has retained.
2.

unpaid at the end of the reporting period.
Trade and other payables are presented as
current liabilities when the payment is due
within a period of 12 months from the end of
the reporting period. For all trade and other
payables classified as current, the carrying
amounts approximate fair value due to the
short maturity of these instruments. Other
payables falling due after 12 months from the
end of the reporting period are presented as
non-current liabilities and are measured at
amortized cost unless designated as fair value
through profit and loss at the inception.
c.

Financial Liabilities

Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or
loss include financial liabilities held for trading
and financial liabilities designated upon initial
recognition as at fair value through profit
or loss. Gains or losses on liabilities held for
trading are recognized in the profit or loss.

Initial recognition and measurement
All financial liabilities are recognized initially at
fair value and transaction cost (if any) that is
attributable to the acquisition of the financial
liabilities is also adjusted.
Subsequent measurement

Financial guarantee contracts:

The measurement of financial liabilities
depends on their classification, as described
below:
a.

b. Trade and other payables
These amounts represent liabilities for goods
or services provided to the Group which are
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A financial guarantee contract is a contract
that requires the issuer to make specified
payments to reimburse the holder for a loss
it incurs because a specified debtor fails to
make payment when due in accordance with
the terms of a debt instrument.

Loans and borrowings
After initial recognition, interest-bearing loans
and borrowings are subsequently measured
at amortized cost using the Effective Interest
Rate (EIR) method. Gains and losses are
recognized in profit or loss when the liabilities
are de-recognized as well as through the
EIR amortization process. Amortized cost is
calculated by taking into account any discount
or premium on acquisition and fees or costs
that are an integral part of the EIR. The EIR
amortization is included as finance costs in the
Statement of Profit and Loss.

Other financial liabilities at fair value through
profit or loss:

Financial guarantee contracts issued by the
Group are initially measured at their fair values
and are subsequently measured at the higher
of:
-

The amount of loss allowance determined in
accordance with impairment requirements of
Ind AS 109; and

-

The amount initially recognized less, when
appropriate, the cumulative amount of income
recognized in accordance with the principles of
Ind AS 18.

De-recognition of Financial Liabilities:
A financial liability is de-recognized when the
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expected credit losses to be measured through
a loss allowance. The Group recognizes lifetime
expected losses for all contract assets and /
or all trade receivables that do not constitute
a financing transaction. For all other financial
assets, expected credit losses are measured
at an amount equal to the 12-month expected
credit losses or at an amount equal to the life
time expected credit losses, if the credit risk on
the financial asset has increased significantly
since initial recognition.

obligation under the liability is discharged or
cancelled or expires. When an existing financial
liability is replaced by another from the same
lender on substantially different terms, or the
terms of an existing liability are substantially
modified, such an exchange or Modification is
treated as the de-recognition of the original
liability and the recognition of a new liability.
The difference in the respective carrying
amounts is recognized in the Statement of
Profit and Loss.
3. Offsetting of financial instruments

xiii. Fair value measurement:
The Group measures financial instruments
at fair value at each balance sheet date.
Fair value is the price that would be received
to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability
in an orderly transaction between market
participants at the measurement date. The
fair value measurement is based on the
presumption that the transaction to sell the
asset or transfer the liability takes place either:

Financial assets and financial liabilities are
offset and the net amount is reported in
the balance sheet if there is a currently
enforceable legal right to offset the recognized
amounts and there is an intention to settle on
a net basis, to realize the assets and settle the
liabilities simultaneously.
4. Compound Financial Instruments:
A financial instrument that comprises of
both the liability and equity components are
accounted as compound financial instruments.
The fair value of the liability component is
separated from the compound instrument
and is subsequently measured at amortized
cost. The residual value is recognized as equity
component of other financial instrument and is
not re-measured after initial recognition.
The transaction costs related to compound
instruments are allocated to the liability and
equity components in the proportion to the
allocation of gross proceeds. Transaction costs
related to equity component is recognized
directly in equity and the cost related to liability
component is included in the carrying amount
of the liability component and amortized using
effective interest method.
xii. Impairment of Financial assets:
The Group assesses at each date of balance
sheet whether a financial asset or a group of
financial assets is impaired. Ind AS 109 requires

y

In the principal market for the asset or liability,
or

y

In the absence of a principal market, in the
most advantageous market for the asset or
liability.
The principal or the most advantageous
market must be accessible by the Group.
The fair value of an asset or a liability is
measured using the assumptions that market
participants would use when pricing the asset
or liability, assuming that market participants
act in their economic best interest.
A fair value measurement of a non-financial
asset takes into account a market participant’s
ability to generate economic benefits by using
the asset in its highest and best use or by selling
it to another market participant that would use
the asset in its highest and best use.
The Group uses valuation techniques that
are appropriate in the circumstances and for
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shorter period, where appropriate, to the gross
carrying amount of the financial asset or to the
amortized cost of a financial. When calculating
the effective interest rate, the Group estimates
the expected cash flows by considering all the
contractual terms of the financial instrument
but does not consider the expected credit
losses. Interest income is included in finance
income in the Statement of Profit and Loss.
The expected cash flows are reassessed on a
yearly basis and changes, if any, are accounted
prospectively.

which sufficient data are available to measure
fair value, maximizing the use of relevant
observable inputs and minimizing the use of
unobservable inputs. All assets and liabilities
for which fair value is measured or disclosed
in the financial statements are categorized
within the fair value hierarchy, described as
follows, based on the lowest level input that is
significant to the fair value measurement as a
whole:
y

Level 1: Quoted (unadjusted) market prices in
active markets for identical assets or liabilities;

y

Level 2: Valuation techniques for which the
lowest level input that is significant to the fair
value measurement is directly or indirectly
observable, or

y

Level 3: Valuation techniques for which the
lowest level input that is significant to the fair
value measurement is unobservable.
For assets and liabilities that are recognized in
the financial statements on a recurring basis,
the Group determines whether transfers have
occurred between levels in the hierarchy by reassessing categorization (based on the lowest
level Input that is significant to the fair value
measurement as a whole) at the end of each
reporting period.

xiv. Revenue Recognition:
a.

Revenue from Operations
Income from product delivery and services
from banks in the capacity of Business
Correspondent are recognized on accrual
when the Group’s performance obligation is
satisfied.

b. Interest Income:
Interest income, including income arising from
other financial instruments, is recognised using
the effective interest rate (EIR) method. EIR is
the rate that exactly discounts the estimated
future cash payments or receipts over the
expected life of the financial instrument or a
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c.

Other Operating Revenue:
Other Operating revenue comprises income
from ancillary activities incidental to the
operations of the Group and are recognized
when the right to receive the income is
established as per the terms of the contract.

d.

Dividend income:
Dividend income from investments is recognised
when the Group’s right to receive payment has
been established (provided that it is probable
that the economic benefits will flow to the
Group and the amount of income can be
measured reliably).

xv. Leases:
Effective April 1, 2019, the Group has adopted
Ind AS 116 “Leases”. Leases are classified as
finance leases whenever the terms of the lease
transfer substantially all the risks and rewards
incidental to ownership to the lessee. All other
leases are classified as operating leases.
As a lessee
The Group’s lease asset classes primarily
consist of leases for land and buildings. The
Group assesses whether a contract contains a
lease, at inception of the contract. Ind AS 116
defines a lease as a contract, or a part of a
contract, that conveys the right of use an asset
(the underlying asset) for a period of time in
exchange of consideration. To assess whether
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as contract conveys the right to control the
use of an identified asset, the Group assesses
whether: (i) the contract involves the use of an
identified asset; (ii) the Group has substantially
all of the economic benefits from use of the
asset through the period of the lease and (iii)
the Group has the right to direct the use of the
asset.

xvi. Employee benefits
1.

A liability is recognized for benefits accruing to
employees in respect of wages and salaries,
annual leave and sick leave in the period the
related service is rendered at the undiscounted
amount of the benefits expected to be paid in
exchange for that service.

At the date of commencement of the lease,
the Group recognizes a right-of-use asset
and a corresponding lease liability for all lease
arrangements in which it is a lessee, except for
leases with a term of twelve months or less
(short term leases) and low value leases. For
these short-term and low value leases, the
Group recognizes the lease payments as an
operating expenses on a straight line basis
over the term of the lease.
The right-of-use assets are initially recognized
at cost, which comprises the initial amount
of the lease liability adjusted for any
lease payments made at or prior to the
commencement date of the lease plus any
initial direct costs less any lease incentives.
They are subsequently measured at cost less
accumulated depreciation and impairment
losses. Right-of-use assets are depreciated
from the commencement date on straight line
basis over the shorter of the lease term and
useful life of the underlying assets.

Liabilities recognized in respect of shortterm employee benefits are measured at the
undiscounted amount of the benefits expected
to be paid in exchange for the related service.
Liabilities recognized in respect of other longterm employee benefits are measured at the
present value of the estimated future cash
outflows expected to be made by the Group
in respect of services provided by employees
up to the reporting date.
Compensated leave absences are encashed
by employees at year end and no carry
forward of leave is permitted as per the leave
policy.
2.

Post-Employment Benefits

a.

Defined Contribution Plans
A defined contribution plan is a postemployment benefit plan under which the
Group pays specified contributions to a
separate entity. The Group makes specified
monthly contributions towards Provident
Fund and Superannuation Fund. The Group’s
contribution is recognized as an expense in the
Statement of Profit and Loss during the period
in which the employee renders the related
service.

As a lessor
Lease for which the Group is a lessor is classified
as finance or operating lease. Whenever the
terms of the lease transfer substantially all the
risks and rewards of ownership to the lessee,
the contract is classified as a finance lease.
All other leases are classified as operating
leases. For operating leases, rental income is
recognized on straight line basis over the term
of the relevant lease.

Short Term and other long term employee
benefits:

b.

Defined Benefit Plans
For defined benefit retirement plans, the cost
of providing benefits is determined using the
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projected unit credit method, with actuarial
valuations being carried out at the end of each
annual reporting period. Re-measurement,
comprising actuarial gains and losses, the
effect of the changes to the asset ceiling (if
applicable) and the return on plan assets
(excluding interest), is reflected immediately
in the statement of financial position with
a charge or credit recognized in OCI in the
period in which they occur. Re-measurement
recognized in other comprehensive income is
reflected immediately in retained earnings and
will not be reclassified to profit or loss. Past
service cost is recognized in profit or loss in the
period of a plan amendment.
xvii. Borrowing costs:
Borrowing costs directly attributable to
acquisition/ construction of qualifying assets
are capitalized until the time all substantial
activities necessary to prepare the qualifying
assets for their intended use are complete. A
qualifying asset is one that necessarily takes
substantial period of time to get ready for its
intended use/ sale. All other borrowing costs
are charged to the Statement of Profit and
Loss.
xviii. Provisions:
A provision is recognized when an enterprise
has a present obligation (legal or constructive)
as result of past event and it is probable that
an outflow of embodying economic benefits
of resources will be required to settle a
reliably assessable obligation. Provisions are
determined based on best estimate required
to settle each obligation at each balance
sheet date. If the effect of the time value of
money is material, provisions are discounted
using a current pre-tax rate that reflects, when
appropriate, the risks specific to the liability.
When discounting is used, the increase in
the provision due to the passage of time is
recognized as a finance cost.
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xix. Contingent liabilities and Contingent Assets:
A contingent liability is a possible obligation
that arises from past events whose existence
will be confirmed by the occurrence or nonoccurrence of one or more uncertain future
events beyond the control of the Group or
a present obligation that is not recognized
because it is not probable that an outflow
of resources will be required to settle the
obligation. A contingent liability also arises in
extremely rare cases where there is a liability
that cannot be recognized because it cannot
be measured reliably. The Group does not
recognize a contingent liability but discloses its
existence in the financial statements.
Contingent Assets are not recognized but are
disclosed when the inflow of economic benefits
are probable.
xx. Earnings per share:
Basic earnings per share are calculated by
dividing the net profit or loss for the period
attributable to equity shareholders by the
weighted average number of equity shares
outstanding during the period. Partly paid
equity shares (if any) are treated as a
fraction of an equity share to the extent that
they were entitled to participate in dividends
relative to a fully paid equity share during
the reporting period. The weighted average
number of equity shares outstanding during
the period is adjusted for events of bonus
issue; bonus element in a rights issue to existing
shareholders; share split; and consolidation of
shares if any.
For the purpose of calculating diluted earnings
per share, the net profit or loss for the period
attributable to equity shareholders and
the weighted average number of shares
outstanding during the period are adjusted
for the effects of all dilutive potential equity
shares.
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xxi. Taxes on Income:
Tax expense comprises of current and deferred tax.
a.

Current income tax:
Current income tax assets and liabilities
are measured at the amount expected to
be recovered from or paid to the taxation
authorities. The tax rates and tax laws used
to compute the amount are those that are
enacted or substantively enacted, at the
reporting date.
Current income tax relating to items recognized
directly in equity is recognized in other
comprehensive income / equity and not in
the Statement of Profit and Loss. Management
periodically evaluates positions taken in
the tax returns with respect to situations in
which applicable tax regulations are subject
to interpretation and establishes provisions
where appropriate.

b.

Deferred tax:
Deferred tax is provided on temporary
differences between the tax bases of assets
and liabilities and their carrying amounts for
financial reporting purposes at the reporting
date.
Deferred tax liabilities are recognized for
all taxable temporary differences. Deferred
tax assets are recognized for all deductible
temporary differences, the carry forward of
unused tax credits and any unused tax losses.
Deferred tax assets are recognized to the
extent that it is probable that taxable profit
will be available against which the deductible
temporary differences, and the carry forward
of unused tax credits and unused tax losses
can be utilized.
The carrying amount of deferred tax assets are
reviewed at each reporting date and reduced
to the extent that it is no longer probable that
sufficient taxable profit will be available to
allow all or part of the deferred tax asset to be

utilized. Unrecognized deferred tax assets are
re-assessed at each reporting date and are
recognized to the extent that it has become
probable that future taxable profits will allow
the deferred tax asset to be recovered.
Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured
at the tax rates that are expected to apply
in the year when the asset is realised or the
liability is settled, based on tax rates (and tax
laws) that have been enacted or substantively
enacted at the reporting date.
c. Minimum Alternate Tax:
Minimum Alternate Tax (MAT) paid in
accordance with the tax laws, which gives
future economic benefits in the form of
adjustment to future income tax liability, is
considered as an asset if there is convincing
evidence that the Group will pay normal
income tax. The carrying amount of MAT is
reviewed at each reporting date and asset will
be written down to the extent the Group’s right
of adjustment would lapse.
Accordingly, MAT is recognized as an asset in
the Balance Sheet when it is highly probable
that future economic benefit associated with it
will flow to the Group.
xxii. Cash and Cash Equivalent:
Cash and cash equivalent for the purposes of
Cash Flow Statement comprise cash at bank
and in hand and short-term deposits with an
original maturity of three months or less, which
are subject to insignificant risk of changes in
value.
Significant accounting Judgments, estimates
and assumptions:
The preparation of financial statements
in conformity with the recognition and
measurement principles of Ind AS requires
management to make judgments, estimates
and assumptions that affect the reported
balances of revenues, expenses, assets and
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liabilities and the accompanying disclosures,
and the disclosure of contingent liabilities.
Uncertainty about these assumptions and
estimates could result in outcomes that require
a material adjustment to the carrying amount
of assets or liabilities affected in future periods.
The estimates and underlying assumptions
are reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revisions
to accounting estimates are recognized in the
period in which the estimate is revised if the
revision affects only that period or in the period
of the revision and future periods if the revision
affects both current and future periods.
The following are the areas of estimation
uncertainty and critical judgments that the
management has made in the process of
applying the Group’s accounting policies:
a)

c)

Management reviews the useful lives of
depreciable assets at each reporting. As at
March 31, 2019 management assessed that
the useful lives represent the expected utility
of the assets to the Group. Further, there is
no significant change in the useful lives as
compared to previous year.
d)

e)

Recognition of deferred tax assets:
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Defined benefit obligation:
Management’s estimate of the Defined
Benefit obligation is based on a number of
underlying assumptions such as standard
rates of inflation, mortality, discount rate
and anticipation of future salary increases.
Variation in these assumptions may impact
the obligation amount and the annual defined
benefit expenses.

Provision and contingent liability:
On an ongoing basis, the Group reviews
pending cases, claims by third parties and
other contingencies. For contingent losses that
are considered probable, an estimated loss is
recorded as an accrual in financial statements.
Loss contingencies that are considered
possible are not provided for but disclosed as
Contingent liabilities in the financial statements.
Contingencies, the likelihood of which is remote,
are not disclosed in the financial statements.

Evaluation of indicators for impairment of
assets:
The evaluation of applicable indicators of
impairment of assets requires assessment of
several external and internal factors which
could result in deterioration of recoverable
amount of the assets.

The extent to which deferred tax assets can
be recognized is based on an assessment of
the probability of the future taxable income
against which the deferred tax assets can be
utilized.
b)

Useful lives of depreciable assets:

f)

Fair value measurements:
Management applies valuation techniques to
determine the fair value of financial instruments
(where active market quotes are not
available). This involves developing estimates
and assumptions consistent with how market
participants would price the instrument.

-

Capitalised during the year

-

Depreciation charged for the year

Disposals during the year

As at 31st March, 2019

Depreciation charged for the year

Disposals during the year

As at 31st March, 2020

6.74

As at 31st March, 2020

316.05

232.88

110.87

62.64

48.23

5.01

26.63

26.61

426.92

-

-

145.81

281.11

-

70.70

210.41

Furniture
& Fixtures

71.39

72.18

119.44

0.29

70.68

49.05

24.01

39.99

33.07

190.83

-

4.34

73.94

121.23

24.56

27.94

117.85

Office
Equipments

16.78

24.52

19.98

7.74

12.24

-

3.30

8.94

36.76

-

-

-

36.76

-

-

36.76

Vehicles

136.54

82.67

167.60

58.52

109.08

30.54

60.35

79.27

304.14

-

-

112.39

191.75

26.18

50.73

167.20

Computers

116.16

86.34

19.48

16.94

2.54

26.59

8.92

20.21

135.64

-

-

46.76

88.88

64.59

88.88

64.59

Leasehold
Improvements

663.58

505.33

437.37

0.29

216.52

221.14

86.16

139.20

168.10

1,101.03

-

4.34

378.90

726.47

115.33

238.25

603.55

Total

									

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

46.76

-

46.76

-

27.54

-

-

27.54

Capital
work-inprogress

(` in lakhs)

For assets secured against borrowings, see Note 17.												
				

6.74

As at 31st March, 2019

Net Carrying amount

-

As at 1st April, 2018

Accumulated Depreciation

6.74

-

Disposals during the year

As at 31st March, 2020

-

Additions during the year

As at 31st March, 2019

6.74

-

Disposals during the year

Capitalised during the year

-

6.74

Land

Additions during the year

As at 1st April, 2018

Gross Block

Particulars

2. Property, Plant and Equipment (PPE)

Notes to consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31st March, 2020
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3. Intangible assets
Particulars

(` in lakhs)
Computer Software

Total

Gross Block
As at 1st April, 2018

11.39

11.39

Additions during the year

24.29

24.29

Disposals during the year

-

-

35.68

35.68

Additions during the year

3.49

3.49

Disposals during the year

-

-

39.17

39.17

7.59

7.59

Amortization for the year

13.34

13.34

Disposals during the year

6.10

6.10

14.83

14.83

7.85

7.85

-

-

22.68

22.68

As at 31st March, 2019

20.85

20.85

As at 31st March, 2020

16.50

16.50

As at 31st March, 2019

As at 31st March, 2020
Accumulated amortization
As at 1st April, 2018

As at 31st March, 2019
Amortization during the year
Disposals during the year
As at 31st March, 2020
Net Carrying amount

4. Investments
Particulars

As at
31st March 2020

As at
31st March 2019

` in lakhs

` in lakhs

Investment carried at FVTPL - Trade - Unquoted
- Investments in equity instruments of Conatus Finserve Private
Limited
- 400,010 Equity Shares of ` 10/- each fully paid up (31st March,
2019: Nil Equity shares) Extent of holding - 2.70% (31st March,
2019: 0%)

96.64

-

Total

96.64

-

Aggregate amount of Unquoted Investments

96.64

-

-

-

Aggregate provision for diminution in value of investments
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5. Loans
Particulars

As at
31st March 2020

As at
31st March 2019

` in lakhs

` in lakhs

Non-current
Unsecured, considered good
Loan to Employees

6.78

-

Total

6.78

-

105.00

-

-

135.00

32.32

62.61

137.32

197.61

Current
Secured, considered good
Inter Corporate loan (Refer Note 38)
Unsecured, considered good
Inter Corporate loan (Refer Note 38)
Loans to Employees
Total

Inter Corporate loan given to a Company in which Director is a member ` 105 lakhs (PY ` 95 lakhs).
6. Other financial assets - Non current
Particulars

As at
31st March 2020

As at
31st March 2019

` in lakhs

` in lakhs

Unsecured, considered good
Margin Deposits Account with scheduled banks #

4,916.20

4,708.55

Total

4,916.20

4,708.55

# Represents margin deposit for providing financial services to Banks against First Loss Default Guarantee.
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7. Deferred tax assets (net):
As at
As at
31st March 2020 31st March 2019
` in lakhs
` in lakhs

Particulars
Deferred tax liability
- On Property, Plant and Equipment and intangible assets
- On fair value adjustments for financial instruments

-

1.12
1.12

25.55
11.31
117.66
8.99
163.51
163.51

6.31
11.89
152.54
170.74
169.62

A
Deferred tax assets
- On Property, Plant and Equipment and intangible assets
- On Provision for Employee Benefits
- On Provision for Expected Credit Loss
- On Others
B
A-B

Net deferred tax (liability)/asset
Reconciliation of deferred tax:
Particulars

Deferred Tax (Liability)/Asset
- On Property, Plant and Equipment and
intangible assets
- On fair value adjustments for financial
instruments
- On Provision for Expected Credit Loss
- On employee benefits expense
- On others
Total

Particulars

Deferred Tax (Liability)/Asset
- On Property, Plant and Equipment and
intangible assets
- On fair value adjustments for financial
instruments
- On Provision for Expected Credit Loss
- On employee benefits expense
Total

152

Deferred tax
(Charge)/
(Charge)/
(liabilities)/
credit to
credit to
assets as at
Statement of
OCI
1st April, 2019 Profit and Loss
` in lakhs
` in lakhs
` in lakhs

Deferred tax
(liabilities)/
assets as at
31st March, 2020
` in lakhs

6.30

19.25

-

25.55

(1.12)

1.12

-

-

152.54
11.89
169.62

(34.88)
7.24
8.99
1.71

(7.82)
(7.82)

117.66
11.31
8.99
163.51

(Charge)/
Deferred tax
Deferred tax
(Charge)/
(liabilities)/
credit to
(liabilities)/assets
credit to
as at 31st March,
assets as at
Statement of
OCI
2019
1st April, 2018 Profit and Loss
` in lakhs
` in lakhs
` in lakhs
` in lakhs
(2.65)

8.95

-

6.30

(10.24)

9.12

-

(1.12)

249.20
236.31

(96.66)
8.16
(70.44)

3.73
3.73

152.54
11.89
169.62
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8. Non Current Tax Assets (Net)
Particulars
Advance tax (net of provisions)
Total

As at
As at
31st March 2020 31st March 2019
` in lakhs
` in lakhs
155.37
89.03
155.37
89.03

9. Other non-current assets
Particulars
Prepaid expenses
Deposit towards disputed service tax (Refer Note 32)
Capital Advance
Total

As at
As at
31st March 2020 31st March 2019
` in lakhs
` in lakhs
0.76
23.90
30.76
55.42

10. Trade receivables
Particulars
Trade receivables/unbilled revenue, Unsecured
Considered Good
Considered Doubtful
Sub-Total
Allowance for doubtful debts
Total
For receivables secured against borrowings, see Note 17.

As at
31st March 2020
` in lakhs

As at
31st March 2019
` in lakhs

1,793.50
0.51
1,794.01
0.51
1,793.50

1,502.41
1,502.41
1,502.41

As at
31st March 2020
` in lakhs

As at
31st March 2019
` in lakhs

614.79
25.00
639.79

1,289.66
100.00
0.01
1,389.67

11. Cash and cash equivalents
Particulars
Balance with Banks
In Current Account
- In Fixed Deposits having maturity of less than three months
Cash on Hand
Total
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12. Bank balance other than cash and cash equivalents
As at
31st March 2020
` in lakhs

Particulars

As at
31st March 2019
` in lakhs

Earmarked balances with banks
Margin Deposits Account with scheduled banks #
4,916.07
Total
4,916.07
# Represents margin deposit for providing financial services to Banks against First Loss Default
Guarantee.

1,916.88
1,916.88

13. Other financial assets
Particulars

As at
31st March 2020
` in lakhs

As at
31st March 2019
` in lakhs

361.60
41.75
6.68
153.34
(153.34)
64.28
474.31

288.87
25.71
5.32
319.90

As at
31st March 2020
` in lakhs

As at
31st March 2019
` in lakhs

123.93
17.54
9.12
150.59

71.71
16.53
8.10
96.34

Unsecured, considered good
Rental Deposits
Interest Accrued but not due
Balance with Government Authorities
Reimbursement of expenses
Less: Provision created for Expected Credit Loss
Other Receivables #
Total
# Other receivable includes amount recoverable in cash equivalent.
14. Other current assets
Particulars
Unsecured, considered good
Prepaid expenses
Gratuity (Refer Note 30)
Advance for expenses/other receivables
Total

15. Equity Share capital								
Particulars

As at 31st March, 2020
In Numbers

` in lakhs

As at 31st March, 2019
In Numbers

` in lakhs

Authorised
Equity Shares of ` 10/- each

66,00,000

660.00

66,00,000

660.00

53,57,500

535.75

53,57,500

535.75

Issued, Subscribed and Paid up
Equity Shares of ` 10/- Each
Total
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a) Terms/Rights attached to equity shares :								
The Company has only one class of equity shares having a par value of ` 10 per share. Each equity
shareholder is entitled to one vote per equity share.							
The dividend proposed by the Board of Directors is subject to the approval of the shareholders in the ensuing
Annual General Meeting, except in case of interim dividend.						
During the year ended 31st March, 2020, the amount of dividend per share recognized as distribution to
equity shareholders was ` Nil (31st March, 2019:
` Nil).						
In the event of liquidation of the company, the holders of equity shares will be entitled to receive remaining
assets of the company, after distribution of all preferential amounts. The distribution will be in proportion to
the number of equity shares held by the shareholders.
b) Details of Shareholders holding more than 5% shares in the Company :
Equity Shares
Particulars

As at 31st March, 2020
No. of
Shares held

As at 31st March, 2019

% of
Holding

No. of
Shares held

% of
Holding

Mr. Ganesh Rao

26,75,050

49.93%

26,75,050

49.93%

Mrs. Meenakshi Rao

23,24,900

43.40%

23,24,900

43.40%

3,57,550

6.67%

3,57,550

6.67%

53,57,500

100.00%

53,57,500

100.00%

Mr. Jasbinder Singh Toor

								
c) Reconciliation of the shares outstanding at the beginning and at the end of the reporting period:
Equity Shares
Particulars
Shares outstanding at the beginning of the year

As at 31st March, 2020

As at 31st March, 2019

In Numbers

In Numbers

` in lakhs

` in lakhs

53,57,500

535.75

53,57,500

535.75

Shares issued during the year

-

-

-

-

Shares bought back during the year

-

-

-

-

Shares outstanding at the end of the year
53,57,500
535.75
53,57,500
535.75
								
d) There are no shares which have been allotted for consideration other than cash, bonus shares and
shares bought back in the 5 years immediately preceding the reporting date.				
				
e) There are no shares reserved for issue under options and contracts / commitments for sale of shares/
disinvestment.								
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16. Other equity
Particulars

As at
31st March, 2020

As at
31st March, 2019

` in lakhs

` in lakhs

Capital Reserve

369.21

369.21

Securities Premium

123.75

123.75

220.00

110.00

-

110.00

Debenture Redemption Reserve
Opening balance
Add: transferred during the year from Retained Earnings
Less: Transferred to General Reserve on account of redemption of debentures during the year
Closing Balance

(220.00)
-

220.00

-

-

Add: Transferred from Debenture Redemption Reserve during
the year

220.00

-

Closing Balance

220.00

-

Opening balance

6,152.90

3,298.23

Add: profit for the year

3,649.34

2,859.92

Add: Transfer from OCI

23.25

(5.25)

9,825.49

6,152.90

10,538.45

6,865.85

General Reserve
Opening Balance

Retained Earnings

Closing Balance
Total

i) Securities Premium Reserve: Securities premium is received from the shareholders of the company on
issue of shares. It is utilised in accordance with the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013.
ii) General Reserve: General Reserves is created out of transfer made from debenture redemption reserve
on redemption of debentures.
iii) Retained Earnings: Retained earnings are the balance (debit / credit) in the Statement of Profit and
Loss.								
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17. Borrowings								

Particulars

As at
As at
31st March, 2020
31st March, 2019
Non
Non
Current
Current
Current
Current
` in lakhs ` in lakhs ` in lakhs ` in lakhs

Secured Loans
Vehicle Loans (Refer Note (i) below)

0.95

3.72

4.67

5.19

815.71

666.86

89.81

428.11

-

-

-

440.00

Loans from Financial Institutions (Refer Note (iv) below)

18.07

26.83

48.36

22.13

Term Loan from Bank (Refer Note (v) below)

22.91

25.01

-

-

857.64

722.42

142.84

895.43

- Unamortised portion of upfront processing fee

(10.03)

(11.30)

(0.30)

(3.58)

Total

847.61

711.12

142.54

891.84

Loan from companies (Refer Note (ii) below)
Unsecured Loans
17.08% 440 Non-Convertible Debentures of ` 1,00,000/each (Refer Note (iii) below)

The Company has not defaulted in the payment of interest and installments of the loans as at 31st March
2020.
Secured Loans
(i) Vehicle Loans from Toyota Financial Services India Limited are secured by way of hypothecation of
vehicles procured out of such loans. The loans as on 31-03-2020 of ` 4.67 Lakh is repayable in 15 monthly
instalments of ` 0.33 Lakh for first 14 months and ` 0.29 in 15th month. The interest is payable on monthly
basis and the rate of interest is 9.99% per annum respectively.
(ii) Loan from companies:
Loans from Jain Sons Finlease Limited:
Loan of ` 200 lakhs (PY ` 200 lakhs) and outstanding of ` 12.14 lakhs (PY ` 119.77 lakhs):
Terms of repayment: 1 monthly installment is pending for the loan as on March 31, 2020. The interest is
payable on monthly basis and the rate of interest is 20% per annum. Last EMI payment date is in April
2020.
Loan of ` 200 lakhs (PY ` 200 lakhs) and outstanding of ` 77.66 lakhs (PY ` 173.33 lakhs):
Terms of repayment: 7 monthly installments of ` 10.28 lakhs and 8th installment of ` 12.11 lakhs is pending
for the loan as on March 31, 2020. The interest is payable on monthly basis and the rate of interest is 21%
per annum. Last EMI payment date is in November 2020.
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Loan of ` 88 lakhs (PY ` 88 lakhs) and outstanding of ` Nil (PY ` 87.93 lakhs):
Loan of ` 400 lakhs (PY ` 400 lakhs) and outstanding of ` Nil (PY ` 136.89 lakhs):
The above loans are secured by way of personal guarantee of Directors and pledge of shares equivalent
to 15% of the paid up capital of the Company or such equivalent number of shares representing 15% of
the post money valuation of the Company.								
Term Loan from U.C Inclusive Credit Private Limited:
Tranche 1 of ` 300.00 lakhs and outstanding of ` 260.20 lakhs:
Terms of repayment: Term loan is repayable in 36 monthly installments of ` 10.77 lakhs from the date of
first disbursement. The interest is payable on monthly basis and the rate of interest is 17.5% per annum.
Last EMI payment date is in September 2022.
Tranche 2 of ` 200.00 lakhs and outstanding of ` 182.57 lakhs:
Terms of repayment: Term loan is repayable in 36 monthly installments of ` 7.00 lakhs from the date of first
disbursement. The interest is payable on monthly basis and the rate of interest is 17.5% per annum. Last
EMI payment date is in November 2022.
Both the above tranches are secured by hypothecation of receivable to the extent of 100% of the principal
outstanding. The term loan is guaranteed by Mr. Ganesh Rao, Managing Director and CEO and Mrs. Meenakshi
Rao, Director of the Company.
Loan from Caspian Impact Investment Private Limited:
Loan of ` 500 lakhs and outstanding of ` 450 lakhs:
Terms of repayment: Loan is repayable in 30 monthly installments of ` 16.66 lakhs from the date of first
disbursement. The interest is payable on monthly basis and the rate of interest is 17.5% per annum. Last
EMI payment date is in June 2022.
Loan is hypothecated by way of first ranking, pari-passu charge over current assets of the Company so
as to provide a security cover of at least 1 time on the outstanding credit facility. The loan is guaranteed by
Mr. Ganesh Rao, Managing Director and CEO of the Company.
Loan from Vivriti Capital Private Limited:
Loan of ` 500 lakhs and outstanding of ` 500 lakhs:
Terms of repayment: Term loan is repayable in 24 monthly instalments of ` 24.84 lakhs. The interest is
payable on monthly basis and the rate of interest is 17.5% per annum. Last EMI payment date is in March
2022.
The loan is secured by first pari passu charge by way of hypothecation over all receivable of the Company,
both present and future so as to provide a security cover of at least 1 time on the outstanding credit facility.
The loan is guaranteed by Mr. Ganesh Rao, Managing Director and CEO of the Company.
(iii) Unsecured Non-Convertible Debentures:
The debentures issued by the Company have been fully repaid in current financial year.
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(iv) Unsecured Loans from HDFC Limited:
Unsecured Loans as on 31-03-2020 of ` 18.58 lakhs and ` 26.32 lakhs are repayable in 18 and 26 monthly
instalments of ` 1.39 Lakh and ` 1.16 Lakh respectively. The interest is payable on monthly basis and the
rate of interest is 7.50% and 8.25% per annum respectively.
(v) Unsecured Term Loan from DCB Bank Limited:
Loan of ` 50 lakhs and outstanding of ` 47.92 lakhs:
Terms of repayment: Term loan is repayable in 24 monthly installments of ` 2.08 lakhs. The interest is payable
on monthly basis and the rate of interest is 11.0% per annum. Last EMI payment date is in February 2022.
						
18. Other financial liabilities								
Particulars

As at
As at
31st March, 2020 31st March, 2019
` in lakhs

Current maturities of long term debt (Refer Note 17)

` in lakhs

711.12

891.84

Interest accrued but not due on borrowings

12.78

37.70

Overdraft facility from Union Bank of India *

145.76

-

Accrued Employee Benefits

60.38

13.62

Disbursement in Pipeline

42.07

803.31

Other payables & accruals - dues to Micro and Small Enterprise*
(Refer Note 35)

11.37

38.02

Other payables & accruals - dues to other than Micro and Small
Enterprise #

278.20

78.12

-

146.47

1,261.68

2,009.09

Commitment Charges Payable
Total

* The company has availed overdraft facility from Union bank of India for ` 150 lakhs at ROI of 11.40%
The Company has hypothecated the trade receivables to 1.10 times covering the principal amount.
# Other payables and accruals represents EMI collected, cancelled disbursements and accrued expenses
							
19. Other current liabilities								
Particulars

As at
As at
31st March, 2020 31st March, 2019
` in lakhs

Statutory dues payable
Member insurance payable
Others
Total
								

` in lakhs

504.50

396.09

82.18

265.56

1.55

-

588.23

661.65
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20. Provisions								
Particulars

As at
As at
31st March, 2020 31st March, 2019
` in lakhs

Provision for Gratuity (Refer Note 30)

` in lakhs

44.94

41.23

Provision for expected credit loss on EMIs

305.61

528.92

Total
								
Movement in provision for expected credit loss on EMIs is as follows:

350.55

570.15

Particulars

For the year ended
31st March, 2020

For the year ended
31st March, 2019

` in lakhs

` in lakhs

Opening balance

528.92

515.30

Additions

341.30

341.30

Withdrawals/utilisation

564.61

327.68

Closing balance

305.61

528.92

Note:								
As an authorised Business Correspondent of various banks/financial institutions, the Company is obligated
to make good the loss suffered by banks/financial institutions on account of uncollected EMI's from the
members of JLG/SHG to the extent of first 5% of loan portfolio outstanding as First Loss Default Guarantee.
The above provision is based on Markov Chain Model. The withdrawals/utilisation represents the
commitment charges paid to the respective banks/financial institutions on the basis of principles explained
above.								
								
21. Current Tax Liabilities (net)								
As at
As at
Particulars
31st March, 2020 31st March, 2019
` in lakhs
` in lakhs
Provision for taxation (net of Advance tax of ` 33.89 lakhs and
7.46
186.14
in PY ` 1,889.34 lakhs)
Total
7.46
186.14
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22. Revenue from operations 				
Particulars

For the year ended
31st March, 2020

For the year ended
31st March, 2019

` in lakhs

` in lakhs

Revenue from Operations
Commission Income

16,406.94

13,239.91

Interest on Margin Deposits

570.11

372.47

Interest on Inter Corporate loan

22.84

28.59

166.06

143.78

8.36

11.90

17,174.31

13,796.65

Other operating revenues

Insurance brokerage
Stationary fees
Total
				
23. Other income 				
Particulars
Professional income

For the year ended
31st March, 2020

For the year ended
31st March, 2019

` in lakhs

` in lakhs

102.30

43.78

Dividend Income

-

5.12

Interest income on financial assets

-

9.19

Liability no longer payable written back

-

44.73

2.80

42.58

105.10

145.40

Miscellaneous Income
Total
				
24. Employee benefits expense				
Particulars
Salaries & Wages

For the year ended
31st March, 2020

For the year ended
31st March, 2019

` in lakhs

` in lakhs

8,172.65

5,490.78

Contribution to Provident and Other Funds (Refer Note 30)

710.26

400.67

Gratuity (Refer Note 30)

100.81

56.49

Staff Welfare Expenses

150.18

115.71

9,133.90

6,063.65

Total
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25. Finance cost				
Particulars
Interest on Inter corporate Loans and Debentures

For the year ended
31st March, 2020

For the year ended
31st March, 2019

` in lakhs

` in lakhs

201.12

250.83

Interest on Income Tax

6.34

16.10

Interest on MSME Parties

1.55

-

10.39

2.50

219.40

269.43

Other Borrowing Cost
Total
				
26. Depreciation and amortization expense				
Particulars
- Depreciation on Property, Plant and Equipment
(Refer Note 2)
- Amortisation on Intangible Assets (Refer Note 3)
Total
							

For the year ended
31st March, 2020

For the year ended
31st March, 2019

` in lakhs

` in lakhs

216.52

139.20

7.85
224.37

13.34
152.54

For the year ended
31st March, 2020

For the year ended
31st March, 2019

` in lakhs

` in lakhs

27. Other expenses				
Particulars
Travelling & Conveyance

182.19

132.73

Postage & Telephone

155.00

153.23

Insurance

180.06

95.31

Rent (Refer Note 36)

629.43

499.51

46.35

33.60

195.02

167.87

16.30

19.65

2.49

2.20

204.96

141.92

Software Usage Charges

169.19

97.61

Professional & Legal Expenses

89.26

74.17

CSR Expenses (Refer Note 37)

74.79

76.06

Directors sitting fees

11.75

7.90

Auditors Remuneration (Refer Note 27.1)

13.95

15.15

Rates & taxes

85.65

97.61

-

1,468.05

3.20

9.94

Electricity Charges
Printing and Stationery
Repair & Maintenance - Computer
Repair & Maintenance - Vehicle
Office Upkeep and Maintenance

Commitment Charges
Loss on sale of PPE
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Particulars

For the year ended
31st March, 2020

For the year ended
31st March, 2019

` in lakhs

` in lakhs

Loss on sale of mutual fund units

-

0.01

3.36

-

201.90

155.13

0.51

-

Expected Credit Loss on Service Tax Reimbursement

153.34

-

Provision for expected credit loss against
FLDG commitment

341.30

98.45

13.81

3.36

2,773.80

3,349.46

Loss on Fair value changes of Equity Instruments
Bank Charges
Expected Credit Loss on Trade Receivable

Miscellaneous Expenses
Total
				
27.1 Remuneration to auditors (excluding service tax/GST) 				
Particulars
a. for Statutory Audit

For the year ended
31st March, 2020

For the year ended
31st March, 2019

` in lakhs

` in lakhs

13.50

13.62

b. for Taxation Matters

-

-

c. for Limited Review

-

1.50

0.45

0.03

13.95

15.15

d. for Reimbursement of expenses
				
28. Tax expense 				
Particulars
A. Current Tax
Current tax on profit for the year
Charge/ (Credit) in respect of current tax for earlier years
TOTAL (A)
B. Deferred Tax
Origination and reversal of temporary differences
Charge in respect of deferred tax for earlier years
TOTAL (B)
Tax expense recognized in Statement of Profit and Loss
(A)+(B)
Tax expense recognized in Other Comprehensive Income (c)
Total Tax Expense / (benefit)

For the year ended
31st March, 2020

For the year ended
31st March, 2019

` in lakhs

` in lakhs

1,263.00
17.30
1,280.30

1,106.69
69.93
1,176.62

(1.71)
(1.71)

70.44
70.44

1,278.59

1,247.06

7.82
1,286.41

(3.73)
1,243.33
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The reconciliation of estimated income tax expense at tax rate to income tax expense reported in
Statement of Profit and Loss is as follows:				
Particulars

For the year ended For the year ended
31st March, 2020
31st March, 2019
` in lakhs
` in lakhs
4,927.94
4,106.98
25.046%
28.88%
1,234.26
1,186.24

Profit before tax
Enacted tax rate
Expected income tax expense/(benefit) at statutory tax rate
Tax effect of adjustments to reconcile expected income tax
expense to reported income tax expense:
Expenses not deductible in determining taxable profits
126.33
17.49
Income exempt from taxation
(3.84)
Tax allowances and concession
(144.33)
(178.43)
Charge/ (Credit) in respect of current tax for earlier years
17.29
69.93
Unrecognized deferred tax assets #
(13.61)
Others
52.86
165.55
Tax expense for the year
1,286.41
1,243.33
Effective income tax rate
26.10%
30.27%
Note:				
The above workings are based on provisional computation of tax expenses and are subject to finalisation
of tax audit/ filing of tax returns in due course. 			
# Unrecognised deferred tax asset:				
The Group's subsidiary, Indian Association for Savings and Credit, has tax losses due to unabsorbed
business losses/depreciation allowance and short term capital loss. Deferred tax asset has not been
recognised by the Group on below items because it is not probable that future taxable profits would be
available against which the losses and other allowances can be used. The losses/ allowance for which no
deferred tax asset was recognised are as follows:				

Particulars
Tax losses / Unabsorbed Depreciation
Short term capital loss
							

For the year ended For the year ended
31st March, 2020
31st March, 2019
` in lakhs
` in lakhs
35.38
285.21
59.59
61.15

29. Earnings per share 			
Particulars
Profit after tax
Weighted Average number of Equity shares outstanding for
basic earnings
Weighted Average number of Equity shares outstanding for
diluted earnings
Basic Earnings Per Share (in `)
Diluted Earnings Per Share (in `)
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For the year ended For the year ended
31st March, 2020
31st March, 2019
` in lakhs
` in lakhs
3,649.35
2,859.92
53,57,500

53,57,500

53,57,500

53,57,500

68.12
68.12

53.38
53.38
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30 Employee benefits 							
The details of various employee benefits provided to employees are as under:			
A. Defined contribution plan:								
Particulars

For the year ended
31st March, 2020

For the year ended
31st March, 2019

` in lakhs

` in lakhs

Employer's Contribution to PF

593.96

287.33

Employer's Contribution to ESIC

114.68

112.16

1.61

1.18

710.26

400.67

Employer's Contribution to Labour welfare
Total

B. Defined benefit plan:								
In accordance with the Payment of Gratuity Act, 1972, the Company provides for gratuity, as defined
benefit plan. The gratuity plan provides for a lump sum payment to the employees at the time of
separation from the service on completion of vested year of employment i.e. five years. The liability of
gratuity plan is provided based on actuarial valuation using the projected unit credit method as at the
end of each financial year based on which the Company contributes the ascertained liability to Life
Insurance Corporation of India with whom the plan assets are maintained.
These plans typically expose the Company to actuarial risks such as: investment risk, interest rate risk,
salary risk and longevity risk.								
Investment risk: For funded plans that rely on insurers for managing the assets, the value of assets
certified by the insurer may not be the fair value of instruments backing the liability. In such cases, the
present value of the assets is independent of the future discount rate. This can result in wide fluctuations
in the net liability or the funded status if there are significant changes in the discount rate during the
inter-valuation period.								
Interest rate risk: The defined benefit obligation calculated uses a discount rate based on government
bonds. If bond yields fall, the defined benefit obligation will tend to increase.
Salary escalation risk: The present value of the defined benefit plan liability is calculated by reference
to the future salaries of plan participants. As such, higher than expected increases in salary will increase
the defined benefit obligation.								
Longevity risk: The present value of defined benefit plan liability is calculated by reference to the best
estimate of the mortality of plan participants both during and after their employment. An increase in
the life expectancy of the plan participants will increase the plan’s liability.
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Principal actuarial assumptions:								
For the year ended 31st
March, 2020

For the year ended 31st
March, 2019

Discount Rate *

4.87% to 6.46%

6.68% to 7.37%

Expected Return on Assets

4.87% to 6.46%

6.68% to 7.37%

0% for 3 years and 4%
thereafter

7%

30% to 66.18%

30.23% to 61.53%

Particulars

Salary Escalation #
Attrition Rate

Indian Assured Lives
Indian Assured Lives
Mortality (2012-14)
Mortality (2006-08)
									
* The rate used to discount post-employment benefit obligations is determined by reference to market
yields at the end of the reporting period on government bonds.
Mortality

# The estimates of future salary increases considered in the actuarial valuation take account of inflation,
seniority, promotion and other relevant factors, such as supply and demand in the employment market.
							
Amount recognized in Statement of Profit and Loss for the year:					

Particulars

For the year ended
31st March, 2020

For the year ended
31st March, 2019

` in lakhs

` in lakhs

Current Service Cost

102.96

56.47

(2.15)

0.02

100.81

56.49

For the year ended
31st March, 2020

For the year ended
31st March, 2019

` in lakhs

` in lakhs

Net Interest on Defined Benefit Obligations
Expenses recognized in the statement of profit and loss
Recognized in Other Comprehensive Income (OCI) for the year:
Particulars
Return on plan assets (excluding amounts included in net
interest expense)

5.80

6.71

Actuarial (gains)/losses arising from changes in financial
assumptions

(23.54)

8.40

Actuarial (gains)/losses arising from experience adjustments

(13.86)

40.57

0.52

(46.70)

(31.07)

8.98

Actuarial (gains)/losses due to demographic assumption
changes in DBO
Amount recognized in OCI for the current period
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Change in present value of defined benefit obligation:
Particulars
Present value of obligations as at the beginning of the year
Current Service Cost
Interest on Defined Benefit Obligations
Actuarial (gain)/loss on plan obligation
Benefits paid
Liability transfer
Present value of obligations as at the end of the year

For the year ended
31st March, 2020

For the year ended
31st March, 2019

` in lakhs

` in lakhs

153.38
102.97
9.58
(36.88)
(9.63)
219.42

93.24
56.47
6.64
2.27
(5.25)
153.38

For the year ended
31st March, 2020

For the year ended
31st March, 2019

` in lakhs

` in lakhs

Change in fair value of plan assets:
Particulars
Fair value of plan assets as at the beginning of the period
Return on plan assets
Contributions
Asset transfer
Benefits paid
Actuarial gain/(loss) on plan assets
Fair value of plan assets as at the end of the period

128.68
11.75
67.03
(9.63)
(5.80)
192.02

54.06
6.62
79.97
(2.00)
(3.25)
(6.71)
128.68

For the year ended
31st March, 2020

For the year ended
31st March, 2019

` in lakhs

` in lakhs

Net Asset/ Liability recognized in Balance Sheet:
Particulars
Present value of obligations
Fair Value of Plan Assets
Amount recognized (Refer Note 14 & 20)

219.42
192.02
27.40

153.37
128.68
24.69

For the year ended
31st March, 2020

For the year ended
31st March, 2019

` in lakhs

` in lakhs

Maturity profile of Present Value of defined benefit obligation:
Particulars
Within the next 12 months

28.27

10.61

Between 2 and 5 years

51.18

23.48

Between 6 and 10 years

12.83

6.20

127.14

113.08

220.86

137.35

Beyond 10 years
Expected contributions to the plan for the next annual
reporting period
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Sensitivity Analysis:								
Below is the sensitivity analysis determined for significant actuarial assumptions for the determination of
defined benefit obligations and based on reasonably possible changes of the respective assumptions
occurring at the end of the reporting period while holding all other assumptions constant.			
					

Particulars

As at 31st March, 2020

As at 31st March, 2019

Increase

Decrease

Increase

Decrease

` in lakhs

` in lakhs

` in lakhs

` in lakhs

Discount rate by 1%

209.75

230.08

145.36

162.30

Salary Escalation rate by 1%

228.81

210.79

161.29

146.16

Attrition rate by 1%

217.42

221.31

150.43

156.36

Mortality rate by 10%

219.49

-

153.40

-

31. Significant matters stated in notes to the audited financial statements / audit report of subsidiary:
a) In view of the decision of the Board of Directors not to proceed further in getting the exemption under
section 11/12A of the Income Tax Act, the income earned during the year has been appropriately
considered for taxation. In the opinion of the management, the provision carried in the books of
accounts for taxation is adequate.
b) The Board of Directors have passed a resolution in its meeting dated 25th April, 2019 stating that
they will not accept any public deposits for the financial year ending 31st March 2020.
32. Contingent Liability:				
Particulars
Disputed Income tax demand payable not provided for
Disputed service tax liability*

(` in lakhs)
As at
31st March, 2020

As at
31st March, 2019

-

142.95
318.58

First Loss Default Guarantee
(to the extent of Margin Deposits)
* Excluding interest and penalty						
							
33. The outbreak of COVID-19 pandemic across the globe and in India has contributed to a significant
impact and volatility in the global and Indian financial markets and slowdown in the economic activities.
The Group has made a provision of ` 341.30 lakhs as per the adopted ECL model for impairment on
loan portfolio handled as on March 31, 2020 as computed by an independent valuer. The management
has evaluated the impact of COVID19 on its assets comprising of property, plant and equipment,
investments, trade receivables and other financial assets, and has concluded that there is no significant
impact on the carrying amount of these assets besides impairment, if any, and are recoverable as
at the balance sheet date. The impact of COVID-19 pandemic is dependent on future developments
which is highly uncertain, therefore the financial impact in subsequent periods may be different than
currently assessed.  						
							

168

Corporate Overview | Management Report | Financial Statements

Notes to consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31st March, 2020
34. The balances in trade receivable are subject to confirmation and reconciliation, if any. However in the
opinion of the Management, balances in trade receivable account are recoverable at least to the extent
stated in the balance sheet.
35. The information in relation to dues to Micro and Small Enterprises have been determined to the extent
such parties have been identified on the basis of information available with the Company, which has
been relied upon by the auditors.						
							
(` in lakhs)
Details of dues to Micro and Small Enterprises as per MSMED Act, 2006

As at
31st March,
2020

As at
31st March,
2019

a) Principal amount due to suppliers under MSMED Act, 2006

11.37

38.02

b) Interest accrued, due to suppliers under MSMED Act on the above
amount, and unpaid

0.22

-

97.94

-

-

-

e) Interest due and payable towards suppliers under MSMED Act for
payments already made

1.33

-

f) Interest accrued and remaining unpaid at the end of the year to
suppliers under MSMED Act (including interest mentioned in (e) above)

1.55

-

c) Payment made to suppliers (other than interest) beyond the appointed
day during the year
d) Interest paid to suppliers under MSMED Act (Section 16)

36. Assets taken on operating lease:						
The Company and subsidiary, as a lessee, has entered into a cancellable agreement for lease of
buildings for its business ranging from one year to five years in the nature of operating lease with an
option to renew the lease.
The Future minimum Lease payments are as follows:
(` in lakhs)
Particulars

As at 31st March, 2020

As at 31st March, 2019

Within one year

-

32.83

After one year but not more than five years

-

-

More than five years
During the year, ` 629.43 lakhs (P.Y. `499.51 lakhs) has been debited to Statement of Profit and Loss
account. 						
(i) There are no restriction covenants in the lease agreement. 					
(ii) The Group does not have any contingent lease rental expenses. 					
(iii) The above future minimum lease rentals includes normal escalation rate based on agreements.
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37. CSR Expenditure: 						
For the year
ended 31st
March, 2020
` in lakhs

Particulars

a. Gross Amount required to be spent by the Group
during the year
b. Amount spent during the year
Particulars

In Cash

For the year
ended 31st
March, 2019
` in lakhs

63.35

56.81

74.79

76.06

Yet to be paid in
cash

Total

(i) Construction/Acquisition of any asset
(ii) On purposes other than (i) above
74.79
74.79
(previous year ` 76.06 lakhs)
							
38. Disclosure u/s 186 of the Companies Act,2013 relating to loans granted and guarantees furnished:
					
							
(` in lakhs)
As at 31st
As at 31st
Name of the Company
Purpose
March, 2020
March, 2019
Loans given:
Ambition Services Private Limited
105.00
95.00 Working capital
Conatus Management Services Private Limited
40.00 Working capital
Investments made:
Conatus Finserve Private Limited - Gross

100.00

Total

205.00
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39. Fair value measurements
i. Financial instruments by category and hierarchy
The carrying value and fair value of financial instruments by categories and hierarchy as at 31st March,
2020 were as follows:
(` in lakhs)
Carrying Amount
Fair value
Note
Amortised
Level Level Level
Particulars
FVTOCI FVTPL
Total
Total
No.
cost
1
2
3
Financial Assets
Investments

4

-

96.64

-

96.64

-

-

Trade Receivables
Cash and Cash
equivalents
Other bank balances
Loans
Other financial assets

10

-

-

1,793.50

1,793.50

-

-

96.64
-

11

-

-

639.79

639.79

-

-

-

-

12
5
6, 13

-

-

4,916.07
144.10
5,390.51

4,916.07
144.10
5,390.51

-

-

-

17
18

-

-

1,558.73
550.57

1,558.73
550.57

-

-

-

-

Financial Liabilities
Borrowings
Other financial liabilities

96.64
-

The carrying value and fair value of financial instruments by categories and hierarchy as at 31st March,
2019 were as follows:
(` in lakhs)
Carrying Amount
Fair value
Note
Amortised
Level Level Level
Particulars
FVTOCI FVTPL
Total
Total
No.
cost
1
2
3
Financial Assets
Trade Receivables
10
1,502.41 1,502.41
Cash and Cash equivalents
11
1,389.67 1,389.67
Other bank balances
12
1,916.88 1,916.88
Loans
5
197.61
197.61
Other financial assets
6, 13
5,028.45 5,028.45
Financial Liabilities
Borrowings
17
1,034.38 1,034.38
Other financial liabilities
18
1,117.25 1,117.25
														
The Company has classified its financial instruments into three levels in order to provide an indication
about the reliability of the inputs used in determining fair values.
(i) Level 1: quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or liabilities.
(ii) Level 2: inputs other than quoted prices included within Level 1 that are observable for the asset or
liability, either directly (i.e., as prices) or indirectly (i.e., derived from prices).
(iii) Level 3: inputs for the asset or liability that are not based on observable market data (unobservable
inputs)
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The carrying amounts of trade receivables, cash and cash equivalents, other bank balances, loans, other
financial assets, current borrowings and other current financial liabilities are a reasonable approximation
of their fair values.
ii. Valuation technique used to determine fair value
The fair value of the financial assets and liabilities are at the amount that would be received to sell an asset
and paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction between market participants at the measurement
date.
The carrying amounts of trade receivables, cash and cash equivalents, other bank balances, loans, other
financial assets, current borrowings and other current financial liabilities are a reasonable approximation
of their fair values.
The estimated fair value amounts as at 31st March, 2020 have been measured as at that date. As such, the
fair values of these financial instruments subsequent to reporting date may be different than the amounts
reported at each year-end
There were no transfers between Level 1, Level 2 and Level 3 during the year.				
													
40. Financial Risk Management
The Group’s businesses are subject to several risks and uncertainties including financial risks.
The Group activities expose it to credit risk, liquidity risk and market risk - interest rate risk. The Board of
Directors has overall responsibility for the establishment and oversight of the Group’s risk management
framework. This note explains the sources of risk which the entity is exposed to and how the entity
manages the risk and the related impact in the financial statements.
Risk
Credit risk
Liquidity risk

Exposure arising from
Measurement
Cash and cash equivalents, trade receivables,
Ageing analysis, Credit ratings
financial assets measured at amortised cost.
Borrowings and other liabilities

Market risk – Interest
Long-term borrowings at variable rates
rate risk

Rolling cash flow forecasts
Cash flow forecasting, Sensitivity
analysis

a. Credit risk
Credit risk is the risk that counterparty will not meet its obligations under a financial instrument or customer
contract, leading to a financial loss. Credit risk encompasses of both, the direct risk of default and the risk
of deterioration of creditworthiness as well as concentration risks.
The company's credit risk generally arises from Cash and cash equivalents, trade receivables, and other
financial assets.
Credit risk management										
The Group assesses and manages credit risk of financial assets based on following categories arrived on
the basis of assumptions, inputs and factors specific to the class of financial assets.
A: Low credit risk										
B: Moderate credit risk										
C: High credit risk										
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Assets Group

Description of category

Low credit risk

Assets where the counter-party
has strong capacity to meet the
obligations and where the risk of
default is negligible or nil.

Moderate
credit risk

Assets where the probability of
default is considered moderate,
counter-party where the capacity
to meet the obligations is not
strong.

High credit risk

Assets where there is a high
probability of default.

Provision for
expected credit loss*

Particulars

Cash and cash equivalents,
other bank balances,
12 month expected
investments, loans, trade
credit loss/life time
receivables and other
expected credit loss
financial assets
Nil

12 month expected
credit loss/life time
expected credit loss

Nil

12 month expected
credit loss/life time
expected credit loss/
fully provided for

Based on business environment in which the Company operates, a default on a financial asset is considered
when the counterparty fails to make payments within the agreed time period as per contract. Loss rates
reflecting defaults are based on actual credit loss experience and considering differences between current
and historical economic conditions. Assets are written off when there is no reasonable expectation of
recovery. The Company continues to engage with parties whose balances are written off and attempts to
enforce repayment. Recoveries made are recognized in statement of profit and loss.		
Classification of Financial assets among risk categories:						
(` in lakhs)
Credit rating
Low credit risk

Particulars

As at 3
As at
1st March, 2020 31st March, 2019

Cash and cash equivalents, other bank
balances, investments, loans, trade receivables
and other financial assets (Refundable deposits)

12,980.61

10,035.02

Nil

-

-

Nil

-

-

Moderate credit
risk
High credit risk
		
Basis of arriving at ECL

									

As an authorised Business Correspondent of various banks/financial institutions, the Company is obligated
to make good the loss suffered by banks/financial institutions on account of uncollected EMI's from the
members of JLG/SHG to the extent of first 5% of loan portfolio outstanding as First Loss Default Guarantee.
The provision is based on Markov Chain Model. The utilisation/withdrawal represents the commitment
charges paid to the respective banks/financial institutions on the basis of principles explained above.
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Reconciliation of loss allowance for first loss default guarantee for EMIs					
					
As at
As at
31st March, 2020 31st March, 2019
(` in lakhs)
(` in lakhs)
528.92
515.30

Particulars
Balance at the beginning of the year
Additions during the year
Amounts withdrawn/utilisation during the year

341.30

98.45

(564.61)

(84.83)

305.61

528.92

Balance at the end of the year

b. Liquidity risk										
Prudent liquidity risk management implies maintaining sufficient cash and marketable securities and the
availability of funding through an adequate amount of committed credit facilities to meet obligations when
due and to close out market positions. Due to the dynamic nature of the business, the Company maintains
flexibility in funding by maintaining availability under committed credit lines. Management monitors rolling
forecasts of the company’s liquidity position and cash and cash equivalents on the basis of expected
cash flows. The Company takes into account the liquidity of the market in which the entity operates. In
addition, the company’s liquidity management policy involves projecting cash flows and considering the
level of liquid assets necessary to meet these, monitoring balance sheet liquidity ratios against internal and
external regulatory requirements and maintaining debt financing plans.
Maturities of Financial Liabilities as at 31st March, 2020 are as follows:					
					
(` in lakhs)
Contractual cash flows
Particulars
Borrowings

Less than
1 year

More than
5 years

1-5 years

Total

Carrying
Amount

711.12

847.61

-

1,558.72

1,558.73

550.57

-

-

550.57

550.57

Total
1,261.68
847.61
										

2,109.29

2,109.29

Other Financial liabilities

Maturities of Financial Liabilities as at 31st March, 2019 are as follows:					
					
(` in lakhs)
Contractual cash flows
Particulars
Borrowings

Less than 1
year

More than
5 years

1-5 years

Total

Carrying
Amount

891.84

142.54

-

1,034.38

1,034.38

1,117.25

-

-

1,117.25

1,117.25

Total
2,009.09
142.54
										

2,151.63

2,151.63

Other Financial liabilities
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Market Risk										
Market risk is the risk that changes in market prices such as foreign exchange rates, interest rates etc. could
affect the Company’s income or the value of its holdings of financial instruments including cash flow. The
objective of market risk management is to manage and control market risk exposures within acceptable
parameters, while maximising the return.								
Interest rate Risks										
The Company uses a mix of cash and borrowings to manage the liquidity & fund requirements of its dayto-day operations. Interest rate risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial instrument
will fluctuate because of changes in market interest rates. The borrowings are fixed rate borrowings and
are carried at amortized cost. They are therefore not subject to interest rate risk as defined in Ind AS
107, ‘Financial Instruments - Disclosures’, since neither the carrying amount nor the future cash flows will
fluctuate because of a change in market interest rates.
Interest rate risk exposure										
The Company does not have any variable rate borrowing which is subject to interest rate risk.		
								
(` in lakhs)
Particulars
Fixed Rate Borrowings

As at 31st March, 2020

As at 31st March, 2019

1,558.73

1,034.38

41. Capital Management								
The Group's objectives when managing capital is to safeguard continuity, maintain a strong credit rating
and healthy capital ratios in order to support its business and provide adequate return to shareholders
through continuing growth. The Company’s overall strategy remains unchanged from previous year.
The funding requirements are met through a mixture of equity, internal fund generation and other
non-current borrowings. The Company’s policy is to use current and non-current borrowings to meet
anticipated funding requirements.
The Company monitors capital on the basis of the gearing ratio which is net debt divided by total
capital (equity plus net debt).								
Net debt are non-current and current debts as reduced by cash and cash equivalents and current
investments. Equity comprises all components including other comprehensive income.
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The following table summarizes the gearing ratio of the Company: 					
		
(` in lakhs)
Particulars

As at 31st
March, 2020

As at 31st
March, 2019

Non-Current Borrowings (Refer Note 17)

847.61

142.54

Current Maturities of Long term Debt (Refer Note 18)

711.12

891.84

1,558.73

1,034.38

Cash and Cash equivalents (Refer Note 11)

639.79

1,389.67

Total Cash (b)

639.79

1,389.67

Net Debt (c) = (a)-(b)

918.93

(355.29)

Share Capital (Refer Note 15)

535.75

535.75

Other Equity (Refer Note 16)

10,538.45

6,865.85

Total Equity (d)

11,074.20

7,401.60

Total Capital (e) = (c)+(d)

11,993.13

7,046.32

0.08

(0.05)

Total Borrowings (a)

Gearing Ratio = (c)/(e)

42. Segment Information:								
The Group is in the business of authorised Business Correspondent of banks and financial institutions
which is the only reportable operating segment. Hence, separate disclosure requirements of Ind AS -108
" Segment Reporting" are not applicable. 								
43. Related Party Disclosures:
(i) List of related parties with whom transactions have taken place during the year ended 31st
March, 2020 and relationship:
(a) Key Management Personnel (KMP) & Relative:
- Mr. Ganesh Rao 								
- Mrs. Meenakshi Rao 								
- Mr. K. R. Kamath 								
- Mr. Mohan Vasant Tanksale 								
- Mr. Ambadas Mukundrao Pedgaonkar
- Mr. V. K. Mohan
- Mr. R. Loganathan
- Mrs. Mona Thakkar
- Ms. Krutika Ganesh Rao (Relative of Mr. Ganesh Rao)
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(b) Others: (Enterprise over which key management personnel are able to exercise significant
influence)
- Parameshwaran & Associates
- Conatus Finserve Private Limited 						
(ii) Related Party Transactions:
Disclosure of transactions between the group and related parties and the status of outstanding
balance as at 31st March, 2020: 								
									
(` in lakhs)
Nature of Transactions

KMP & Relative
2019-20

Others

2018-19

2019-20

2018-19

Transactions during the period:
Salary paid

164.91

138.24

-

-

3.28

-

Directors sitting fees

11.75

7.90

-

-

Professional charges paid

12.00

12.00

1.80

2.56

-

19.12

-

-

1,500.00

200.00

-

-

-

150.00

Loan Given during the year

100.00

-

Loan repaid during the year

100.00

-

Investment in shares

100.00

-

Salary paid to relative of KMP

Interest paid
Loan availed by Company during the year which
is guaranteed by Director
Loan repaid to KMP
Loan given to KMP
Loan repaid by KMP

6.20
16.00

5.00

Interest received on loan

4.79

Outstanding balances as at the year end:
Loan Receivable from KMP
Outstanding amount of loan guaranteed
Investment

0.20

10.00

1,482.57

517.93
96.64

Note: Salary paid to KMP does not include amount in respect of gratuity as the same is not determinable
separately. 											
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44. A. Interests in Subsidiary:								
The subsidiary considered in the consolidated financial statements is set out below:
Name of the entity
Indian Association for Savings and Credit
(Section 8 Company)

Country of
incorporation
India

Percentage of ownership
As at 31st
As at 31st
March, 2020
March, 2019
99.98%

99.98%

B. Non-controlling interest (NCI):								
Set out below is the summarised financial information of the subsidiary. The amount disclosed for
the subsidiary is before intra- group eliminations:
Summarised Balance sheet
Particulars

(` in lakhs)
As at 31st March, 2020

Current Assets
Current Liabilities
Net Current Assets
Non Current Assets
Non Current Liabilities
Net Non Current Assets
Net Assets
Accumulated NCI

170.80
44.80
126.00
1,895.95
19.02
1,876.93
2,002.93
0.44

Summarised statement of Profit and Loss
Particulars

227.01
39.89
187.12
1,824.95
53.04
1,771.92
1,959.03
0.43
(` in lakhs)

For the year ended
31st March, 2020

For the year ended
31st March, 2019

Revenue

377.13

213.41

Profit/(Loss)

43.64

(57.95)

0.26

3.95

43.90

(54.00)

-

-

0.01

(0.01)

Other Comprehensive Income
Total Comprehensive Income
Other Consolidation adjustments
Profit / (Loss) to Non Controlling Interest
		
Summarised statement of cash flows
Particulars
Cash flow from Operating activities
Cash flow from Investing activities
Cash flow from Financing activities
Net increase/(decrease) in cash and cash equivalents
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As at 31st March, 2019

(` in lakhs)
As at
As at
31st March, 2020 31st March, 2019
30.13
(45.08)
70.83
(36.61)
(38.44)
(6.48)
(12.70)
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45. Additional information pursuant to para 2 of general instructions for the preparation of consolidated
financial statements.								
Net Assets (i.e. total assets
minus total liabilities)
Name of the entity in the Group

As % of
Consolidated
net assets

` in lakhs

Share in total
comprehensive income
As % of
Consolidated
Profit or Loss

` in lakhs

Parent
New Opportunity Consultancy Private
Limited

81.91%

9,071.77

73.53

5,443.02

18.08%

2,002.48

26.46

1,958.58

0.01%

0.44

0.01%

0.43

Subsidiary
Indian Association for Savings and Credit
Non-controlling interest

46. Reconciliation of the opening and closing balances of liabilities arising from Financing activities:
				
(` in lakhs)
Balance as on
Balance as on 1st Fair value / Ind AS Cash flows- inflow/
Particulars
31st March, 2020
April, 2019
adjustments
(Outflow)
Long-term
1,558.73
1,034.38
524.35
borrowings (Net)

Particulars
Long-term
borrowings (Net)

Balance as on
31st March, 2019
1,034.38

(` in lakhs)
Balance as on 1st Fair value / Ind AS Cash flows- inflow/
April, 2018
adjustments
(Outflow)
1,291.90

24.46

(281.97)

47. Ministry of Corporate Affairs ("MCA") notifies new standard or amendments to the existing standards.
There is no such notification which would have been applicable from April 1, 2020.		
48. Previous years figures have been regrouped, reclassified and rearranged wherever necessary to
conform to the current years classification.
49. Figures have been rounded off to the nearest rupee
In terms of report of date attached
For Haribhakti & Co. LLP
For and on behalf of the Board of Directors		
Chartered Accountants			
ICAI Firm Registration No.103523W/W100048			
			
Snehal Shah
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Ganesh Ramanand Rao
Partner
Chairman
Managing Director & CEO
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R. Loganathan
Chief Financial Officer
		
Place : Mumbai
Date : 26th May, 2020

Mona Jeetendra Thakkar
Company Secretary
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Nukkad

Champ

Subash Babu, a student of our Amarapoondi Nukkad
center, recently graduated 10th standard, securing an
84% in his board exams. According to his pathshala
teacher, Miss Sumathi, Subash is a very quick learner
and loves learning through practical experiments!
Subash lives in Amarapoondi, a village in Dindigul
district, with his parents and younger sister. His father is
a tailor, and his mother is employed through the NREGA
scheme. Subash is excited to pursue Science in 11th and
12th and explore his favorite subject- Chemistry. He
aspires to become a scientist. We are so proud of you
Subash, onwards and upwards!

